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Empresaria at a glance
Empresaria is an international
specialist staffing group, following
a multi-branded, diversified
business model which addresses
global talent and skills shortages.

Vision and purpose
Our vision is 1o be a leading
international specialist
staffing Group.

Our purpose is to help people
realise their potential by:

investing in our staff
to help them realise their
potential, which in turn

nelps our candidates
to progress their careers
sa they can realise their
potential and

helps our clients find the
best candidates so they
can realise their potential

For further information

Visit: www.empresaria.com



United Kingdom

Continental Europe
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Asia Pacific

Net fez income 2018

T 23.(mM

% of Group net fee income

33%

MNet fee income 2018

S156m

% of Group net fee income

227

Brands

dusard Talent
Ball & Haoalahan
Becoms

ConSoel Partners
FastTrack
Greycoat

LMA

tAcCall
Teamsalas

Brands
Headw.ay
Madkumppar

Americas

Net fee income 2018

C045m

%o of Group net fee income

349%

Brands

Become

BW&P

FINES

MG

LhaA

Monroz Consulting
Rishvroith Aviatan
Skillnouse

Net fee income 2018

—89m

% of Group net fee income

12%

Brands
Allernattim

GonScl Partners

Grupo Solmano

Monrae Cansulting
Pharmaceutical Strateges

Empresaria in numbers

Service type

Sectors

Number of brands in the Group

20

Countries we are in

A
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Chairman’s statement

“We are pleased to
deliver another year of
profitable growth and
an increased dividend.”

Tony Martin
Chairman

We are pleaset to report cur ful year results
whick deliver anciher year of profitable growih
and noreased divided. We bave made good
progress it the year avl have mvested in key
zreas of the central support iuenction of the
GroLp to maxmisa fulure organic growth
acenss our hrands. We have a focuised
st-ategy in place to delver the next phase

of growth and are confident in the Group's
prosgects tor the future.

Our purpose and what makes

us different

As an internationat spec alist statfing Group
we have the rivilege of being avle 1o help
pedple realise their potential through work.
ths & rewarding actvity, helping candidates
to progress their careers so they can realise
their potentiat and he'ping clients fnd the
best candidatzs so the'r business can
reslise its potential,

Our strategic prionties are building leading
branets and imaroving productiity. We have
nvesterd in strongtoenng our cenhal
management team over the last year to
ensure we are supporting our staff, helping
them to dovalop ther skils and cxperence.
and helping our brands 10 grovs,

Qu- business model 1s a key differentiator
{or ug in the market:

* M. li-brended with niche sector expens:
Lage! expertise a-~d rarkel knowledge
ensures our brards understand the needs
of clents and canddates dike. We currently
have 20 brands across the Group.

* Mznagement equty philosophy: Sensor
Managers hak! shares 'n their operating
cormpanies. so al'gning thew intarests with
those ¢f our sharchulders, 11us helps us o

attract and then retain key meanageiment
ard encourages them to take a long-term
Wiy 01 business oppo-tuntias, At the
end of 2018 wie had 57 aranagers haldng
shares i the operating companies they
are responsible for,

Dreersiied by geography and sector We
currently operate in 21 countries and this
spread of operations reduces our reliance
on any single market and me gates
ongoing econaniic and poltical risks. We
have a good balance of operat ons in both
the largest staffing markets as well &s the
tigh potential markets of Latr Amer ca
and Asia,

Range of stafing services Provis on of
permanent. temporary and contrast. AP0/
ofishore recruitn ent services vith a lras
towards temporary recruitnent,

The market

The econamic growth farecasts are currently
positive 2Cross ol geographes, although
we have seen a genaral weakening of these
g-owlh ra'es over the last few months.
Poltical risks remain bigh, in particular with
the urcerlamty over the UK's exit from the
ELnopean Unionwaighing onbusiness
confdence in the UK and Gemany and the
increased trace taiiffs between the US and
China mpact ng on glzbal growlth rates,

We continue to see canuwdate shortages
ac10ss our largest merkets., as weli as skolls
shortages due to the advance of techaslogy
with dernand ingreasing for skafis that are rot
wiclely available. 11is creates opuorturiies
lor cur brands viho. as expe-ts in theu
markets, arz well praced to find the
candiddates watn he right skills and can

than place these more guickly.

2 Empresaria Group plc / Annoal Report & Accounts 2018

The cur-ent prospects for the staffing sector
rermain positive and we ses gooa apportunties
for our brands, but wath tha increasing 153
and levels of business uncertanty, we remian
vighant to any change in conditons. Accordng
to “Stalfing Industry Anafysts” forecasts
("Global Staffing Industiy Maiket Estinates
and Forecast”, Novenrber 2013). the global
staftng market 1s expected o grow by 6%

i1 2049, through a mix of highe growth rates
expec:ed n China and India. offset by low
growth rates i he UK, US and Ausl-ala, Our
spread of operations helps us o manage the
rrpact of locaksed 1ssdes ad imgke the most
of positive marke' conclitions, We nave seen
the berefit of s divershed model over the 1ast
two years in e face of regulaiory changes in
Garmany and Japan, the impast of which are
nowy fully reflecied and it conlinugs to be

a cale part of our business model.

People & culture

There Fave been a nuniber of changes to
thiz execuve tearn during 2018, In May Janst
Kreulen stepped down as Chief Executieg
Officer. He continues to assist the Group,
working as a part-time censultant in Germany,
supparting our Peadway brands, The Board
wouitd like to thank Joost for h s commitment
and success since he joined Empiesaria
helping to stabllise 2nd then turn araund e
business, leaving a sald patform for the next
phasa of growth anc development.

Spencer Wreford took over ag CEQ, having
peen valn the Gioup for eight years. most
wecently as the Chigf Operatig Off cer and
prevously as Group Finance Urector,

i harch 2018 we welcomed T Andieiso
as the new Group Finance Directar and in
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Financial highlights

Net fee income

T 723mM

2017 £69.4m

Adj ue.ted proflt before tax

S 174m

2017 €11.0m

Adjusted diluted earnings per share
/l 2 |
2017, 12.5p

Dividend

aee

2017: 1.320

For more information
Finance review pages 20 to 23
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Our strategy and business model

People QOur focused growth strategy looks to take our
The skills and expertise of our staff ~ business to the next level.

Financial strength
Our ability to invest in the business

Brand reputation

Our brands are oxperts in
their markets

Values & Culture

Our decentralised structure
provides operational autonoimy
for ranagers

Network
Our brands operate from
21 countries across the world

Technology

Our ability to connect with clients
and candidates and operate our

business effectively
Organic growth
Organic investment
in existing brands




Qur people focussed business model sets us apart
from ou- competitors and enables us to deliver on
our strategy.

External investments

Accelerate growth in key sectors
or geographies

Strategic report / Governance / Financials

We look to generate long-term
value for all our stakeholders

Our investors

We aim to delwer susta nable returns for rvestors
through growing adjusted earnings per share and
a progressive diidend pohzy, Our strong cash flow
allovis us ta invest in our businasases te grow our
profits into the future,

111%

rorease 1 adisted PET over last b years

470%

increase in dividend per share over last 5 years

£0.5m

returncd to shareholders through share buy-backs
i last two years

Our people

Ouw cultee and values alow staff to develop and
lourish so they can achiese their gozls rea'iss thou
potential and improve ther carears.

89%

increase in average employee numbers over last
5 years

Cur community

We mazke a direct social and econcmic contribution
1 the countres wa operate In. Wa help people to
fincl work, to develop theit careers and tealise ther
potential, and we contnoule to the local economy
throagh tax payments and use of local supohenrs.

We hefp local businesses realise [heir polental by
helping them frd =utable workers that iit their needs
and requrements. 2y proad ng a quality valie agdded
service lo cur clerts and candicates we enhance our
brand reputat on which shoula Pely genera’s repeat
and news DUSINEss.
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Market drivers in our industry

Social & political trends

Over half of the world's wopulation five in cit es and tisg s
expected 10 grow to 70% by 2050 (Souce: Future of Skills,
Emplayment in 2030 issued by Pearson). Economic
development is generally greater v larger rarkets and vie

see tne largest cties as the man d-ers of econome activity.
Comganies are drawn to these large cities, where the proximity
10 other businesses enab’es collaboration, & greatar chaoice of
labour and access to other industiies and seivice provider s,

City population is expected to grow to

(0% oy

Hegulatory charnge 18 & common ocourtence in the stalling
industry as Governments lggislate 0 improve working condbons
and tac<lc inequally, We should expect further changes each
year, New laws came into fo-ce in 2008 around datz protection
for EU incividuals (GDPR) and consurrer ethics and privacy
issues are increasingly important to candidates, clents and

staff vihen holding or using the' data.

Hax ble working s 01 the nse and is being driven by supply
rathcr than dernand. Tne candidate s pusl-ing for this as they
look far a better work-Ife balance, so clients have ta react to
this to be able to attract the best talent. This inpacts an how
we souice cand dates and engage with them, as well az
deahing with risks aroud taxation where workers vant to

ve treated as sel-employed.

Our appraach

Qur brands are focused on tha markets where there is the
greatest client need to maxinuse the réturn on investment.
Compliance with regulations is 1aken very serously and our
cenirallegal and tax team maonitor and ovarsee changes
required from new legislation. We offer a range of staffing
services to mee! 1he different needs of candidales and to
support clients in engaging with the workforce.

Economic trends

The statfing ndustry’s growth is highly correlated w th GOP
gravith: the stronger tha econony, the stronger the: staffing
market, although in the shortterm othe- fsclors can algo have
an impact. Glohal econcmees are incressngly ntegrated and as
businesses operate across rternational boandarias the labour
markets changs, with peop'a becaming maore mob o and
working ow's de ther country cf brth,

The worldwide economic order 15 expected to change Gver tnwe,
with forecasts predicting that Chna w il guertake the US as the
warkd's leadng economy in the next 15 years s also expected
tiat Indhia wil overteke the UK and Franze to become the 5th
fargest economy and the strongest growth will corne from
emerying narkels such as Indores g, Brazl Russia, Mexico,
Vietnam, Plilippiies and Nigeria. Population growth will be
key driver of GDP g-owA in many emerging markets, We should
expect short term economic and poltcal 5o ms to occur from
tme to lime as these markels move lowards mMaturity, however,
a falure to engage with these marxets would mean missing cut
an e«pectad high lavels ci econonic grovith

Our approach

We operate with a dversfied modet, opeiating in 21 countries
across 7 key sectors, so reducing our reliznce an any single
markel. We already have a good presence in ernarg'ng

markets o are in a strong position to beneft fiom twe

exgected ecoromic growth in these markets. Cur focus is on
deepening our prasence in key markets and sectors by nvesting
in our core brands 1o broaden their geoygraphic coverage and
extend thar reach.

Empresaria Group plc / An-ual Beport & Azcounts 2018




Technology trends

Tech~ology is expected 10 have a major ymgact on stafing n
tha future, wheter due to the creation of new industries through
the automation of jobs and tasks (such as autonomous driving),
or by alowing slaffing companies 1o coerate more effect vely.

The threat of autorratior on jobs is & widely vebated issue,

It is clear that automation will change what ra'es exist in the
future, vath some being cisplaced whie new roles are created
Autometion is expected to reslace jobs that have repstitve
features and roles which are semi-skitled but involve a lot of
menial work., “he World Economic Forum predicts that 65%
of primary schoal children will work in jobs that don't exist yet.

There has been an ongoing trend of job polarisation over the
last 20 years, with a decline in midd'e level jobs in every market
and a general increase in low level and high lsvel jobs. Thisis
expected to gal worse as automat on removes the aemand

for manual roles as part of the "hoflowing out of the middle”.

Technology wil also have a big impact on productvity ad
efficiency. The focus on big cata is ahout using data to make
batter derisions, Artificial Inteligance (definad as machnss
performing tasks commonly assaciated with intalligan? baings)
will be used to make decisions using precictive data. anzlysing
the data on previous placements to give a competitve
advantage !o the recruiter. Ghoos ng the right technology and
deplaying it in the tight way will be one ©f the kay dacisions for
stafiing firms ovar the next faw years. We should also expact
10 s2e mao-e ol a convergence of technology and stafling
companies. New onling platforms are being launched that aim
-0 remove the resruitment agency and connect candidates
directly to nirers. The human connection s still expected 1o
remain ‘mpcrtant in the hring process, but these platforms are
growing ana taking marke: share, especially in the low skillad
velame markets.

Our approach

With our specialist brands we work across both high end low
level roles and understand the different delivery models needed
for each. Our brands ae experts in their niche markels, adding
value 1o clients and candidates to ind the right matches and
also ensuring we stay on tap of changes to job roles and skil's
reguirements. In 2018, we have invested In a dedicated resourca
to ook at cur technology and how it 1s being used, helping to
impemsant be'ter systems and tools across our brands and
ooking at whial new technology is be ng launched. As a group
with 20 brands we a-e able to identify the besl to0ls for each
and 1o develop strong relationships with key suppliers.

Strategic report ; Goverrance / Financials

Demographic trends

The developad ecoromies are startng to see fawer entrarts 1o
the labour market as socety 1s getting older. Trere are significant
declines forecast in Japan and Germany as well as pans of
Southern Eurooe. Evenin the US, where the impact is less severe,
Bain eslimate tha: labo.r force g-ow:h has been slowing every
decads since tha 1970s (Scource: Bain Macrotrends Graup
Analysis 2017). In global lerms the workforce is not slowing, but
the growth is mainly in Asia ard Africa. However, even though the
developed economies nsed extra headcount to deliver economic
growlth, the poritical focus in sorme countrigs is on creating
barriers o foreign workars and p'acng fmits on immigration.

With candidate shorlages expected 1o gel worse rathsr than
better, the ability to lind candidates will make the clifference
between a successiul recruitment company arkt ane that 15
struggling. Everyone is fshing in the same pool, 50 you need o
starvl out as the recruiter Ihe cand date 13 going to speak and
respond to. Social media is increasingly important for sharing
content within your sector and 1o help buid your brand as an
expert in the market, but what you are saying needs ‘o be worlth
listening to. Marketing and technalogy are already ¢rossing over
andg this will continus, buitding a notwork of passive and antive
Jabseekars. The new generation of workers freferred io as
mllznnia's and generalion zj are more digitally connectsd than
older colleagues. Nearly all of them have a digial prescnoe and
tivey will use d'gita’ means to examing the hirer ard recruiter.

Our approach

Qur diversified model ensures we are in markets with

growlh opportunities and enables us to mitigate a slowdown
in a particular market. Our brands are increasingly mnterpationat
in ther outiook and we look for ways ftor group companies to
coliabarate on clients and candidates, We have recantly
inves:ed in 2 central marketing team to provide suppor and
stratsgic advico on all aspects of candidate engagsment and
o Felp ensure best practice is shared across the Group.

Empresaria Group plc / Annual Report & Accounts 2018 7
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Multi-branded with niche sector experts

We target different segments of
the market with different brands.
Each brand has in-depth
knowiedge and expertise in their
specific market. We think
candidates and clients want to
deal with experts who understand
their industry and can advise both
on the best match of experience,
skills and job requirements.

Why this is important

Our brands’ expertise means they know
now and where to find the best candidates,
providing chents with the best it and helping
candidates with thei- career development.
This enabes them to build strong and
Jasting redationships with both clien’s

and candidates,

Our focused approach rmakes it easier
to engage with candidates and clients in
markgis where there are skifis shortages.

Management equity philosophy

Brands

20

The Group's management equity
philosophy aligns the interests
of key management with our
shareholders, with operating
company management teams
owning shares directly in their
own businesses.

Why this is important

The staffing inclustry is a people business,
run by peaple, for peaple. The success o
oLr business is dependent on having the
best staff availab'e anc giving them tne
operational freedem to use their expertise
to run their bus ness.

We use managament eqity 1o first attrast,
and then retain arnbitious and talented
management across our Group. Thig
ensures they take a longer term view

and aligns the interests of all skareholders
enablng us o build basinesses that can
deliver sustainable returns.

More detail on how the management equily
model works is given in the financia' review
onpage 23.

Empresaria Group pic / Annual Report & Accounts 2018

Managers holding equity

Of

(2017: 51)
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Diversified by geography and sector

The Group is diversified both

by geography and by sector
operating in 21 countries and
across seven key sectors.

This spread of operations helps
mitigate ecenomic and political
risks as well as providing
opportunities to drive our growth.

Qur geographical spread is wall balanced
with a presence in both established and
emergng rarkels, 55% of our net fee
ncor e is delivered by our oresence in
the four largest markets {USA, Japan, UK,
Germany) while we slso bave a significant
presence in the Latin American and Asa
Pacific matketls where we bhehove there
are excellent opportunias for long

term growrth,

Why this is important Regions

The mit gat on of economic and palitizal
risks helps provide a mare stable base
for the Group to invest and grow. This is
evidenced by the perforrmance in 2018
where tne Group dalivered tecord profts
despite regulatory changes in two

key markets.

Qur presence in estab’ished markets
proviges oppartunities for our ncha sector
experts to deliver in markats where thare

Sectors

ar2 typical y skilis and labaur shortages.

Our presence in the less mat.re

rmarkets of Latin America and Asia Pacific
{excluding Japan and Australia) provides
opportunities for long-re-m growth as
thase markels develop.

Range of staffing services

The Group has three main service
lines, temporary and contract
recruitment, permanent
recruitment and Offshore
Recruitrnent Services (ORS).
While we provide a full range of
staffing services, we have a bias
in temporary and contract
recruitment, which is generally
more stable throughout the
economic cycle,

Why this is important

Service type
The overall bias towards termporary angd

conlract recruitment helps mitigate our
economic risks and the more predictable
income streams derived from longe--term
relationships help with resourcing

ard planning.

However ours fecus alsa rellects the
mar«ets we operate in, the opportunities
we identify and the services in demanci.
The mo-e mature and most regulated
markets typically have the highest levels
of tempcrary penetration. In less matu-e
marxets our locus may be on permanant
sales with tha potent al and expertise 1o
mgve into termporary recrutment as the
market matures.

Our ORS business has grown and we

cantinue 1o see good prospects for
1his husiness.

Empresaria Group plc / Annual Report & Accounts 2078
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Chief Executive’s review

“Empresaria has delivered
a 4% increase in adjusted
profit before tax to
£11.4m, representing
a fourth consecutive
year of record profits.”

Spencer Wreford
Chief Executive Officer

Group performance in the year
Empresaria has delivered a 4% ncrease

in adjusted profit before tax to £11,4m,
representing a fourth consecutve yaar of
record profits. Cur dversilied busiress has
delivered on opporluniies 1o mitigate the
efect of some challenging markets end the
Group's continued growth sJpports this
approach, We have made further invastments
during the yea, including the addition o
Grupo Salimano to the Group 1o streng:hen
our presence in Latin America ard building
a stronger central team to provide enhanced
suppart 1 our operating companizs While
this has resu ted in an increase in our central
staff costs, we believe i will generate a far
greater value in the coming years.

Group revenus increased by 3% to £366.6m
(2017: £357.1m), with net fee income up

4% 10 £72.3m (2017: T63.4m). Cur-ency
movements had a dampening impact in the
year, with constant currency increases of
5% in reveaue and 6% in net fee income.

The split of net fee income was 379% from
permangnt sales (2017: 36%), 58% from
temporary & contract (2017: B0%) and 5%
frant BPO and Offshore Recruitment
Services {ORS) {2017: 4%). The temp margin
percentage was 12.5%, down from 12.7% in
the prior year, mairly cdue to the addition of

Grupo Sclimang with a margin of 10.7%

and reduced margins in both Germarny end
Japan. The Group generated 6759 of its net
‘ee ncorre frorm outside the UK (P017: 66%..

There was a mix of resulls across the Group,
with three out of four regions deliverng growth
in operating proft. With a diversified spread of
operalions across geographies and seclors,
we are not relian. on any single marke! or
prand and this remains a core strengtn.

The-e were particularly strang resul:s from
IMS (RPO & Offshore Recruitment Services
in India), Alterrattiva {outsourcing. perm and
temporary business in Chile). LMA (profes-
s:ongl services) and the recent investmenis in
ConSal Partners (IT) and Rishworth (avation):

» IM3 was a slart-up in 2008 and has seen
5% growth in net feg income in the year,
With the launch of a second city locatian
in Jaipur, India and a move into a newy
built office space in early 2019, there s
spaca to expand into and we see goed
opportunities across their care UK and
US markets.

Allernattiva hes consistentiy grown in recent
years and with the new investment in Peru,
wa have increased our scale and depthin
this high potential region.

* | MA has successfuly integrated the
previously standalons insurance tusiness

and is daveloping depth across its service
Ines in the LIK and Singapore.

In ConSol Partners we have seen
growth from both the UK and US offices,
but the growth was particularly strong

in the US which is now deliveriag on our
expectations followsng a difficult 2017,

¢ In R shworlh thoy havo seen the bene™t
from the Investment in new bases

made i1 2017, however we se8e a mors
challenging market for 2012,

As we have previously high'ighled. we have
been impacted by changes to regulatons

in Germany and Japan, limiting how long
temporary workers can work in a non-
permanent position and the equa! pay rates
in Genmany. We have seen profits decline

in the logistics part of our Headway business
in Germany and in Skithouse (iT) in Japan,
both of which bave a tugh propartion ¢f
temporary sales. With the regu'atory
changes now stabilised, the impact has
been fully reflected with no further impact
expected, however vie start 2019 with a
lower number of temperary workers Lhan
this time a year ago in both businesses. We
expect Lo see the level of temporary workers
increase through the yaar and we remain
con®dert aboat the long-term prospects

for these large slaffing markets.

Asia

Coatmantal
Net fee income {£m) LK Europe Pactiz Acentas Intercompan ¢ Tata!
2017 23.4 16.5 222 7.3 - 69.4
Movement 0.3 {1.1) 3.6 Q.9 {0.4) 3.3
Inves ments/(divestments) - - 0.3) Q9 06
Curraricy - 02 a0 - 1.0
2018 23.7 15.6 246 8.9 04 723
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Five year plan update

2018 was the last year in
our five year plan, which
targeted average annual net
fee income growth of 10%,
a conversion ratio of 20%
and a debt to debtors ratio
of 25%.

Strategic report / Governance / Financeals

Wz have made good progress acmss

tha five year pericd, a'though not all
targets have been met. The net fee
income growth was 4% N 2018, with

Ihe frie year average annual growh

being 11%. We have defvered incremental
IMRrovements in the corvers on ratio, with
the current year of 17.0%% a record level for
the Group. Having met the debt to debtors
targat in 2015, we macde the decision to
use debt to finance the nvestiments in
ConSol Paiiners and Rishworth in 2016,
Wa ai2 pleased that the 1atio has reduced
as expecled, in 2018 1o 38%5, Weamain
focuseq on these KPIs going forwards

buit are not setting new fve year targsts.

2018 T 2LE 2013 2014
Nel fee income growth: (%] 4% 8% 20% 10% 5%
‘Conersian rata (%) _ A70%  167%  166%  163%  147%
Cebl to debtors 1atio 36% 5% 38% 23% 3230

A focused strategy

We hare a unicue business iroclel for

the sector. with our multi-brand approach,
management equity phlosophy and drsersfied
oparations. We operate with a decentialised
structule, with autonomy give- 1o loca: rand
managemant 1o run their business on & day 10
day basis and these pricples are care to our
purpose o' helping pecple res!se their
potental, These are an imporlan! part of

our DNA a~d we are not going to change this.
In the currert market and with the size ol vur
Group, we need 1o be more focused n our
anoreach and work more closely with cur
brands ta fully deliver the benefts o being

in a group and to be able 1o react quickly

and effectively to the changes mpacting the
staffing sector, rom incieased aulomanon
and dgral dsruption, to candidate shortages
and regulatory changes.

To sddress this need we have grown

the caniral managemant team, wih the
appointment of Rhona Cnggs as Chief
Operating Office” in November 2018 and
key hires covering technclogy. learning &
development and marketing, Riona bings
a wealth of experience from large
international staffiing companes and 1s
recognised as one of the Stalfng Inaustry
Analysts “Global Power 150 Women in
Stafling”. Bhona has responsibility for the
Group's overall aperations and, tageher
w'th hes mew tearn, is supporting the brands
tordennfy new business opportunities and
to share best pract ce acioss the Group.

Our strategic ity 1n 2019 is based on a
more ‘ocused approach in our core markets
and is designed 1o deliver organic giovwhin
nst fee ncome and productivity gans 1o
drve profit growth

Operational highlights

Strengthening our presence
in Latin America
v |nestment 0 Grupo Solmano

Strengthening central

management team

s New Group Frnance Direcror

» Newy Chief Operating Ctficer

* New resouces N technology.
irzrketing. and learnmmy and
developmant

Strong growth from RPO and
offshore recruitment services
business in India

* +30% growlhin net fae income

* Second city office opened in JaipLr

Become opened new offices
in 2019
* Brisbate. Austalia

s Auckland, New Zealand

dward Talent launched

Awards

» LMA - Recruiter Awairs, Best
Bankng/Financial Seivices
Recruitment Ageacy

*« Monroe Consulting - Global
Recruter Asia Paofic, Best Smak
Ragruitnam Business

» Monroe Gonsulting - Asa
Recrutment Awards Rest Tandidate
Expetience gokl

+ IMS JAQP Global Outsoucing

104 list

Skillhouse - FT 1000 High-Growitn

Companies Asia Pachic list

.
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Strategic report

Chief Executive’s review continued

This wili be delivered through a two-pronged strategy:

Strategic priorities
Building size
and scale in
key sectors and
geographies
through leading
brands

Improving
productivity
to generate
hetter returns

With our multi-
branded model

we want to create
leading brands in
each of gur niche
sectors and we
believe there is

a clear opportunity
to drive a significant
increase in
profitability from
our existing brands,

We have identified
three core areas
where we can
provide central
support to our
brands to help them
drive improvements
in productivity,
being technology,
learning &
development

and marketing.

The focus on size and scale is important because it helos create a
stranger business with more depth andd synergias than a smaller braswd,
We are focdsed on growing ow presance in ou' co'e sactors and vall Iook
for opporiunites 16 expand oul main brards acress our key geogranh es,
utdising cur knowledye of oporaiing in these impaortant maikats,
Tris is dlustrated by some of our 1tecent acwity:
s A tre end ol 2018 ConSo' Partners la.unghed Award Talent,

a new brand 1o focus on frgher volume [T makets using a lower

cost delvery solution, allowing ConSol Partners to conhinug 1o

focus on their niche sactors,

hthe beginnng of 2019 we have opened two new offices for the
Bzcome brand, in Brisbane, Australia and Auckland, New Zezland
These offices are managed by the existing Australian team. providng
a more complete coverage of the local creative & digital market.

We will continue ta took at other opportunities to expand ouwr brands’
presence and geographic coverage. We also anticipate maore bolt-or
nvestments over the nnxt lew years, 1o accelerate the entry 1o new
servce lines or regions for exsting brands.

The central team 1S there 1o help shape strateqy, to ayid duslicaiion of
effort and 1o ensu-e best practice is shared and implamented across the
Grouap. A key part of improving productivity 1s to create mare time for our
consultants to engage drectly with ciients and cand dates. Ta ensure we
ars delivering a ‘best In class” service we nead to be constantly
challenging and improving our approach.

nvesting in technology will help to aw'amate cerlain processes,

norease cfficiencies ard free up time for consultants to spend engaging
directly with candidates and clients. By providng a continJous learning
& development culture, we are investing m our own stalf to help them
deliver 1o ther potential and to be the bast that they can. As our marke:s
are generally seeing candidlate and skills shortages, the need to
meaningfully engage with candidates increases. This requires clear
st-ategies for the use of social media and other marketing channels.

We measura productvity by the conversion ratio (adiusted operating

piofit dhvidedt by net fee iIncomie) and staff prociuctivity ratio (net fee income
divded by total staff costs). With tne increasc in contral staff costs n 2018
and 2019, we cxpeat 10 see these ralios challenged in the short term
before v slart seeing fhe benefits coming through from th's mvestment,

Focus into 219

Our fozus for this year is smple: to imprave the effeciveness of our services; to identdy ways to work smarter and Fardcr, and sc deliver
growth In both net fee incoma and profit acioss our Group. Market forecasts are generally positive, albeit with increasing gea-palitical risks
al-eady reducing business confidence, in particular in the UK and Eurape due to conzerns over Brexit. However, with the gualily of our brands
we ate canf dent about our aljility to genenate profitab e grawth and wit cortinue to nvest for the long tenm.

NN

Spencer Wreford
Chief Executive Officer
12 Margh 2019
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Strengthening our position in Latin America

in July 2018 we made an
investment in 60% of the shares in
Grupo Solimano, strengthening our
position in the high-potential Latin
American staffing market. Grupo
Solimano is an established
provider of outsourced and
temporary staffing services in
Peru, It alsc operates a small
executive search business.

At a glance

60%

Investment in Grupo Solimano

Peruis the

ot

largest economy
in Latin America

Multi-branded with niche

sector experts

Grupo Sofimano was one of th2 largest
ndependznl stalfng companies in Pery,
The Managing Director of the businass,
Rocco Sofmano. retains a 40% equity
interest and is & h'ghly respected membar
of the local business communty. He is a
Director and tormer Chairman of the board
of the Peruv an Association of Good
Employers and Director of the Associaticn
of Ouisourcing and Temzaorary
Emp'oyment Companies.

Provision of staffing services with
temporary and contract bias

The majority of Ihe net fee income of Gruzo
Solirnzno is derived fram cutsourced and
emporaty staffing serv ces.

Diversified by geography and sector
This investment provides access to a

new market in Peru. It also strengthens

our presence n the Latin Anerican market.
Since we first invested in this part of the
warld, in Chile in 2008. we have seen the
markel develop and good growth from cur
business in Chile. With Grupo Solimano
operating in similar seciors we sge good
potential for cross salling opporturities
and sharing of pest practice to benefit

both businesses.

The Paruvian Association of Good Employers (ABE)
Grupo Sclimano s a men-ber of ABE, a social responsibilty inttative. Established n 2008 with 50 members. the arganisalion has grown
10 nclucle mo-g than 260 organisatons. ABE promotes fabour social respongibility 1ough the ABE cerif-cation in good labour practices
and other activities. Jab informality n Feru is high and ABE looks to red.ace this to help ensure that employees receive fair and lawtul
treal-nent. Rocco Solmano, Managing Director of Grupa Sclimano, has been a membear of the ABE board of drectors for more than

9 yea-s and was Chairman in 2017 and 2018.

Pera is the fith largest ecoromy in Latn
Arnerica, ard has a solid recent history

o econoic stabity with average annual
grawth in Gross Domestic Product over the
nast 20 years of 4.6%. Ithas low inflaton
lavels and has seen bigh levels of privale
investment, In recent years foreign
investment, free market policies and trade
agreemants have heiped drive the growth
in their ecanamy.

I7is a member of the Pacific Allarce,

a | atin Ame-can tracle bloc formed with
Chie, Mexico and Golumbia. These
countries logether have a popu'lation of
210 mulion peop'e and represent gbout
35% of the region's GDP.

We have worked closely with tha
management tearn of Grupo 8ol mano
over the last few years, building a strong
relatgnship and recognising thei- ambitions
tix grow the business and raise the profla of
forrnal labour structuras within the country.
We ses good opporfunitias to grow the
business thiough the cngeing developrment
of tha iacal sconomy, the skills and
experiercs o tha mansgement team and
the ability to work closely with our existing
Altarnattiva brand in Chile.

Empresaria Group pi¢ / Annual Report & Accounts 2018
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Strategic report

Operating review

United Kingdom

[agh 2018 2017 2016 2015 204
Revenue 857 867 701 627 658
Net fee 1ncome 237 234 190 184 159
Adjusted operating profit 2.8 2.6 21 34 31
% of Group net fee income 33%  34% ‘ 32% 37% 35%
Average number of employees 269 279 24 209 183

Qverview

Countries:
UK

Brands:
dward Talent
Ball & Hoolahan
Becomne
ConSol Paringrs
FastTrack
Greycoat

LMA

McCall
Teamsa'es

[Revenue reduced by 1% but net fes income
was up 1% and adjusted operating profit
increased by 12% reflecting amix of
performances acress the UK businesses.

In professioral services, LMA had a slrang
year. particularly in the first half, with the
successful mtegration of our previousty
ssparate insu-ance brand in January.
Headgount has continued to grow and they
have expanded thair offering by moving into
new areas such as audit and changea.

In IT, digital and design, ConSof Partners had
a strong year, The London office covarg both
the UK and Eurcpe and in 2018 the

chvers feation into Europe has continued with
UK placements accountng fo- less than 30%
of their business. At the end of 2018 they
launched a new brand, 4wa-d Talent, to focus
on the higher volume I markets usirg a lower
cost delivery model to lake advantage of the
opportunities we see trere. In digital ang
design both brands had a challenging year

in the UK, Fowever, action nas been taken to
recduce costs and restructurs the businesses
wh ch has delivered improvements n the
secod half of the year and they arg wall
pasitonad for a more positve 2019,

14 Empresaria Group ple / Annual Beport & Accounts 2018

I tcchnical & industral, Fastlrack saw
rediuced net fee income and prof t after
aweaker second half performance. While
we have seen some positive signs from
investments made in nevs stafl and training
programmes, further investments will e
needsd to return to growth.

In dornestic services, Greyooal de'ivered an
improved second haf performance with higher
productivity resulting in full year operating

proft growth abhead of the pnor year.

In retail tnew houss sales), Teamsales had
angther solid year, althougn the start of 2018
has been slow with Brexit uncertanties
impacting on the UK property market.

The uncenianty around the UK's exit from
the European Union has impagiad on UK
business confidence as we moved through
20°8. Untit now we have seen limited dirgct
impact on aur business., but we remain at
risk from any U< ecanomic slowdaown or
prelonged hiring processes due to fesrs
over Brexit uncertainty,
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Continental Europe

£ 2018 2017 2018 23 Tote

Bgwenug B 96.1 e8.8 92.0 75.2 _76.8

Nzt fee income 15,6 16,5 16.8 14.5 150

Adisted oneraling profit AT B 66 a7 500

% of Gioup nst fee income. 22% 23% 285 30% 34%

Average number of employess 141 125 12/ 123 132

Overview
Countries: Hevende recuced lry 33 and net feg ncome 1he imnpact of these regulatory changes
Austra wias dovin by 53 vith adjusted operating has now been fully reflected vath no further
Firland profr 23% lower, reflecting the impact ol impact expested a1d the business is well
Germany regulation changes n Gerrmany. positioned tomove forward in 2019, aloeit

wit~ ternporary slaffing numbers al the start

Brands: The region s dominated by the Headway cf 2219 lower than al the stast of 2018, The
Headway husingsses n Germany and Aastria. 1he German s'a'fing market is the { fth largest In

Medikurippani

Austian busness nad another soho year but
the Gernmnar businesses have been .mpacted
by thz regulatoty changes that appled
during tne year.

The German tempaerary staffing business saw
the beneft from invvest ments made las: year
in traning and mirketing, with reverug up 5%
on prior year, however margins reduced ¢l
1o the ¢lent mix ard new regulztions. Cost
1eductions helped olfset the margin declne,
s0 profit was in lne wath prior year, Ia the
logisties business the man mpact has been
fram the equal pay regulations which epaly

1o terr porary workers after ning montis of
assiygnment, In line v/i*h ¢lienl demand.
workers have been transitionad ahead o the
equal pay mit ana this ncreased the churn
of worhkers, A number of clents also took 0 ser
Figher numbers of worker s as penmanent
sta’f than normal, in response 1o the new
reglatans that place an 18 ronth bz mit
on kow long a worker car be on a temporary
contraci v the saime comparty.

the wor'd and rermains b ghly a*traclive info
the long term,

Qur Mimisk heattheare bus ness,
Madikunppar, pe-formed in line with the
prior year. Thair market remans challeng ng
due to candidate shorlages.

The irgrease in the overall employee
numbers refllects certain staff moving onto
Headway's payroll from client companies,
This has Jed 10 an increase in the recognisea
head count and net fee incame bu:is neutral
al Iho oporating proit lewck
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Strategic report

Operating review

Asia Pacific_‘

e 2018 N7 o 2213 Zna
Revenue _ 1368 1377 773282 277
Net fee income 24,5 22z 8.6 __142 B 1.2_3”
Adus'ed operating pro‘t 6.1 45 33 2.4' 777”71.87
% of Group nel Ise income 34%  a8% 3% =t
Averaga number of e iployees 1,023 816 (85 5285

Overview

Countries:
Austialia
China

Hong Kong
Incha
Indoresa
Japan
Malaysia
New Zealand
Phlippines
Singapore
Thailand
UAE
Vigtnam

Brands:

Become

BW&P

FINES

M3

LA

Manrog Consulting
Fishwortl Av ation
Skihouse

Revenue grew by 3%, net fae income by
1030 antt adjusted operating profit by 365,
This was primarily criven by Ristreon in
{aviauon) and IMS toffshore rec-uitment
services) which both had strang years,
along with the hirnaround from prior year
losses at BWAP (techn cal & industrial).

Tha Rishwra-tis busness has comtibuted
strongly In tha year, beneht.ng fram the
insestmeant in new bases made in 2017,
However. we see a more chalengng
maikel far 2019,

M3, ouz RPO and offsharg recruitmant
services busnessin Ind-a, delvered strang
growth with mel fee income up by over 50%
anihe prior year, primarily driven ty clents
in tha UK and US. They successiully opened
an office N & new location N Jaipur in the
sesond half of the year. giving them a
piesence in a secord city and an enlarged
talert pool ta recruit from. In early 2012 they
a'€ Moving three sepa-ale offces m
Ahmedabad to a newly bukt modern ofice,
prowiching Figh qualty space to expand irto.

Ir piofessional services. the LMA business
in Sngapore grew net lee income agan and
vith a strong second half perlormance 1s
viell positioned for 200
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N the IT. dhgal and design seclor,

Skilltouse ivJapan was regatnely npacted
By prevously highlighted regulstory changes
whizhied to areducioninits numbear of
terparary wo kers, These regulaiary changes
trrit the amaunt of time workers can be on

a lemyparary contra 2t vt clisnts, Theimpact
of thege has now baen fully reflected and wiin
no further impact expected the business is
wel plzced torebild in 2019, tut rom

a lower starting poinl. The Become brand
had a sold year, performing well in Australia
and Heng Kory. inJanuary 2019 they
openad twa new affices in Brisbane

Ausializ and Auckiand, New Zealand.

In exec.tive search. Montoe Gonsulting
delvered miked results across Scuth East
Asia with an ircrease ir rat [oe ncome but
ar overall drop i operating proft, We wers
pleased to see an improvea second hal®
performzance and we remain confidenrt

i the apporiunites for this brano



Americas

Strategic report / Covernancz / Pnancials

T 20'3 2017 2045 2005 2314
Fevenus 486 388 31.0 20.7 178
Net fes incorme B 8.9 73 4.6 21 T 1.4
Adusted operating proft 2.3 10 0.8 0.c - ?T
% of Groun net fee income 12% 1032 89;- 45 ;__ 33
Averace number of employees 175 132 ag’ 6 88

Qverview

Countries:
Chre

Mex-co

Petu

usa

Brands:

Alternattiva

ConSol Partngrs

Grupao Sohmano

Mzrroe Consuiting
Fharmaceut cal Strategies

Revanue g-ew by 25%, with ne fze income
up by 22%: and adusted operating profic
more than doubling. This reflects bath a
strong performance by ConS2l Partners
nthe US ard the investmeant a Grups
Salimanso in July, which has strengtheed
our presence in Latn America.

In 7 171, digital and desgn sectorn, ConSal
Partners saw & shiong rebound inLhe US,
following a slow first half of 2317, Demand
cont nues o be postre N tne nicha
markets and we are locking a opportuities
to expand ow gtesence.

In Chila, Alternattva rcco ded anothar year
of growth as they continue to develop therr
permanent and temporary businesses

alongside their core outsourcing operation.

In Paru, Grupo Sclimane jeincd the Group

in July and performead in bne vath our
expectations. This wesiment Ircreases our
presence in Latin Anaricg ang we see gooad
opportunities for our businessges ir ine region
10 wonk together to diive growih,

Empresaria Group plc -

in tealthcare, Phaimaceutical Stiategies
mtne JS gelverod a stablo yesr -on-year
pefornance, bul phasing issucs in the last
quarter offset a stronge- first half result. We
continus to see good potental for growth in
thiz business and sector.,

I executive search our Monioe Consulting
busingss ir Chile =aw good groath ano
corunaes 1o develop positively. in Meaxico,
Dus ness vias challenging and there was an
increased |3ss. We are taking the necessary
migasuras 1o turn the business o and and
cartingg to see good opporuntes.n

the market.

Arnual Report & Accounts 2018 17



Strategic report

Key performance indicators

Key to strategy

Building size and scale in key
sectors and geographies through
leading brands

Improve productivity

Adjusted profit before tax

5 114m

Why/how we measure
Adpust zd orofit beforz tag

e 25 g Group's Lndarly ng
pro’t earfornancs ar s staed
Lot 3ot 2307 of Atznghle
assels =0 N Dusin
CcTmbnra e, exeertive
03~ 07 10%s 7 Jizposal
nessesand faryglas
chgrgus um acoa s o ¢f rar-
cortcling shaes.

How we have performed
Adps'od orafit has incrgazed by
470 i 2018 result nsrverather

=585

year o record £ for e Groug.

Net fee income

72 3m

Why/how we measure
Net fazincemz s the GrouR's
proreale revenu s’ measare
nzarpeEhing botn pare snent
11355 MRrgn
sty and
twokzis ord ORL

How we have performed
Natfee reone hasir e i

Ly 222 2078 vatn v
performar .

153 C’\(,-"\CJC Elat
ard Jagzzan

Adjusted, diluted earnings per share

1210

Why/how we measure

Alusted dlutesd ean o
e mezs e bimg
porformarco oGroups

carrrgs fioriss sharshol
Adjusted ezrrngs 15 tzho Dt e
trose ke b oxchudiod roadu
frofl vefore 12x alor 2 e e
related tas mepacls,
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How we have perfarmed
Adustad cluted ezrinas oo

sharg has fallken gl g
200 Bwirntme ngraz,
offs20 ¢y & Chdnyge v br e ik
it

030 DS rEsses wharg
s2ngre o

B PN LY BRI

oniroll -

D5 Pt
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Debt to debtors ratio

30%

Free cash flow

o
5 O6m

Pre-lax
Post-ax

Why/how we measure
Free cash fiovi s tha level of cash
gara stad tnat 13 aatable fer

i men. by tre Group. His
calodlated as nat cash rom
Goaraling actiats o g cazh
fowe stztarmers, adjusted Ko exclude
viziking capital movemeants -elated

Lords, Ay ani~ternangnal
Losingss tax cashflows oz te
12 50 ap.2-tax frez casn
Ton gL i alz pesented

Conversion ratio

How we have performed
Fige cashfow rmpioved aning
yoarwtnbnc n2re’t of lows tax
cgsh ol ows of'set by walthng
cepia’ osifions Pie-tex cash
ficws are very stacls and for 2018
rept2sent g- BA%- conss sionof
adjusted polt be'oratax to cask
In 20'8 cur sromg o350 fiow
enabled usto invest In Grupo
SolTara wnls resucing our
adjasted N2l LEU and Ll sing
ar - creased dv.dend.

170%

Why/how we measure
The CO™vE $I0N rald measures
oy efioent woarg stegnvertng
o et foaincome taprat T, 1S
calzulated as adjus cd operahng
pro‘t as a cerceniags of re:

f2e ncome

How we have performed
The cerwersion re'io Fas
ncreazed azam ntheyear We
corbrug o foeus 0 et TQIENDIES
a2 prod.cl iy intre busndess
wtn the longe- term an~citien o
aereuirg a 267, cutners on cAn o,

Why/how we measure
The rayar ty of the Gioup's cea:
iE sho 1= mand matcrea a i
visr4im g capial teadtererts
Tre G ouesdebt o dsbteis rato
1z cateularsd as ad usted el ¢
asapaicentage of trads
Ac)usted net eeon exalug
held inrespes: of pilet bonds.

Staff productivity

How we have performed
Thz GroJup™s deipt fo d2blTrs rang
hazraducsd dunrg ineysan, Ve
contirg ta focus onradacng ths
o.ealllgal & debtwththe
madurr s ramof reduc g

the bt to dsotons raho ta 255

1.72%

Why/how we measure
Staf preduc ity
eftect vz our staff are at dol verng
incgnie or ing Group g
mcasured 2z (0% ol fee nsmire
ovdedyy tlal statf sty

5 ra: how,

How we have performed
Stafrpro sty has reraned
re'at wely Lnchangsd 17 theyean
Aosy part ot the Group's
strategy 1s focused or
ooty stalt croduct oty
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Strategic report

Finance review

“QOur strong cash flows
have enabled us to invest
in the business and
reduce our debt levels.”

Tirm Anderson
Group Finance Director

Revenue

53068m

2017 £357.1m

Net fee income

570 35m

2017 £69.4m

Adjusted operating profit

+06%

Adjusted profit before tax

7 114m

2017: £11.0m

Overview

The Group Fas delvered anotaer year of
record profits with adyusted proft before tax
wngreasirg 4% o £11.4m and reportad proht
belore tax ingreasing by 16%¢ 10 £9.4m,

We nava contaued 1o make progress or
reaucing our debt levels with adjusted net
debt dower to £17.1m (2017 £19.5m) anc our
cebit 1o debtors rato redacing to 3645 (2014
45%z), whilz also cortnung to nves: in the
bus ress, inciuding the mvestrent in Grupa
Solimano in July 2018,

Income statement
Mel fee mcone increased by 4%, 6% in
oonstant currency. Adusted aperating preht

noreased ny 6% 8% in constant curtency,
reflecting growth gcross three of our four
regions. A detailed anzly sis by region is
providad N the oparating review an pages
1410 17, Ih order Lo impiove Lansparency
we have shown cenlra costs ssparately
ather than allocating these across the
“aginns. Cantral costs have increased ©
£3.7m (2017 £2.6m) refizcting investments
n conh @ statt, seofud g the 2ppoinimaertt
of Rhora Driggs as Clief Operating Cff cer,
noiggsed consditancy costs for projest work
arcind new teeology ncreased bonus
provisions reflect ng the lower levels paid
tox 2017, vl the inclusion in 2017 of
a crecht for share hased payments.

2018 217 Smenzngs
Revenue {(tm) o - 366.8 3571 -3% -5
N_erifee ncome (£myj 7_’2.37 60.4 -4% -6%
Opatating profit (£im) 10.3 8.7 i
Adjsted operaiing proft €my° T 123 16
Proft before tax (2m) . B 9.4 8.1
Adj(,sle;d ot before tax {Em)” o 1.4 1.0
Biiuted earnings per sha:erlp_) | 24 . 79
Adjusted diluted carl‘-lngs per share (p) 124 12.5 -3%

T AT usad 0 sxclude
330 G Busirs
33,_5t2z far any relst

AN oImster s turtemoy 1T 3hant 3 Ta Lt Oy brar
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Adjusted operating profit bridge

Ad) sted profit befcre tax bas incrcased by
435, B35 in constant curraney, 1o £ 1.4im wath
the increase i~ operatng nro being partly
offsel by an inceemse nthe nel nterzst cost
melud ng m'erest pavable on tax charges
follovsing “2x aud ts. Heported proft before
tax shows a greater increase of 1G%, 18%

in consiant cuntency, as the 2017 figue
inckided a l2ss o~ the (isposal of
busingsees nct regeates in 2018,

Adjusted, diluted ea:nings per shaie

have fallen by 3% to 17.3p. This reflests an
increase in tne allocatian of prolts to non-
cantroling interes:s. Those busesses with
migher non-contraling oxnesship rave
perfoiried stongly releve 10 the rast of the
Group in 2078 resu’ting m this increased
allacation. Reported diluted ea-nngs per
sharc increascd by 15% to 9.1p.

Taxation

The total tax charge for the year is £3.6m
(2017 £3.6m), representing an effective tax
rate of 385: (20°7. 44%). On an adjusted
basis, the effective rate is 345t (2017 375%).
Based on the tax rates in the countngs in
which we operate. an average 1ax rate of
307, (2017: 32%) would be expectad. The
gtlective 1ate is huger than this dueto a
number of factons:

¢ Theleve! of non-dedustible expensas
in the year (£0.3m}.

» Witkholding and dividend taxes resu ting
f:om overseas operations (£0.2m).

s Defenred tax assets not recognised
for cenain tax losses arount the
Group (£0 3mi.

Strategic report /7 Governsnce / Financals

Balance sheet

Trade ana ot ar eceivables includes trade
receivables of CARIM {2017 £43.2my), 112
ncrease beng manty due 1o thg investrient
i1 Grupo Salimano and the groathin
rese~ue i the yea. A erage debitor ¢a,s
fou the Group in 2018 we e 42 (2017 41),
vith dabion days at 31 December 2018
0044 (2017 405 Tre bad debt exnerse
dunng the yea: was C07m (2017: LG.Em).

Cash and borrowings are discussed in
the financiny section velaw,

Cash flow

“he Group is ighly cash generative with

a strong correlation between pre-lax profits
and cast: flows. The Groupn measures its frae
cash flow a3 a key performanca indicator,

2018 20m7 :
em e ard rl2fires this as ret cash fram operahng
- aclivites per the cash fow staleiment

Sooduril and excluding cash Fows refated to pilot bond
intangille assets 54.8 54 oHCuding cash Fowis related io p -

labliities (see financing scction below),
Trada and other
receivables 57.3 531

2018 207

Cash and cash £m i
equralents 25.4 5.9 Nat cash fmmi
COther assels 36 24 operating achivibes per
Assets 1411 1355 casgh flaw statement 4.5 G.4

Cash flows 1elated 10
Tiade and other kot bonds 22 {23
payavles {41.9) {42.0} Free cash flow 87 41
Borniow 1gs {37.2) (379} Free casi* Mlow
Other habibtios {7.4) {6.7) {pre-tax) 9.6 9.6
Liabiies {86.5) (86.6)

he increase n free cash flow n 2018
Eeliasgéts 54;5748_9_ carpasad o 2017 refects lorve- tax

Goodwll and intangitle assets represent
some aof tha largest assets on the balance
sheel and arise from Ihe ‘nvestments the
Group has made. As at 31 Dece rber 218
the balance was €54 8m {2017 £54.1mj. The
mavements in the year were £2.0m arising
on the acquisiton of Grupe Solimana {see
note 13). £1.8M of amortsation of intangible
assels (2017: £1.8m), fore’gn exchange gains
of £0.6m (2017 loss of £1.0m,, software
additions of £0.2m (207, £0.1m) and ar
impanment charge of £0.3m (207: Cnil),

payments in the year. As an internatanal
business the Group's tax cash flows can be
more volalle bt a3 can be seen from the
1able, pre-tax the Group’s free cash flows are
much more stzhlae, Froe cash flow (pre-tax)
for 2018 equates to 843: of aduisted profit
before “ax (2017; 87%) cemonslrating the
Group's ahilty to convert profits nto cash.
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Finance review continued

In 2018 the Group utilised its free cash flavy
as follows:

2018 2017
£m £m

Frea cash flow 6.7 4.1
Acquisition o
busingsses (net of net
fundgs acquired) 1.9} 5.8
Capital expenditure (1.5} (0.9;
Dividends paid to
sharebolders {0.6) (0.6}
Dridends pad 1o non-
controlling interests (0.4) (A}
Furchase of own
sha‘es (0.4) 01}
Other 05 (0.6)
Recmctioni(increase)
n adjusted net debt 2.4 (3.8)

Acqusition of busingsses principally refates
to the investment in Grups Solimand tsez
Lelow 1o irore detalls) with cash outllows
of £2rm offset by £0.2m of net funds within
e acqui.ed busiiess,

Capital expenditure increased to £1.5m
reflecting investments in o’f ces in Inda,
Cradends paid to non-controlling Interests
veare £0.4m and there vas a cash outflow
of £0.4: for the purchase of own shares
wih ch vere subseguenily transferred 1o the
Empresaria Errployee Bene’t Trust {(EBT)
Ag at 31 December 2018 a clal o' 576,204
shares are hela in the FBT ta be used to
sataly the exercise ¢ options vested under
the Company's iong termineznteze slans.
As at 31 December 2078, 2.0m eptions
Pad vested but not been exerc sed.

Financing

The Group's treasury funstion is managed
centrally and the Greup's financial risk
managemeant policies are set out innote 24.

2018 247
£m Fr

Cash amd cash
eqaialents 25.4 25.0
Piot bords__ 63 75
Adusted cash B 201 77: R:Y)
Owverg-aft faci'™ es {22.0) {20.2)
Invoize finarcing [9.7) 97
Bank loans {5.5) 17.8)
Total borrowings h (37.2) {37.9)
Adjusted net dabt (7). (9.5

Ad,azted net debt at 31 December 2018

180 JCed 1o £17.1m {2017: £19.5m). Adjusted
net deb! excludes cash of ©H.3m {2017,
£7.6m) held to match prlot bonds within the
Rishworth Aviation business. Where required
by the clent, plot bonds a<e taken at the
start 0" the pilet's contract @ are repayalile
Lo he plot of the chent during tne course

of the comtsact or if terds early, There g

70 legal restr ction over tais casn, bt gven
the reganement o 2pay it over a three yea:
Deriod. and that to hold these 13 a ciient
requrernent, we exclude cash equal to the
amount of the bonds when calculzt ng ow
adjusted net dest measure. At the start of
2012 a major client has removed the
requiremen’ to hold bonds anc as a resull
an addtional £1.9m of bends will be repad
in 2519, 1h 5 bas no impast on our adjusted
net dekbt measure.

During 2018 the momh end average adusted
net deot positior was C18.0m (2017: £21.3m)
wthahigh of £21.2m at 28 Feoruary (2017
C25.4m at 31 May) arnd a low of C17.1mal

31 Becember (2017 £18.8m at 31 January).

Gur detn to dedtors ratio {ad usted ret gelst
as a percentage of trade recetvaules) bag
recduced to 3835 (2017: 45%5) reflacting the
reduction in the levels of debt in the year,

We contnue to be focused an reducing

our debt levels wih the medium tern aim

ol recucing the denat 1o debtor rato ta 25%.
In the short tenm we expect to see our
acfusied net debt reciuce a~d currently da
nct plan lo make any sign icant invastments
tnal woukd increase 1his.

fora orawiirgs veeie C37.2im (2017 ©37.9m
beirg mzsthy bank ovzrchrafts (€22.0m) andd
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invomse Inareng (9.7 ), The Group's
boiawings are principally hefd to fund working
capital recpui-emerts and are predominantly
cunent barrowinas due v/ilin one year Ag at
31 December 2018, £5.2m of honrowings arg
shown as ncn-carent. the majorty of which is
the arrount drevem under tie Group's revolvng
credt faciity.

Adusted cash lotalled E20.1m exclud ng
£5.3m held restect of pilot bonds. Under
{FRS itis arecuitement 1 shaw overdrafl
and casn balances gross. even where thay
ais part of a formal pool ng atangesmert. Tha
adjusted cash balance of £20.1m includes
T5Imn 1espect of such anangeme~ts
where Ue net positon is overdra

ML

The Group marriains a rangs of facilires

o manage its vaor<ing cap tal and hinaaci g
reqarerents, A 31 Decenibe 2018 the
Group ad faciies otalling £49,4m

(2077 £30.5n°).

2018 2017
Tm .
UK lacilities
- Overchafts 7.5 8.6
- Revolving cradt
facilty 10.0 10.0
= Tarm loas - 2.0
- hygice nancing
_ toly 180 130
Total Uk facilities 30.5 33.6
Continerital Europe
faclues 12.9 127
Asia Pacific fas fites 1.5 13
Amercas facilties 4.5 2.0
Total faciiities 49.4 50.5 :
Lndrawn faciity
(erclucing invoice
frwancing) 16.7 181

Anadditional £5.0m ascordion

aange rent, cannecled 1o the revoling
credit facility, nas been agreed in principle
with the hank but wauld need new credit
appronal for any drawdown,

During the year a German tern loan of €5m.

which was due to be repaid in 2018, was

refiranced by extendrg the Genman i
overdralt by €sm, ard the Group's §1.5m

UK overdraft facilty was cancelled fallowing

the implerentation of a local S2im facihty n

the US 12017, The UK tenn nan was fuly



rapaidin the yea 1 Ine vethits paymen:
schedue The irvaice fingncing faclities n
Chile have beern increased reflacting thair
Business granvth

Ag part o the revolving credit facility we nesd
10 meet bank covenant tesfs on a quarter'y
basis. All tests have been met curing the
year. The covanants and our performance
aganst them ag at 31 Oecember 2018 are

as follows:

Fc:a'}ant Target  Aftua!
Neldebt EBITDA  <25tmes 08
lrteres: cover >58.0times 17.0
Dabt service cover > 1,725 times 4.4

Management equity

The management eguity pilosophy is a
key part of our business mode!, The madsal
typically operates as follows;

Acguisition of shares

Al least 515t of shares ae hald by tmpresara
witn the halance being eld by managamant,
either hav ng been retained when Empresaria
imt.ally invaested, or subsaquently acquired by
them at fair veloae. Snares retained by
managerrent upon iritial investment typically
have no malerial chanaes 16 their nghts and
are tenvied tirst genaratan sharas, Shares
subsequently sold 10 ranagement. e ther
because first generation shares have been
acquired by Empresatia o where issoed to
ncentvisc the next tier of management, are
tenmed sccond ganeration shares. Second
generation shares are acguired by
management al a fair value wiich is raduzed
lo make it micre affordable by sefting a proht
\treshold level such that these shares only
create value onge that thesho d is excesced.
Second generation shares typ cally have
restrctio s such as imited or no enttlement
10 dvidends,

Holding period

Shares can be offered foi sale after &
specfied holding perod. typically four o fre
yoars. Shaies cannzt all be sold inone year
recqu ring 2 M nmum of twg of thee yaars for
full disposal. Wrile management can choose
to offer the'r sihares fur sale, the cecimien
purchizse these 1s solely al the discretion of
Empresaria and there are no put or cal
options in plase. Frmpresana’s decision

1o by shates s based on each sonecific
gination wth consderation gen to
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maragemsnt successwon plais. recan)
trad g perfarrrance and the potential
Gt t°¢ bugmess n the next few years,

Valuation

The valuatzn basis is agreed up tront and
tlocumentedd in tne sharetolders” ag-ezments,
The valaation is typ cally basedon tt e
arerage proft after tax for the prevo s reg
years using [mpresania's trad ng muluple
{share price dvided by adusted EPS) less 0.5
with a cap of 10, to ensure that tis earmnngs
ascretive “o Fmpesaria’s shareholders,

Eased on the Group's resu'ts for Ine yeat
encled 31 Decembar 2018, and using the
valuat on mechanisma in sha eholder s’
agieemeants but ignonng holdirg pet od
requiremants, the potemal payrment 1o asgaicc
nor-con'toling interests in fullin 2009 viotr'd
be £11.0m based on Empresaria’s share price
at clase on B March 2019, and could be up to
amax; nun of £14.4m using the imaxirmum
it that cculd be applisd. Thergis no
legal oblgation on the Group to acquire the
shargs held by management at any tme

In some situations the corsideration payaoks
Lnder the shareholders’ agreements for
second genaration squity may be greater
than the far vaiue of the shares under IFRS
13 such as where there are restrictions aver
tne tights of the shares. typicaly over
dividends. The valuaton mechanist in the
majcrity of sna-eholders’ agreemen:s tses
an earnings Mutiple, wirch does not
diferentiate between shares with testncted
rofits and thage wihout restictions. (7 the
price pad for the shates s n excess of this
fair valua, this additional amou paid s
recognises as a charge in the income
statament. These charges are (realec!

as adjusting iterns when prasenting our
adjugted proat and earmings measuras,

During tre period the Group increasad

i*s mwvestment in LMA Singapore from 6050
1o 7552, in Teamsales from 959 10 96735
M IMS fram 71956 10 71.43%5, n Monroe
Irclonesia from 8G% to 1C0%0 ard in BWEP
fiom 88,47 to 82.5%5, Total consideration
was less than £0.1m.

Investment in Grupo Solimano

0 July the Gioop invested in 60% of 1ng
shaies 11 Grupo Solmane, an established
wroader of outsolrged and temporany stafing
services in Pery. Tota! consideration is £2.2m,
comprising cash paymerts of £2.0m ir 2018
and a furthe £0.2m exprécted 1o be pid
2019. The remzining 40% interest is hald

by senior managemant in lng wit ou
mznagement equity philosophy. Managoment
have entersd into o standard shareholde s’
agreemant with shargs expected 1o be held for
a minimunm holding perod of four yea's belore
ey can be offered for salz over 2 minimgee: of
3 years wath ne obgation on We Group
acqure them.

On acquistion. goodwilt and intang ble
assets totaling £2.0m have been recognised.
Mase delails are provided in nate 13,

Dividiend

Buiing the year. the Group pad a dviziend
of 1.320 por smare i11e3pect of the year
ended 31 Cecember 2017, For the year
endad 31 December 2015, the Boardis
prooosing a dividend of 2,0p pe share,

an rerease of 52% awd demanstaating the
steznyth of the Grour™s bzlansce sheet ant
the Board's confidence n e Group's
mprospects. Subject 10 shareholder appiosal
at the Arnual General Maeting. the dvigend
will be paig on 31 May 2019 to shareholders
on the register 0n 10 May 2019,

Going ¢oncern

The Bozrd has undertaken a recent and
t~orough resies of the Group's budget,
forecasts ard associaled risks and
senaitivities. Gnen the business foecasts
and early tiading performance, 11e Group
18 expeciad to be acle o contnue in
operat oral existence 1¢r the toreseeatsle
future, being a perod of at l2ast 12 months
from the date of approval of the accounts
As a result, the go'ng concern basis
confinues 1o be app-opriate in preparing
the financial statemeants. Further detalls
o1 going concetn ate found it note 1,

Tim Anderson
Group Finance Gireclor
12 Maich 2212
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Investment case

Focused strategy * Bulang size and scale in key sectors and
designed to get the geogaphies thiough leading brands,

t t of * lrprove productiaity through irvestments in the
most cut of our cen'ral teamn ro provide more suppo-t and o identfy
businesses and brands ad deliver synergies.

Far more information
pages 11 and 12

Diversified peop'e ¢ Mult-brended v th nicte sector experts enabling
. our businesses 1o deliver a high gaalty setvice in
focused business model g g
that ahgnS management * Out geographical and secto dive sificabon has
with shareholder interests enabled Us to delver proht growth even when faced
with challonges in parts of the byusiress inchuding
01 2018 with the imact of regulatony changes in
Germany and Japan,
s Managomeant aquty philosophny motivates sen or
management and a'gns their ntarests with ot
sharenolders.

+ Range of stafing seivices Wi permaient, tempoiary

For more information ard conlract, and RPO/offshote recruitment.
pages 8and 9

Cash generative * Sigoficant tr.ee cash fbw geﬂerated eat_:h year gilowing
business s ta irmest i the business while reducing our dalst

s Plogressive dridend policy.

For more information
pages 21 and 22

Track record of growth » HFecorc levels of adjusted profit before tax delvered in
each of the tast 4 years.

For more information
pages 18 and 19
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A further

+£500k

invested in central
team for 2019

Continental Europe
adjusted opetating
profit down

23%

yet Group adjusted
operating profit up

6%

Free cash flow

£68.7/m

(2017: £4.1my)

Dividend up

186%

2014 10 2018

4

consecutive years of record
adjusted prafit before tax
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Risks and uncertainties

The Board has ultima’e responsibilty for
estah’shing the Group's appetite for nsk and
for effect ve risk management across lne
Group. The ris< management process
followed by tre Board 1s daesigned to mprove
the | ke hood of delivering againg! stralagy.
protect tha interests ot shareholders,
rrizrove the quality of decisio~-making and
help safequard our assets. We have an
established process for inentifying end
monitaring the key operal onal and strategic
risks in the Group. The 11k manageient
piocess incoiparatas a risk appetite policy
and a Group risk regster.

Risk appetite policy

“he Bozrd wishes 10 minim se the exposure
10 risks but accepts ana recognises a trade-
ofl exsts between risk and reward In
delverng our stiategy. The nsk appette has
been reviewsd and approved by the Board
and is presented as part of the annua
budgeting pracess. The Boad has sel

a number of internal targets that fame its
appoite kor nsk, wih boundaries def ning the
Imits 1ne Group should operate within and

Risk matrix chart

1 Pyoliticat anc social changes
2 Economic environmenrt

3 Loss of kay stafl

4 Irvestments poorly execued

& Fimanzal {furding ard
fareign exchange)

6 Cyber security & data protection
7 Management canacitly

8 Competition

9 Exposure to key clients

10 Payments 10 temporary worke s

trigger ponts to hels rmon tor and idenafy
vhere theie s anincieased nsk of reashing
the boundaries.

Risk register

The Gro.p's nsk register 1s reviewed hy

fhe Board at each meetng with risks added,
arrended or removad as appropnate and
actons updated, The Group regster is
prepared basea on indwidual iand registers
which are updated dunng tine annual budgst
cycle end reviewed regularly during the year
voth senior management. The Audit
Cormmiltee oversees the mternal control

and financial control framewionks to help
Tiligate rnisk.

Group control envircnment

Group companies operate under & systam
of nterna’ controls which includes, but s

not kmited to: a clear delegated autionty

to operational managenant; formal risx
appraisals thiough the arnual budge:
rrecess: a comprshensve faancial 1eooting
systen: investmient and capial expenditure
approval processes: and sell-cotificaton by

Likelihood
Maetum [NEsaY
L=
i}

1w

Loy

operating company managemert of
complianse witiv controls and Group
policies end precedures, Tne day ) day
ris< manageme st :$ the responsibity of
tie brand Managing Crestcrs and thsis
reqularly reviened dunng meelings vath
tra Executie Diecton s,

The nsk managerment process identifies
a nu e of nsks across the Group, as
cletailed] 11 *he chart below. The princpal
1isks that are most kkely to affect Eusness
operat-ans anz Fence the Fnangial resuls
and delivery of slrategy are explaired in
more datail in 1ne ollowing pages.

6 2 3
4 5 1

7 10
Ned om g
Impact

Empresaria Group ple / Annaal Saport & Accounts 2018
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Risks and uncertainties continued

1. Political and social change

Impact on the business

Tre Group’s bosiressas are subjact (o egislatier,
regulahicn grd chzngss in palit cal sent ~entin gzer
of thaif Iacangns. 10 paricular. £M18 1T Hacls ‘empdiay
recou FTENY whichisregalai=s to prolzet tha ngivis a- d
rastment af tamoorary v or=ars 87010 devsioping
sraffing mark21s whera naw 1eg.1ah0" s &2 IntrodLced
as 1Ne naret davelops A-y ¢rangas talabour
regulat ong, tzxlaws o politcal views on e statbng
indastry could impzct ontne rranner inw ich any
G Ness gr the Group 34 & whole, operates and
caJls treretoeg atiact trg fimanaal patfarmance of

tre Groun, Insorma térntonies 2 redtd by enticense ¢
requrad. Irizcal lzws and regulat o3 arg not fol'owee
tooulylgad to sanchons e ng toksa agamst the
pusness eludryponalies “nesz andlcences
bengre.ckad.

Gcoal changas impatl ~ov g8 Searc far |00s
a3 ged thagara bikaly tal oo Gor Bus nassss -
10 targe’ thelozanens where peoplz want 1o vy
They reeq Lz able iz ioantfy and comeumis
vrn CATdiLE s b e e ol v “es areClle

Change in risk profile -

InGarnary nay regdaticra on eausl pay bmit ng the
lens™h ol tme 2 workes can ba a e nnrany waork
ca~"ama eftact dorngthe year. Trus ragatvely
rrpacted our bus ~ €550 Germany But thempsc s
., abaorbe s a~d the cusiness s post onazsts
GoTvy 1S Temparay staling Aoer2rs agaa -n 20
albet fom 3 1vesr case,

i the Ukl the Govern~ent nas confirmed plans to accly
IAHIS fab oh ofanfes &~ indl. L als tax employ1ent
slaluz:1othe pre & sor lrom 2020.3We are revawng
oLr crora: andt approach but do not eorreritly expact
I 21 have 2 maer irpac: oo our business.

Praxit corth "u=s b Create uncestanty for Hus “€3seq
creralingin tha UL ans Cortraatal Fu-aps, Whiz
1718 Pas a0t had 2 $1gn7 Cant Negative Impact 1or ur
Dus v N 20°8 we see trus 115k POreasng aswa
2018, Trgrais no cur-an' 2xpscizho” gl
Brexiw hegnioarty regainaly wopacr enplaymert
=rrelg z0f legelat on or regllat ons,

A new l2gislalon ook eflect in 2018, retrg
s hirre g warker cacwork on a tamaovary contas
g lmtng "8 UMe g pesha™ can e cutsodrs
Thase ks e nzgat vils i~ pact=d 2 bus ness in Jana~
n FOE at haing Now absered the impact they ave
pos uoned by grew tme sumir 225 300 T 300G,

How we mitigate the risk

ths Grows ¢l ~onrors thelega and "egatator
ewirgnment it Cum markats, in Lo tioulas W srewe
Cuerata 1st P 2y rscrLt el 23 e 1ered wilk
grsater lenels of regulztion The Group has

et larshigs of noanm, [Qcal moustry a5500 8 uns
ANDWE Us= prafes s eI wiih goodd 1eg
krowledgs and undersiand ng of &
AN fabgar regulziens (0 ensure wi: ars .
I 12 e n1es 1IN wh ch vee Oparals.

Our pug nese el reducss the NeQaw 2 IMpazt kFor

polucaland sa0a chiargs

ol

Dovers licahon and Dalance soros s
regons helas g Luce hs ootethal imoac e
any ¢Ng 2red

ure A0

Foou2 0n kay B0ONOITIC CERYES MEANS e arg
ta-gatitq tre man cartds wharg caaridates
want 13 work.

By davelomrgl2idng branss = gur 3 Fweae

i s hels ng us o react to cha~ices
rlegislal g7, a2 welk g3 makng il eas er 1 altag
Landig1ies telauge of gur rsoutahe” and knosledgs.

2. Economic environment

Impact on the business

The Leslare aree of slatn g Lulimesses has
mgtor cally srown & 22 ong oo elatcriwe the
Womarraci P2 ecgnom es T when e, o
Ar @oramic shavdiwn sl nroalt gt derati iy
FECAG LTSN serv e and could reducs he

Grouls ol

Change in risk profile

Traglons’ ecendl™
allk2s gcorom es T
ot leels than re
zeadamgly nrer-brtke 3ad irs
uncetanty, 59 wataka a catous veas on thesa
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How we mitigate the risk
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3. Loss of key staff

Impact on the business
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4. Investments poorly executed

impact on the business

Tne-21s a risk of los ng valLe frorm poody exgcuted
rvestments, I aninvestmen? s overva'ued the Groug
wll oay oo much far it and nsk a lower reétun o
r.gstment in t-e falure frem profits being generated
A pogrly executed Aregraian M9 the Group coukl
lzad 0 lost walu2 or 128t opTariunilies.

Change in risk profile ~

D nng e yzartte 5o pinvesed . Grups Salmang
" Sery The ousinzesisbeng rragretzd mio e
Groud and ~a35 52 fa parforrmed o« ine varn
expectz'ors

1N January 20°% o_r Become CrardizLnched nay,
ofiice: n Brisbang Asirel W ALcxland

Naw Zealand. whilz in the UK vz lasncnaa the
Ayward 1aleri brand n Dacamber 2018,

Wz centnge 1o ook for ~ew irestmer spcartaniies
far e Groug,

How we mitigate the risk

Al matgnia investinass rus” e Bosrd approval.

lree3tmants Mmust nave aclzardy defned infegration

v Exgoutng D rastors Pay oz respons ity 120
plemeniaton. Gue ail zence “ricnus rees 1o B
dupontcmn. g nsks ident fed o
Furding r2guremants rmust be ta<en into accout bt
anz re sutf 02t 372 aTerognale Tunar I3 N piste

BTG50,

Irvestment m orgin ¢ growth o bolt-on agquisiticns
Igr existing bra-ds 1s donz witn full invclvemant of local
manzgement 83 they are dv'ng the processand ta
ensyre ths bes! chance of sLccess

Virh our gecple foo_sad bus ness model. tiz it of trg
paapleis the meitimpo-tant facior in any rvest~zn°
ansiis the first ortar a that must be 2t cefore any
IMues T ent ash ity 13 parsuad,

S

5. Financial

Impact on the business

Tna Grouo s 1 :ant on sebt fnanz Ny te ‘und ihe
workng cacital of the business.

fiha Gioun was unacle o secure fundng at cun ent
2.2l 4t coutd be ‘orced o dispose S parts ¢ tre
oUsiNess 1o recay tha eashng asct

Ar , incraasain interest reles wilingrease costs and g2
12auce the proft nire Dusicess

I“dzbt 2vels ars too high inete1s an GRPortuTty ¢ost
Fomngt De ng aile to pursue Investment copatiumit 25
to fursher develoo the Group.

Ey speraing fom 21 coonmes tha G-oup s expesed ta

moements in fora grcurency 1a'es. The Groug reparts

r13arhrg but has perat ars mcountrias with ditsrent
c.tremcias, Movenents nexshangs rates impact the
raco ing of Grouy profitabilty and may devalus tne
cas~ and azzats alound ine Gron,

Change in risk profile -~

Inte-es raes ~ave ncreased dunng theyea- leaarg to
hgresleresl costs ans 113 expecred that thesew |
rereass lartnar n 2018,

Sierhtg excha~ o2 “ates reman valatle and 2ithough
t-g ratirpact In 2018 has bezn comwataingly small
I e patanial -emams Kr this toFa.e 2 sigrifican:
Impant on tne Groue's ~asults

Thz Group bas an noreased 12vzl of Gross-bo der
galas wihich crgalos iIncreassd eAposure a5 sales
are in 8 eifferent eurensy Tom 92 cost Dase.

How we mitigate the risk

Tra Groug francas its ogerahons 1vaagh 1S olerating

w45h fius s, DanK DO 1ow rgs &' 1:bunyg new eJuity,

T-gzsury mzaagement s lad by tne Group firance

t2zm, who rarags ard mantor ‘und Ng requramen’s
~3 Az~ the Group's <2y tanxing relaionships.

Thas Groun 5 exposad to mer ements i 1-terest rates.

Tha Grouo dees not currently hedga this exposure but
monita s mave~an'sic the relevant rates to be sble ta
react *rhay mova aduersely

Azeros mately two thrds of the Group’s busmass s
qutsidz 1he L= 'esu\mg I EX5050 2 1O MOVETTEnLsS T
exchangs rat23 on ansianng overseas co2ratons Tha
Grouodoaz nat curremy hadge th-g ris< as thergiz to
soime degrea aratural hed3a from ow neagrauhiczl
awmars fication, Inra-Croup palances era keugadwhere
possbla _sing cash or ovardafi calancestoat as 2
nasural currency ~adge.

Alrntad au roer of farward cont re Us2a ko
hagae I-ading currency asks for IMS in India

6. Cyber security and data protection

Impact on the business

The nis< of cyver-atlacks s now an ewor preserl ong
sclar BLSINESSs envirgIMent. with Rrezts rom
truses or sensitive nforT shon beirg
acressad wihout a_thotisaien,

A soccesiul breach could lzadto theloss Ll sgrs ne
data onclents or cant deles. $amage 10 o brand
re,3 L tat on, busniess Aistuption or the loss o
conrenroaly sens bva rtormaton,

Witvircrgasingly st nge-t regulatony ervironments
2pard data grotection therg s an argong risk of
fal- g @ com wly witn regulatons, lead ng to fines
& duamage to brand r2our20on,

Change in risk profile -

The tarea® from 1nis 1S shvay: changng and as w2 gr o
awr brarda 1N size rey are ~oel<ely 1o be atarg for
Fackers anu o mngls

haw [23812° onwas ntadaced i~ Vay 2013
{Seneral Data Pr on RegJlatos) woich

i plenranied ngworgess fao ind v daals and cromctes
g30a (i3°a goveInence &7 d accountaciity a7 ongst
o gansatcns Tharg ars s gohcan fnesfarnon-
cormphance. The 3roup has 1ewe,.ea its p oesses
wona gt of tus legelstion ard maze ire crangss
reaured I gnure compl atce.

How we mitigate the risk

WWe hzi e poloies in pface to safeguz-o a3sats a~d data
% thintne Groop, Wa bava claceg anainoreased
aro”adis on cyber s2ourty with annua' Cyoer secun’y
rov e s, aining and we alsa use extenzl adngers o
man T e secunty of our Group websies and
syslems to meet a minimun 8°an sa d of sesunty.

AWa mave put processesin placs 19 ensare compla e
& 1hha naw GoPRIzgis'aton a~dgomtin_g o —onita
coO~PLANCS 200 0%s CLr DLEINESSaS,
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Corporate social responsibility

Emoresaria bekeves that corporate and social responsivility is an important part of the Group's Culture and looxs (1 adopt gaod pracuce in these
argas. e Board gives due consideration to risks arising from social, environnrental and ethical ssues as part of its ongoing risk review pracess.
We have a responsibility towards all stakehglders and beeve thig is an important considerauon for he long-term growh of the business.

Local communities

A positive contributor

to the community

The Group and senior managerment are
fully supportive ana encourage stall to
work with therr local communities anc
charitatile concemns, The decisian o what
cantribution te make is dfown 12 the focal
staff in each country.

Group cormpanies are involved In a range
of activities to provide help, support or
mongy (o focal communities &1 thaiy
counlry of aperation. Scme examples of
the work beng done are detalled below,

» In tie UK, LMA teaim member s paid
a weekly visit to a schooel in London
1o read with chiloren, They also raised
aver £12,000 for the NSPCC through
a variety of ditferent fundraising
initialives ingluding & London 1o
Brighton bike ride, taking part in a
Tough Mudder, sky diving and trer
artival charity iz,

In Thailand the team continued their
spansarstip of The Gitt O Happiness
Foundation, a charity for poverty-
stricken children and their families.

Gleycoat donated prizes for Kerry's
Sparkles Charity and a black tie

call raising money for Hreast cancer
charities as well as taking part in Save
the Children's Christnas jumper day.

* Begome continued to wark clasely
with Shillngton, a specialist design
education o-ganisation. Fach year the
Become team identify star students
whose work really stands out and look
ta help them find thei- first rales in the
compettive design industry.

tn the USA, Phaimaceutical Stategies
raised funds for the Boston Ghildren’s
Hespital by participatirg in their annuzl
Sk run and collected toys and other
presents for arganisations that provide
Ctrist ias presents for children and
families in need.

In Chile, Alierpattiva supporled the
foundlation Case Sagrada “amilia by
bringing presents to the chidren living
there. The foundation provides suppart
to the farmies of children wno are
underging cancer treatmsant.

At Headway, in Germany they dormated
Christmias gifts to support a children’s
flome N Landshut in assocciaton with

a local bhookshop, while i1 Austria they
donated Crrstmas gifts to a charity that
houses homgless children.

Inthe UK, ConSol Fartners supported
CAl M, a London hased male suicide
charity, through a numier of events
neluding digas down Friday’s. po<er
nights and sponsored toothall shirt
wearing durirg the world cup. In the US
the ConSol tearm waorked with the local
community to help horraless individuats
anrd those requiding housing supporl,

InIndia the IMS team were involved
ina range of activities from giving
hlond, donating ko and asssting in
a winter jacket disl-ibution project
and sponsaring tie education of
two children.
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Candidates,
clients, suppliers
and shareholders

Ugphelding high ethical and
corporate governance
standards, promating integrity
in dealing with all stakeholders
Bmpresaria’s business is all about findug
people jobs and so helping $hem develop
ther careers and realise thar potential,
Tris is important to enable people to
pravice tor themselves ard their famifies
and we aim {2 provide cand dates and
crents with the best possible service.

The Groug actively promotes integrity

in its deaiings with emp'oyees,
sharghalders, custamers and supplers
and the authonbies of the coustries in
which it operates. Erpresara recognises
that its reputation is a valuable asaet
geined over along perind.

The Gioup piomotes high ethical

standla ds in its business activites and
has Codes of Conduct for dealing with
gifts, hospitally, corruption, kaud and the
use of instde nformation. All staff must
carnply with the laws and regulations o!
the country in wich they operate.

The Graup aims (0 provide a high
qually service 1o chents and candidatas
alke and seeks 10 build strong and
lasting relationships with all parties.

The Groug ensures that adverlising and
public communications avaid untruths
or pverstaterments, Empresana builds
relationships with supp! ers based on
mutual trust and endeavours to pay
suppliers on tims and in accordance
with agreead terms of busiress,

The Gioup bulds relationships
wit~ candidates based on trust ard
aualty of service. I recognises that
ntormation about cardidates is
sensitive and confidential and must
he kent secure'y and not disclosed
witl"qut ther permission.



Our staff

Making it a good place to work
with opporiunities to develop
skills and experience to improve
staff careers and help staff to
realise their potential

As a diversified nternational busness,
W recognise the irnportance of working
in a culturally sensitive way with loca!
communities and islow non-
discrimenatory employment policies,

We encouags the empleyment of local
nationals at all levels in the Group.

Employees are selected and
promoted on the basis of merit and
ablty. regardless of age, gendar, race,
re’ gion, sexual orientat on or disabilily.

The Group recegnises the need ta
prov de a ssle working ervironment
for its staft andg cliens. Fach office

is responsible far ensuring that their
busincss operates in cormphance with
Gioup policies and local health and
safety legislation,

The Group Operaies an employee
exchange programme which allows
staff to spend between a weex and a
menth working in an office of angther
Group company in ancther country, 1o
learn how ther business operates and
1o swap ideas and best pracice.

The Group cammunicates with staff
through a vanety of means including
itemral communicatons and reg onal
managing directors imeetirgs. The
Group's intranet site provides access
to Group polices and procedJres.

Strategic report / Governance ¢ Financials

Society at large

Environmental impact

Whilst it is recognised that the Group
cuerales in & business sector that bus
alow ervironmental impact, the Group
remains committed to miimising its
impact on the environment. The Greup
is aware that thsis an area of
increasing importance to employees.
sharehclders and costomers alike,

The Group is not nvolved in the
marufasture of any targ:bls products
and has identified the princpa’ areas
of environmental impact as energy use,
waste recysl ng. paper ard orinting,
and travel.

The Group enco.reges the recyeling

of off ce waste and waste paper and has
seen a cortnued reduct on in the use of
P nted materals around the Gioop by
increasingly relying on electronic media
for its prmary markesting acivity. The
Annual Report is orovided to
sngreholders in electronic format

urless thay request othervasc.

As an imtermationally diverse group
some travel s ingvitablz and is
necessasy 1or ing effective managerent
of the husiness, however, full use s
made of remgre conferensing faciities
and work ng fron home to minimise

this as far as is pract cal.

Key events

Pharimaceutical
Strategies
Participatirg in

a Sk runin

supzport of Bosaton
Child-en's Hospital

IMS

2000 winter
jackels d stribkited
by employees to
under priviteged
chilcken

LMA fundraising
Tough Mudder raising
money Tor NSPCG

Alternattiva
Donating presents to
childien undergoing
cangcer treatnents

Greycoat

Taking patin

Save the Child-en's
Christnas jumger day
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The Board of Directors and Secretary
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1. Tony Mariin
Chairman

Appointed: July 2004
Committee Memberships: None

Tony has aver 30 years' expernence of
1unning inlernational speciahst stafling
campanies, | le served as Chai-man and
SO of Select Appointments (Holdingsi Plc
{*Select’) from 1982 to 1989 when Fe
became Vice Chainnan and member of the
Board of Managemen! of Vedior NV, the
worlkl's trad larges staffing services group
In August 2300 he assumed the roie of
Charman and CEQ, which he served untif
his retirgment in Febraary 2004 Tony hekd
tihe position of Executve Chairman at
Corpurate Servises Group, now part of
Impellam Gronp plo, untl standing down n
September 2007, Prior to his appointmen®
at Select, ha was responsble for half of the
operatons of Adia 8.A, the waorld's second
largast Staffing Seivices g-oup At that tire
and now part of Adecco, Before joining Adia,
he 1esided in the United States for

20 years and served as President and Chicl
Dperating Officer of a statc-wide Mancial
Services group based in Catfornia,

Tony is a farmer Gnairrean of tive Federation
of Recruitreent and Employment Serviges,
naw known as the Recruitment and
Employment Confederation, ihe recognisad
representative of the Staffing Services
Industry. Heis also a Founder Member of the
Recruitment international Mall of Fame and
was recipient of the Staffing Indastry
Analysts Leadership Award 2014,

Other key external appointments:
None.
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2. Zach Miles
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: October 2008
Comimittiee Memberships:

Audit Commitige (Chair}. Remunaration
Commitiee, Nomination Commitigee

Zach has 30 yeais' expelisnce working

in the staffing seclor, as a Finance Director,
CEQ ard Chainman, Befare join'ng
Empresa-ia, Zach held the position of
Chiairman and Chiel Executive Officer of
Vedior NV. He was & rrember of the Board
of Managerment from 18989, and Chair man
sinse February 2004, Before joiming Vedior,
Zach was CFO and a member of the Board
of Directors of Select Agpoiniments
{Haldings) Plc. His career in the rectuitment
‘ndustry began in 1888. He was formerly a
partner I~ the international accountarcy firm
Anthur Ardersen and is a qualified
Chartered Accountant.

Other key external appointments:
Charrman of the Board of Trusiges of
Rappaort Housing and Care and Non-
Executive Charrman of Bright Network
(UK} Limited.

3. Penny Freer
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: December 2005
Committee Memberships:
Remuaneration Committea {Chair),
Nomination Committee {Chair),
Audit Committee

Penny has warked in investment banking

for over 26 years. She is a paitner of Landon
Budge Capita’, a corporzte finance advisory
fwm, Untl 2004 Penny was Head of Equity
Capital Markets at Robert W Baird and from
2004 to 2095, Deputy Chairman of Robert W
Band Limited, Prior ta tris she was Head of
Small/Md Cap Fauities for Credit Lyonnais.

Other key external appointments:
Senior Independent Director of Advanced
Medical Solutiors plc. Non-ExecJtive
Duector of Capital Ma kets Strategy Limea,
Cenlae Health 1 mitea. ColWeh Cyber
Lirnned, Crown Plaze VOT plo. The
Hendersor Smaller Companes Investent
Trust ple and Member of Lordan Br dge
Canital Partners LLP.

4, Spencer Wreford
Chief Executive Officer

Appointed: May 2018
Committee Memberships: None

6. Rhona Driggs
Chief Operating Officer

Appointed: Novernber 2018
Committee Memberships: None

Spencer was appointed as Chiet Execative
QOfficer in May 2018, He bas been with
Empresana for neatly mne years, during which
trme he has ganed a deep understancing of
the Group and has worked closely with the
operaling conpanies on a wice range of
inarica! and operational matters, He joned
as Group Finance Direclor, befora taking

on the role of Chief Operating Officer in
Seprember 2017. Priar to jeinng Empresaria
Spencer worked in senior financea roles,
particularty with Mernational businesses 1
" services secion icluding BPP Grou,

a providen of internat onal pioessional train ng
and ITE Graup Ple, tve infernational
conference and exhibition organising group.
Spencer is a memper o the Institute of
Chartered Accountants n England aad
Wales, qualifying vith Acthur Andersen,

Other key external appointments:
None,

5. Tim Anderson
Group Finance Director

Appointed: March 2018
Committee Memberships: None

Tim has over 15 years' experisnce working
for 1sted and private equity barcked
businesses. Tun [ ned tmpresaria from Cell
Medica. aleadi~g cellula immunctiarapy
company. wihare he was Group Finance
Director. Prior to this Tim has held finance
posibons inthree FTSE 100 businesses.
most recently having spen: six years at Intu
Properties ple, the UK's leading owner and
manager of prime regional shopping centres,
where ha was Head of Financial Reparting
a=d Control. Timis a member of the Institute
of Chiartered Accountants in England and
we'es, quahfying with KPMG.,

Other key external appointments:
None.

Rhena has over 28 years' experience
wor<ing in intermational companies within
the staf‘ing sector and has a prover record
ol delvering grewh and duving innovation,
She has beenrecognisea for the past three
consecutive years as one of the Staffing
Industry Anzlysts' “Globa’ Power 150, alist
of the Most Influsntial Women in Staffing”.
RBhona's most recent role vas Presdent of
Vot Global Solwtions, with responsibilty 1or
the: Managaed Services dvision. Priornto that,
Rhona was Cxec.tive Vice President for the
commencial and tecinia’ stating operations
in North Amenca where she ran a $1.2 brlicn
stafing business and she brings wth her an
n-dapth knowledge of the latest tiends and
operating models in the sector.

Other key external appointments:
None,

7. James Chapman
General Counsel and Company
Secretary

Appointed: June 2015
Committee Memberships: None

James hag over "8 years' expensnce
warking with Empresana. He quali ed

as a solicito” with Oshaorne Clarks in 2001,
specialising in corporate inanee, acting for
a tange of co'porate and investment bank
chents. g joined Empiesaria m 2009 10
head ue the Group's legal team and was
appointed Company Secretary N June 2015,
James advises the Board on legat and
governance imatters.

Other key external appointments:
None,
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Corporate governance statement

Introduction

{QCA Principle 10}

The primary responsioility of the Chalr is o
lead the Board elfachvely and tris includes
overseaing 1he adoption, delivery and
communication of the Company’s comporate
governance model. The Company Secrctary
assists and reports directly 0 tia Chair on
corporate governance malters, The Chair
ensures that the Board as a whole plays 2
tull and conshiuctive patt in the dovelopmen:
and determination of the Company’s strategy
and overal commercial objectives.

Governance Structure

The Board 1s comimitted [0 ensuring that

a strorg governance framework operates
thiouighout the Group, recognising that good
corperate governance is a vital camponent
to support management in their delvery of
the Company's stratagic objartives and (o
operate a sustainabiz business for the
benefit of all sta<eholders. The Board
recognises that the process of idennfying,
developing and imainta’ning high stadards
of cerparate governance suitable for the
Cormpany is ongoing ard dynamic, to rafiect
changes in the Comuany and #s business.
the composit'cn of the Board and
developments in Corporate governance.

Chair
Execulive

Non-LCxecutive

Secretary

During 2018, the Board chose 1o adogt the
QCA Corporate Governanco Code 2018

{ GCA Code'l, which they consider is most
approprate 1o the size of the Company, the
regulao:y framework that applies o AIM
companies and is best aligned to the
expectations of the Company’s stakeholders,
The Board ¢onsiders that the Company does
not depart from any of ihe principlas of the
QCA Code and the relevant disclosies and
explanations arg set out m this Carporate
Govenance Statement and a8 a'so
avalable on the Campany’'s website

VAN, CITR)EGSENA GOM

Board of Directors
Tony Martin

Sponcer Wreford, Tim Anderson, Rirona Drigas

Penny Frger. Zach Miles
Jarngs Chanman

Respons ble for protecting -d advancing stakehaluars’ nverests, providiig overall
diection for the Group and mantaining a framewoark of delegated authonties and comtiols.

|

Audit Committee

Zach Miles {Chair)
Panny Freer

Monitors 2nd reviews the integnty

of financial statements, oversees the
relationship with the external auditor
and has oversight for internal contro!
and risk.

For mora information
Audit Committee report
on pages 36 and 37

Nomination Commitice

Panny Fraer {Chair
Zach Miles

Monitors and reviews the struciure,

size and composition of the Board and
cansders succession planning, to ens. e
the nght skills and expertise are
maintained for effective manzgement.

For more information
Nomination Committee report
on page 38
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Remuneration Committee

Perny Freer {Chair
Zach Mies

Consiaers and sels remuneration
policy for the Board and monitors

the level and structure of remuneration
for semor Mmanagement.

For more intormation
Directors” remuneration report
on pages 3910 42
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Corporate governance framework

The Role and Functioning

of the Board

{QCA Principles 1,5, 9 & 10)

The Board s comprised o7 2 Non-Exécutive
Chair, ihree Executive Directors and two
han-Exacutive Directors. The Directors heve
a balance and deptn of skil's and expedience,
together with long-stand:ng knowledge of
the Group, which enabiles them to
discharge their respectiveg dutes ard
1esponsibifities e*fectivaly,

The Board ia collectively iesponsible for the
long-term success of the Company. The
Group's strategy end business model are
developed by the Chief Executive Officer and
hig senior maragement team and aparoved
oy the Board, This sirategy and business
model, des gned to promote long-term value
*a- shareholders, 1s described 1n the Stratege
Report on pages | 1o 29 and on the
Campany's website www.empresaria,com

Tha Company is controlled through

tne Board, which has established Audir,
Re~wuneration anc Nomination Comimiiees
{‘Commiltees’), to which it delegates clearly
defined powers. Tne Terms of Reference for
tine Comimittees are available to view on the
Company's website.

Thetg is a formal schedule of matters
ieserved for considenation by the Boarcl,
which inch.dc responsibility for the following:
+ aporova of pveralt Group strategy

and objectives

*

approval of the Group annual budget
#1d MoNtopng progress towares ite
achiaverment

changes la the Group's capital stoaclure

changes to the Group's principal activities

review and approval of the annual
francial staterments

changes to the senior maragament
slructure

approval of Group financing arrangements
and ieaswry pohcy

azproval of major investrents,
disposals and addit:onal mvestments
in existing operalions

approval of major urbudgetad expenditure.

These reserved matiers are reviewed by e Board at ‘east annaally, to enswe they reman
approprale and complete. Intanden, the Boad glso reviews an approved sehedule of
operationzl matiss, which are delegated to management of the ogerating sucsidiaries.

The annual mineum tma comantmen: is 25 clays for the Cnair and 20 days for otrer
Non-Executive Diectors. The Executive Directors are full-time employees.

Duning the year, there was 100% eligible atiendzance at all meetings of the Board anr
Cammittees. The folovang taole shows the nambor of meetings held during the year, the
aliendance of each Drector and their full years 11 o*fice as &t the forticoning 2019 AGM:

Audit Remune-<atizn  Noranation Yzars
Beard Conmatze Commetes Commites neff ot
Tony Martin [Chailmain) /8 - - - 4
Spancer Wretord' o
{Chief Executive Officer) - 8/8 - - -8
Tim Andes son®
f,Group Finance D[r_ector) 0,@_ - - _ _1
Rhona Driggs”
:Chie! Operating Officer} AN - - =
Penny Freer (Non-Executive Director) 878 &/5 474 202 12
Zach M\I_es (Non-[xecptivc_[_)ifectg) 3/8 7 5/5 4/4 a2 10
Joost Kreulen®
{Cniel Execurive Officer) 3/3 - - N/A

Natzs

1 Caangad rzl2s »om Gnaf Opaiaie g Officsr and Group Finarce Cnester to Gt Fascutioe 29 22 on 2 Vay 20138

2 Apponten as Groar Finarce Drestoron 2 Vay 2018

3 Apponted as Ghet Qperal rg O&ser on & Mgz 2018

4 Reyed as Gresf Exszatse Officer on 2 May 208

Prior to the beginning of each year, Board
maetings are scheduted in lire with the key
firancial teporting dates. A more detailad
agenda, togather with tne Board papers,

is distibuted in a timely manner before
each Board meeting. All Birectars receive
suffcient relevant informaton on financial,
busiess and corporale IszLes (o enable
nonmed decisions to be lakean by them at
tne Board meet ngs. Any specific actions
aris'ng durng meestings are agreed by the
Board and a follow-uo procedure maonitors
therr complation. Monthly financial and
operational roviews a‘e distributed 16 the
Board irrespective of whether a scheduled
meeling is to take place. This assists the
Board to keep informed of developments
on areguar basis.

Time is allacates at all meetnys 1o discuss
any other business, which gll Directors are
invitea by the Char aise, Al Non-
Executve Drectors participata in stiategy
davelopment and Gecisions required to
implan-ent actions 1o progress towvards
maeting tha obj2ctives of the Corpany,
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The Chair's primary role is to ensure the
cftective riming of the Bozard and that the
Board as awhole p'ays a full and
constructh e part n the development and
determinaton of the Group's slrategy ana
overall corrme-eial objectives, The Chief
Executve Officen's primary role s to deal
wath the running of the Group’s bus'ness and
executive management of the Groug. There
is a clear dwision of respossibilitias botween
the Cha'r and Chief Exec atve Officer. with no
one individual haviry unfetiered powers of
devision, The Campany Secreary. a sohcitor
sin¢e 2001, adwises the Board and reports
directly to the Char on Corporate
Governance matters. He also heads up the
Group's legal department and advises tha
Board on legal and governance matiers,
hedping to ensure that Board procedures
ang applcable rules a~d regulations

are observed,

The Directa s are also able o take

indepencient profossional ackase nthe
furtherance of treir dutigs as ~ecessary.

a3



Governance

Corporate governance framework continued

Engagement with shareholders
{QCA Principles 2 & 10}

The Board seexs ta engage with
sharehelders to maintain a mutual
unelerstanding of objectives betwesan

\hem and the Company and manage their
expeciations. Reolations with shareholders and
potentidl investors are managea principally oy
the Executive Directors, who are contactattle
botir directy and via financial PR,
Shaehcldars are encouraged to pa icate in
the Company's Annual General Meetngs and
contact tha Company's officers with any
guestons, The Executve Diractors make
regular presentations o nwvestors (both
existing and potental sharehlders), micet
with sharehciders {0 d'scuss long-term issues
and clxtain the r v ews, present at extarmally
(LN Investor events and comnviicate regulatly
during tre year. The annual and interim
preserilat ons made O Mestors, Tilerviews

w it tha Executve Directors and a descript on
of the Company’s investiment case arg all
macde avallable on the Company’s website.
The Gompany has alsg retained a Financial
PR adviser (Ama PR), ahouse birgker

(Arden Parteers pls) and anglyst research
{Allenby Capial Limied), who each provide
feedback from existing shareholders and
potential inveslers, The Boand, including the
Chairs of the Covtitiges, will be available

at the 2019 AGM to answer questions

from shargholders.

Stakehclders and social
responsibifities

(QCA Principles 3 & 10)

The Group's business model rebes heavly
on develaming and maintaining strang

relat onships with internal staff, candidates/
workers. clients and regulatory authonties,
The Board is conscious of its responsibility
towards all staxeholders and helieas thisis
an important consideration for the long-tenm
growth of the business Stakeholder
engagement and feedback is taken
seriously theaughout the Group, Regualar
communical.on is made around the Group
comparies and internal stalf. The Group
places considerable valug on the
nvolement of 1s internal staff and keeps
them infarmed on matters affecting them
as employees and on the various factors
affecting the performance of the Group.
This is achieved through formaf and
infonmnal meetings, info-mation available

on the Company’s website ard intrane:.
Addit o1ally. the Group benefits from
alrghly de-centraiged structure, which
enables each operating subsidiary to
develop its own sirategy for internal staff
communicat ons and candidata / worker
engagerment. The Group uses social media
o engage cirectly with stakeholders through
various channels including Faceboaok,
WhatsApp, Twitter and LinkedIn, The
Group also engages vtk regulators and
Government agances, for example in
response to consultations or proposals.
both directly 2nd lhrough mermbership

of worldwide trade assacations.
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Risk management

{QCA Principle 4)

Risk maragement remaing the respoasibibty
of the Boardl. The Audit Committee has
delegated responsibility to keep under

review the adeguacy and effectiveness o

the Company's internal financial controls 2nd
internal contral ang risk management system.
Risk management is teviewed at every Bozrd
meaating as part of the format Board process.
Tne Board has idantified and evaluated the
signif.cant risks faced by the Group for tha
datvery of the Group's strategy. The Board
has agreed how eachiiskis to be addressed
and the necessaty actions to be tzken. Delalls
af the orincipal nsks identhied a-e set out al
pages 23 10 27. The Audit Cammittes meels
specifically 10 review e effectveness of the
Group's risk management and nternal control
systems and to review the risks identified and
progress of actians taken to mianage the risks.
Following the re cw, progress and actions aie
reported to the Boad.

Experience, skills and capabilities
{QCA Principle 6)

Biographical detalls of each of the
Company's Officers. detaling relevat
experience, skills and capabiliies can

b found on pages 30 to 31, The Nomination
Commimiee meets a1 least once g year to
monitor and revievs the structure, size and
compasition of the Board. It considers
sticession planning and makes
recommendations to e Beard for any
appointments, to ensure thal the right

skifls and expertise are maintained by tne
Company for effective management, All
men:pers of the Boad participale in the
recruitment of members to the Eoard. Oa
appointment, Directors receive a tailored
introduction 1o the Group and therealter
they determine the training requilements
appiopiiate to their 1ole and the needs of
the Group. Directors aitend relevant industry
conferences and workshaps throughaut the
vear. 1he members of the Comm ltees
refresh their skills and knowledge by
a'tending briefings and seminars and
reviewing publcations prowded Dy vanous
professicnal services firms and by audit

and other regulatory oodies.




Board performance

{QCA Principle 7)

Fo:mal Executve Director periormance
evaluations are conducted annaally in
preparation for the review and approval

of annual remunerat on packages. Each
MNon-Executive Direcior's perforrance is
evaluated as an outcome of the formal
performance evalualions of the Committee(s)
of whicn they aie a rrember. Peticimance
evaluations identi'y and recod
achiavemenits, lraning requirernents and
araas for improvemen' in relation to annuzl
objectves and performance of ther
respeclive 1oles, in order to consider
effaciivenass. Objectives far tha forthcoming
year are defned along with identification of
how achigvemants will be mel, target dates
and detals of resource conslraints or ssues
to ensure that astions are planned and taken
as a result of the evaluation process.

Promotion of corporate cuiture
{QCA Principle 8)

Tha Compary actively promates integrity

in ils dea'ings with intarnal empioyees.
candidates / viorker s, shareholders,
customers and supphers and the authorties
of the countries n which our operating
subisidiares operate. The Board recognises
tnat the reputations of oLr Group companies
are valuahle assets gained over a long period
and st be protected, The Group has
Codes of Conduct, including those for
dealing with gifts, hospitalily. corruption,
fraud and inside infanmation. The Board
requires that all Group companies and
employees adhere to the Empresaria

Code of Canduct, which can be fand

on thae Company's wetsite.

All staff must comply with the laws and
regulations of the country i which they
operate and those respoansible for the
management of each oparating subsidiary
confim the’r complance to the Board
annually. 1he Group's whistleblowing polcy
s putyicised to nternal employees and the
Company's senicr management visit each
operating subsichary ¢n a regular basis,
giving interal employees an opportunity
o ask questions of and provicte feedback
directly 1o the Board,

Srrategic report

Qur operaung subsid.aries are required

o ensure that adves tising and pubyic
communications avord untruths or
ovgrstatements. They are also expected 1o
puild relationships with suppiers based on
mutual trust and endeavouw: to pay sapphiers
on tirne and in accordance with agreed
terms of business.

For more information on
corporate social respansibility
see pages 28 and 29

Independence

{QCA Principle 9}

The irdependence of all Non-Exgoulive
Directoss is reviewed annually, with eference
lo the independonce of character and
Jadgement and whother eny circumstances
ot relationships exist. that coutd affect their
judgemnent. As a sign lcant sharehalder .n
the Company. the Chair is not considerad

to e widependent. The indeperdsnice of
Fenny Freer and Zach Miles is considered
frequentiy by tre Board in particular having
regard to their penods of tenure, The Board
assesses what would be the most desirable
number of Non-Executive Direclors for the
Board, having regarc to the size of the
Group, the scope of its uperations and the
efficent functioning of the Board. The Board
looks al the manngr in which the component
parts of the Board functian togetier, the
s<ills and external expariences of the Non-
bxecutive Directars, their involvernent and
insight in Board and Caornmittee meetings
ard their ability to objectively challerge
mznagement Having regard 1o all such
congclarations, the Board is of tha view that
the number of Non-Executive Directorsis
aypropnate and that Penny Freer and Zach
M les remain independent, notwithstanding
Ihei periods of tenure,
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In azcordance wilh the Compenies Act 2009
and the Compary's Articles of Assocaton.
each of the Directors has a duty 10 aveid

a situat on where they have, or might have,
a drrect or indirect interest ihat conficts, or
pote-tially may con'lict, vith the Company's
interests. The Company has estabished
praocedures for the disclosure by Directors o
any such conflicts for the Board 1o cors'der
and, if epproprate, authorise. If sush

a confict exists, the relevant Director 1s
excused from corsideration of (he relevan:
matter. Al additicnal external resgonsibiities
tahen on by Nirectors dunng the year wara
considered by the Board for any aciual ar
poietal conficts that may arise. The Board
is savisf ad that the independance of the
Directols who have additional external
responsibiities is not compremised.

ihe Boaro s always conscious of the nesd
to benefit from the fresh thinking that new
Directors car bring and 2018 saw the
appairtments of Tim Anderson as Group
Firance Direclor and Rhana Dnogs as
Ciie* Operating Cfficer.
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Audit Committee report

“The Committee plays a
key role within the Group’s
governance framework,
supporting the Board in
matters relating to financial
reporting, internal control
and risk management.”

Zach Miles
Chair of the Audit Committee

Role and composition of the

Audit Committee

The Audit Comm ttee has responsibility, on
behalf of the Board, to monitar the integrity
of the financial statements of the Compariy,
renaw the adequacy of nternal contral and
r:isk managemert sysiems and oversee the
relationship with the external a.dtcr. The
terms of 1elerence (o the Audit GCommittse
can be found on the Company's website
WAMLeMpresaria corm

The Audit Conun ttes makes whalcver
recommendations o the Board it deems
appicpiate, on any erea within its remit,
inclacling where action or impraveniant
is needead.

The Audit Commities 15 appointed by the
Board from the independent Non-Fxeacuiive
Directors of the Company, with a minimurr
requirement of two such Directors, one of
whon shauld be a financially quall ed
mermber, Appointiments are for a period ol
up 1o thres years, which may be extended
for ‘urther perods of up o three years.
provided the Director stit meets the civena
for memanership of the Gommitee.

The independent Non-Executive Directors wha served on the Corrmittce guning the year are.

Dale of
aopeintment to

Name the Committea Qualitication
Chastered
Zach Miles (Ghair] 1 Qaclober 2008 accountant

Penny Freer

2 November 2071

Msetings

Tnie Audit Comimittee s required to meet
tormally twice per year, During 2018, the
Corrmittae held fve formal meetings, which
weere scheduled around the financial
reporting timetable. The Audit Committes
invites the Group Finance Director and senior
representatives of the exierral audior 1
atlend all of its meetings. afthough it reserves
the right to request any of these individuals
to withclraw from the meeting.

Audit Committee activity

Financial and business reporting
DOuwing the year. the Audit Comimittee

has reviewed the 207 and 2013 fnancial
statements, the 2018 interim statement
{unaudted), carried out a gaing concenm
resiew, assisted wath the recruitment and
appointment of a new Group Finarce
Mirectar and conducted a compelitive aud!
iender process 'esulting in the appoimment
of a new audtor,
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Ravews of the financial statemeants neliclerd
the accounting policies, significant finarcial
reaorting issues and key judgements and
estimates undsipirning the financial
stalements. ncluding:

* going concern:

+ carry ng value of goodwill. ntangible
assets and investments,

* bugness combinations;

appropriateress of provision balances; ard

tax accounting, iInclucing ueferred tax
assets value.

For the going concern and the canying value
of goodwill and investments, the Commitles
examinec the assumplions supporting the
Group's profit and cash llow forecasls and
the sensitivties apphed o those forecasts.
the banking laciities avalable and “he
assessmnent of the Group's covenant
complignce based on the folecasts. Delals
of the matters teviewed are Included n notes
1, 3and 15,

For the other key judgements and cst'mates,
the Committee was satishied with the
assumptions mada and the accountirg
trealments adcpled




Risk management and internal contral
Risk mranagement s the responsi Ity of ine
Board. Further details 2bout the process
follovred a~xi principal risks and uncertaintics
that could atfect business cpeations can be
found in the Strategic Peport cnpages 1 1o
29, The Audit Cammitiee keeps under revicw
the adequacy and etfectiveness of the
Campary's intermal contrels and risk
Tmanagemant systerms.

Due to the size of the Group and the costs
involved, the Audit Comimities cortinues to
recommend to the Soard that there 15 no
requirement for a separate internal audit
funct on, A surmmary of the internzl controls
for Group companies is presented 1o the
Audt Committee, including updates or the
resolution of any control wesknasses
denthed, The inte:nal controls are 1eviewed
by tme Group finance function.

Every year the Audst Corimitles reviews

the Group's treasury policy, for approval by
the Bozrd. The Audt Committee algo reviews
liwe Group's r sk frarework reports, 1o be
presented to and discussed by the Board,

The Graspr's whistleblowing colicy contains
anangements for the Company Secretary o
recewe, in confidence, complaints on
accouating, nsk issJes, nternal conirols,
auditg issues and refated matters,

The Group has a mandatey Code of
Conduct, which gets out the minimum
expectes bohavicurs for all employees.
A copy of tvis can be found on the
Company’s website.

External audi:

The Avdit Co nmittee 13 rasponsible for
e developmeant. imptementation and
monitaring o the Group's policy cn externdal
axdit. The Tenws of Relerence assign
resgonsiolity to the Audit Comimttes fol
overseaing ine relat.onship with the external
audniior. During 2018, the Aucit Committee
managed the relattonship wits the external
auditors, including in relation to the 2017
a~d 2018 ALdit Committes reports.

Deloitte L_P was first appointed as the
Caompany's auditor in Oclober 2002,
tesulting in a terure of 15 years. The last
compelitive tender pracess was conducted
in 2013. Dwing 2018, the Audit Commitiee
conducted a compettive tender process, as
a resJlt of which, on the Audit Comnittee’s
recommandat an, BDD LLP were apps nted
as tho Comparny's auditor for the 2018
financial year. Arcsolution to reappaoint

BDO LLP for the 2012 financial year will

be proposed at the fortncoming AGM.

The Group's policy on non-audit

relaled services prescribes the types of
engagaments far whisn the extarnal auditor
can be used and those engagements whicn
are proh bited. For engagement for services
which are non-recurring in natu-e, orior
approval must be scaght from the Audit
Committea. Non-audit fees of £14,000
(2017, 2l ware incurred for tax advice
durning the year with a BGO member finm

in the period before they we e appointen
Ihe Company's auditor.

Nate 7 inchides disclosure of the auditor's
rem.neration for the year, including an
analysis of audit services, audt relatec
services and other non-audit sotvices
under \hose heatings prescribed by law,

ateg reps
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Assessment of the Aadit Committee
“ollowing completion of the 2018 audit
arocesses, the Audt Committee conducted
a self-assessment of its performance dunng
the year. 1he evalualion process measuredi
cerfonrance against its Terms of
Reference ncludrg:
* presentation of risk register by the Croup
Finance Drecla

review and imp'ementation of risk
management processes by sdabsidarnzs

L]

engoing. regular reviews of ternal controls

monitoring developments N corporate
governance and compliance.

The Board concluded that the Audit
Comimittes has acted in accordance with its
Terms of Reference and had ensured the
independence and otyectiaty of the
exteinal zuditor.

The Chair of tho Audit Committes wil ba
aslable at the 2219 Annual General Meeting
to answer any queshions about the wo & of
tne Comimitliee,

O nehzlf of the Audit Cormimties
Zach Miles

Chair of the Audit Committze
12 Magh 2019

(.
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Nomination Committee report

“We recognise the
importance of a diverse
and inclusive culture to
the delivery of the
Group’s strategy.”

Penny Freer
Chair of the Nomination
Committee

Role and composition of the
Nomination Committee

The Momination Committee has
responsbiity, on behglf of the Board, to
keep under revew the structure, size and
cornposition of the Board and the leadership
needs of the Group, The Terms of Reference
for the Nomination Corrmittee can e foandd
on the Company's webasita,

The Nominat on Committee is requirsd to
report to the Board on s proceedings and
make recammendations it deems appRropnate,
on aTy area vatin its remit, incluching where
action or mprovement is needed.

Ihe: Nomination Comnittee is appainted ty
the Beard from the Non-Executive Directors.
with & mirimum requirement of iwo such
Directors. Appointments to tne Committee
are made by the Beard and are for a penod
of up to three years, which may bie extendzd
for further periods of up to three years,
provided the Direcior st meets the criceria
for memiership of the Committee. The
independent Non-Executive D rectors who
served on the Namination Comm ttee during
the year are:

Date of
appointment to
the Comrmiltee

5 November 2013
5 November 2013

Name

Perny Freer (Chair)
Zac Miles

Meetings

The Nomination Cemmiltee is requived to
meet formally once per year, During 2018,
the Nomination Gommittee held two formal
meetngs and has been involved in sevenal
changes 1o the composition of the Board.

Cemposition of the Board and
Ccmmittees

The Nomination Committee 1evigved

tha composition of the Board and the
Comimitlees. Inmaking recommandations
to e Board, the Nomination Commitise will
give due regard 10 the benehits of diversity in
the Boardroom, includ ng gender. Differcnt
deas, perspectives and backgrounds create
a stronger and more effective work
erraronment, which in turn delivers
competitive advantags and better iesults.
Diversity of skills, backgroungs, knowledgs
ang yender arg taken inte consideration
when making new appointments io the
Board and its Commitees. Tnere were

a number of changes in the composition

of the Board during the year, Tim Anderaon
was appainted as Group Firance Director in
March 2018, with Spencer Wreford changing
his dual role of Group Finance Director and
Chief Operating Oificer to only be Chief
Operating Oficer. In May 2018, Joost
Kreulg wetied as Chef Executive Office:
ad Spercer Wieford replaced him as Chief
Execative Officar. Finally, »1 Noven-ber 2018
Rhona Driggs was appoined as Chief
Operating Of*cer. All Jirectars continug

to serve in thair roles and no Sther
caompostional changes were proposed

by tie Neimmnztion Connritles,
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Appointment process

At e Deginning of each appamtment
procass, the Nomingtion Committes
censidered 0 detail which areas of
expertise the Board viould most enefit
from and resewedd the detaled role
specihication accordingly. Each candiciate
was thoroughly assessed agans: the rols
specification and those shortlisted
underwent a comprehensive intervies
pocess with the who'e Board,

Succession planning

The Namination Commitiee cont nues t¢
consider the adequacy of the succession
plan approved Ly ihe Board.

Time commitments o°
Non-Executive Directors

The Nomination Committee continues
to keep under reviews the Non-Executive
Dirgctors’ tme comimitments.

On behalf of the ination Coma

Penny Freer
Chair of the Nomination Commitlee
12 March 2019
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Directors’ remuneration report

The information provided in this part of the Director's remuneration report is not subject to audil.

Role and composition of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Cammitlee has responsibilty, or benalf of the Board. for setting the remnuneration policy far a'l Executive Directors and
ine Char and recommending and manitoring the level and siructure of remunerzlizn for seriar management. The Tenrs of Reference for
tne Remureration Committee can be found on the Compary’s website.

The Remuneration Gommittee 1s «equ red 1o repot to the Board on its proceedngs after each meetng on all matters within its dul &3
and respongibilities,

The Remuneration Gomnritiee is appointed by the Board fiom the independen: Non-Executive Direclors, with a m rimum requirement
of two such Directers, No Digcton is involved in any decisions as to theit own remungraton,

The independent Non-Executive Ditectors who served on the Remuneration Comnitles during the year were:

Date of appointmant

Name to the Committea
Penny Freer (Ghal o o ] 13 December 2005
Zach Miles 1 Octohar 2003
Meetings

The Remuneration Comimitiea is reguired 10 meet at such times as the Chair of the Remuneration Committes shall require. During 2018, the
Rerwuneretion Commil:ee held 4 formel meetings. The Chair and Crief Executive Qfficer of the Company have been invited 1o atte~d meetings
where appropriate.

Remuneration practices

The Remureration Sommittee recomimerded and monitored the level and structure of reuneration for senicr management as well as
monitarng remungration trends across the GroL. A review was zarned out on the ongoing eparepnatensss and relev/ance ! the
remuneration policy.

The femungration Comrittee determined the 2012 ird vidoal remuneration packages, largets far annual bonus schame and pension
arrangemens for the Fxecutive Drectors and the 2019 fees for the Non-Excoutive Diecters,

Assessment of the Remuneration Commitiee

The Ramuneration Commit'ee conducted a seli-assessment ol its performance doring the year The evaluation process measuned
performanace agains: its Tenms of Reference including

o execulive bonus and LTIP schemes reviesed and assessed considering current best practice and perlasmance measwres

» guocession planning for Directors ad senior exgcutives daveloped.

The Ghar of the Bemuneration Commirtee will be avatatle at the 2019 Annual Gereral Mesing to answer any questions about the work
of the Rern.aneration Commltes.

Remuneration policy for the Execulive Direclors
Executive 1enmuneration packages are designed to attract, 1etain, motivate and reward Fxacutive Directors. whilst aligning rewaids with
tne busmess objectves and performance of tne Gioup and the interesis of sherchaldars.

Link between business objectives and remuneration policy

It is the Company's palicy fo: nerformance-elated pay of Executive Direciors to be Lnked to key performance indicators of the Gompany.
The Company's kay object ves nclude develop 1g sustairable growth n ea nings. through a combination of organic growth and investments,
cerefu management of debl levels and increase in sha‘e price. The perormance measues chosen for 2018 to link executive remuneration
o the achiever-ent of these objectives were giow M in earmings per share. corvers on rahis and debtor days,
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Direclor's contracts and letters of agpointment

Its the Company's policy that Executive Ditectors should have contracts wilh irdef nite terms proviching for a maxmuan 3 12 months' notice
by the employing Group company or the indradual, In the ewent of tarminalion, the Executve Directors' comiracis provde for compensation
upr to 2 maximun of the bas'c remunaation package for the notice period.

e details of the Executve Directors’ contiacts are sanmansed as follows:

Director Eflective date nf contract Netice periad
Spencer Wrefo:d ‘ ) ’ 2 May 2078 17 months
Trn Andesson ) 7 7 2iMarch2018 Gmonths.
Rhona Drigygs } § Novermber 2018 6 moths

hon-Executive Directors serve under leiters of appointment, veich either party can tenminate on three months’ vadtan notice.
The Non-Executive Oirectors have no right to compensation on the tarminaticn of thar apportments.

Annual feas of Directors

e basic ann i salary of each Exscutive Urrector is reviewsd annually by the Remoneration Commillea wilh changes laking effect on

1 January, The iemureraion for the Non-Lxecuiive Directors is dete-mined Ly the Board within the limits set by the Articles and 3 based
on information on fees paic in simitar companies and the skills and expected tme commitment cf the Indvidual concerned. The fees are
ey ewed sach year as par of the annug' tudgeting process. The Non-Executiva Directors do net 1ecelve any add tionahyemunaration for
chairing Cormittees,

Aggregate Directors’ remuneration
The information pravided in the table below is subject to audit.

The total amounts for Directors’ remuneration are as 1010ws:

2019 20186
- T . frenzy ) o i
pofckase ‘

Satary Salzry Zerefis- A-rual penson Sztay E

& Fpas’ 3 Feas 1n-kinrd BonLsEs contioulio”s Total ‘ & Feas e o a5 cor'rbutons Total
fiamz of Drygigr £500 faelotv] atslnia] [Siiee} £009 ) i 000 [ £230 Plehy) £Cno
Executve i R B,
SpencerWreford 205 195 7 38 @ 260 175 7w w 219
Tim Anderson: T Tag "3 4 1 M 1_39‘\ - - - -~ ]
Phona Diggs’ 185 4 - s - wlo - -
JopstKredlent - w7 19 106 ez 1 26 33 oo
Non-Executve | o ]
Tany Martin o 65 | o - 77 - - 7 i ‘ 66 - = - 68
Penny Freer me:E_}-m 44 - o - 44 43 - - - 43
Jach Mies T a2 Lf_: B - 41 40 - - - 40
. | 698 760, ‘ 659
Nles'

1 Cha~gadhicts;s rgm COF o' Opmating Oricer and Group B arcs Qrectar t+ Tref Exscu’ va OFivar o 2 Aay 2078
2 Appoird2d as Grouwp Firance Zirscior on 3 Way 2018

3 Appointad as Chasf Cps:
ed a3 Ok af Exavuive OfF e o~ 2 Mg, 2018

Foae for N~ Daerus e Grrecters e stated a< b= minmur | me o2y iments 'y

ung CUHizc on § \owemips 2013
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The following information is not subject to audit.

Pension and othet benefits-in-<ind

Steategic repat  Governance

/ Financizls

In addit-on to t1e basic remuneration payatle unde: their serv ce egreements, the Executive Directors are entitled to & pens'on prows.on
and a range of other benegfits (2r payments in lieu) includ ng deat™ in service life insurance, private medical insrance and ca- alwiance.

The Non-Exscutive Direciors do not receive any berefits.

Annual bonus

The Remuneration Cormiltes establishes the ohjectives thal must be met for each financial year if & casivbousis to be paid to the Executive
Drectors. The aniual ponus for the 2018 financial year was based on trree specific strategie Key Parformance hd'cators: adpister] eamirgs pe
share, canversion ratig and oabtor days, Based on the Remuneration Committeg's assessment of the financal perfor nance against thase KPIs,
it has determined that bonus payrments amounting to 20% of the maximuri bonus should be mads to Spencer Wietord and Tim Anderson.

The comgensation package ayieed wth Rhona Driggs included conditionz! {inclucing onermaming employad with the Group) signing-on
bonus of USS75.000 and guaranteed minimum bonuses for the 2019 and 2020 financiel years of USS150.000 and USS75.000 resnectively.

Long Term tncentive Plan (‘LTIP")

Tre Remueration Gommittee has responsioiity for superwsing tha Gompany's LTIP and making awards under its terms, Awards aie made
in the form of nil-cost options over ordina'y shares ts the Company's senion execulve rmanagement team. The maximum value of ardinary

shares that could be awarded in a year 1s 175% of basic salary. The cunent policy ig to revieay the fnal aurhted results of the Company prion
10 agreeing if awards are to be made, Non-Executive Directors do not participate in the LTIR,

Trg LTiP Rules, 1ast adopted in 2008, sxpire on their terch anniversary. The Reminearation Committes considered that the LTIP Rules remained
aopropiate and fit for purpose & +d so the Reinuseration Cormiiites worked with external advisers to renew Uie ETIP Rules on substantially the

s ter s for a funher ten-year penod.

Six Awards have been niade under the LTIR Parlo:mance targels are grawin i eanings per share and wr st are price over the relevart

typically three yea) performance period.

A summary of the historic vestirg and lapsing of awaids is as foliows:

Fora-ds Vestad

“eas of Avard Year of Vesting Avasds Parcentage Vested Asaeds Lapsed Pzreartags Lapsed
20114 o 415 1.220.000 1,220,000 . 100% - o 0%
2013 _ _7 2017 957,745 673,639 o /1% 381,2-37 - 29%
2014 2018 657408 83194 13% 571,214 87%

Asumnmary of Awards yet to ves: as at 31 December 2018 1s as foligws:

Yaa- of Avard

Year of V25113

Wumbs -t of Avards

2016 S _. 43788E
. 2017 ) 7 2020 B 363,178
2018 2021 76991
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Governance

Directors’ remuneration report continued

The information provided in the table below is subject to audit.

Details o the options for Officers who scrved during the year are as follows:

Maximum
Wanmum Anarda Vssted
Axarss as granted Auvards
at1Ja~uary cun~gihe Lagsad [Ops-s Optans
Name of Qingar Date of Award 2017 yes Anards grantzd: Exerc'sed
Joast Kreulen 28/09/2011 720,000 - - 720,000 -
06/09/2013 563,380 - 165,416 297,964 -
12/03/2014 379,630 329856 49,774 -
09/03/2016 244,892 - - - -
15/03/2017 192,368 - - - -
Spencer Wreford i i 28/09/2011 500000 - . £33,000 -
06/09/2C13 324,356 - 115,791 278,575
12/03/2014 20407718 - 241,358 36,420 -
(9/03/2C16 192,953 - - - -
15/03/2017 151.685 - -
o __2{1:’08r’2018 - 232558 ~ - . - -
sames Chapran 150372017 19324 - - - -
o 24/08/2018 - 133721 - - -
TinAndersor 04082018 168 605 - - -
Anona Dnggs 13/12/2018 - 227108 - - -

The following information is not subject to audit.

Sharehotdirg guidelines

There ae no requirements for Executive Directors or ssnior exesutives to hald shares in the Gormpany.

Details of the shareholdings of Directors who served during the year are as follows:

31 December 2018

A1 Resemb=r 2217

Number Nunbe -

af ordinary  Percentage atordnay Pa-cantage

shares halding ghares rolsirg

Joost Kieuler 60,000 012% 50,000 012%

Spencer Wreford 15,000 0.03% 16,000 0.03%

Tim Andgraon: - - - -

Rhona Driggs* - - - -

Tony Martin 13,924,595 28.41% 13,924,595 26.41%

Perny Freer 15,000 0.03% 150400 0.03%
Zach Mr'es ) - = - =

Total N ‘!4.014,595 28.59% 14,014,595 28.59%

1 Rshied 2 Ma, 2018
7 AppIINE 3 2 1Ay POIR
3 Appantad b N srbar 2018

No Director had any interest(g) in the share capital of any other Group company,

This report was apprged by the Boarc

Penny Freer
Chair of the Remuneration Gommitt
12 March 2010
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Strategic report / Governance / Financiais

Directors’ report

The Directors present the r annual repor on the atfars of Empresar a Greup olc, together with the financial statements and auditor’s report,
for the year ended 31 December 2018. The Strategic report se: out on pages 1 to 29 and the Corperate Governance Staterment sel cut on
pages 32 ta 35 form pa— of this report.

Post balance sheet events
There have rot been any significant events since the batarce sheet date. An inaication of likely future developments in the b.siness
ol the Group is Included 1n the St-ategic repo-t.

Financial instruments
Information regarding financial instruments can be found nnote 24.

Dividends

For the year ended 31 Decemnber 2018 tne Directors recommend a fina; dividend of 2 0p per ordinary share of 5p in the Company (‘crdinary
share’} 12 be paid on 31 May 2018 10 shareholcers on the register on 10 May 2019. For the year ended 31 December 2017 a final dividend
of 1.32p per ordinary share was paid on 31 May 2C18.

Directors’ shargholdings
Details of the shareholdings of Directers who held office during the year ars set out In the Directors’ remuneration report 6 page 42

Directors' insurance
I he Company rmaintains Directars” and Officers’ Liability ingurance wnich gives appropriate cover for any legal action brought against its Otficers.

Directors’ indemnities
The Group has made ng quailtying ir-d-party indemnrity prov.s ans for the benefit of its Directors dunng the year.

Substantial shareholdings
As at 31 December 2018, the following interests in 3% or more of te issued ordinary share captal of the Comnpany in the register maintainsd
Lncer section 113 of the Companies Act 2006 were identified:

Pearcentage of

No. c! voting rights and
Name af holder Ordinary Shares issued share capital
AV Martin (Director) _ 13,924,595 28.41%
Clage Brothers Asset Management 6,341,438 12.94%
Fof Hoornerman Fund Management o i L 3,880,500 7.92%
F M van Heijst ) ' - } 3,450,000 7.04%
Beleggingsciub 't Stogkpaert 3.005000  813%
The Ramsey Partnership Fund Limited 2,296,000 4.68%

During the period between 31 December 2018 and 12 March 2019, the Gompany received the bllowing nolifications under chapler 5 of the
D sclosure and Transparency Rules:

Percentage cf
MNo. ot vcting rights and
Date of naldication Naime of holder Ordinary Shares issucd share capital

1 February 2019 Close Brothers Assel Managemaent 5,659,342 13.59%5

Disabled employees

Applicat ons for employment by diszbled persons are always fully considared, bearing in mind the aptitudas of the applicant concerned. In the
avent of members of staff becoming disabled every effort would be rmade to ensure that their employment with the Group continues and that
appropriate train ng is arranged. It is the pol oy of the Group that the training, career davalopment and promation of disabled persans should,
as far as possibla, be wdentical to that of other employeas.

Employee consultation

The Group places considerable valug on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep tnem informed o1 matters affecing
them as employees and on the various facto’s aHecting the performance of the Group. This 1s achieved through formal and informa! meetings
and information available on the Company's website and intranet.
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Directors’ report continued

Auditor
Each of the oersons who is a Dirsctor at the date of appraval of this Anrual Report confirms that

« sgfar as the Drector 's aware, there is no ratevan: audt information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and

« tha Dwrector has taken all ihe steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director in order lo maxe Fimseli/herself aware of any relevant
audit information and fo establish thal the Company's audiloris aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and shou'd be interpreted i accerdance with the provisions of section €18 of the Gompanies Act 20086.

Following a conpetitive tender process, BDO LLP were appointed as the Company's independent audior lor the 2018 financiat year. They
Fave expressed their witingness to continue in office for the 2019 financia' year and a resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Annual General Meeting 2019 ((AGM’)
This year's AGM will be held on Tuesday 7 May 2819 at the offices of Arden Partners gic at 125 Gld Broad Strest, London EC2N 1AR.

The meefing will commence at 1:00pm and registration will be apen from 12:00pm.

A separate notce convening the reet ng has been sent *o our shareholders, wnich includes details of the ordinary and speciat business to
Le considered at the meeting. A copy of the Notice of I eeting can be found on the Company's website at www.ernpresaria,com/governance.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

G

James Chapman
General Counsel and Company Secretary
12 March 2018

Registerad office:  Old Church House, Sandy Lane, Crawlay Down, Crawley, West Sussex RH10 441S
Registarad number: 037431949
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Strategic report - Governance / Financials

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annaal Report and the financial statamen's in accordacce wih anpl cable law and regulations

Company law requres the Direcio7s to prepare financial stateents for sach financial year. Under that law tre Crresicrs are requred 1o
prepare the Group financial statements in accardance with Internationa’ Finangial Reporting Standards {'IFRSs’) as adopted by the Furopear
Unio~ and the AIM rules and have chasen to prepare the Parent Compary financial staiements in accordance veth Financial Repo-ting
Standard 102 ('FRS 102'). Jnder company law the Directars must not approve the fnancial statements unless they are sat-sfied that they
gve atruz and far view oi the state of afairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of 'ne Company for that period,

In preparing the Parent Company ‘inancial statements, the Directors ae requaied to
+ solect suitable accounting palicies and tren apply trem consistently,
* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whetmer applicaole UK accounting standards have been followed, subjact to any imalerial departures disclosed ard explained
i the finarcial slaterren's; and

» mgpare lhe financial statements on the going corgain sasis unless it is inapproprate 1o presume that the Company wil continue
in business.

In preparing the Group's finansial statements, Internat.onal Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors:
* pioperly select and apply accounting palicies:
s pesent informanon, ingludirg accounting policios, in a manner that provides relavant, relable, comparable and urdarstandable information:

» provide additional disclosures wher compl ance with tne specilic requirements - IFRSs are nsufficient to enable users to understand the
wnpast of particular transactiors, othar everts and ¢onditions on the ertty's financ 2l posit o and financial perfenmance; and

* make an assessmen: of the Company's abilty to econtinue as a gaing cenecem

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeyuate accountng records that are sufficient to show and explain the Comparny's ransactians
and disciose with 1easonatle accuracy at any time the hnancal posit'on of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financizl
stataments comply with the Compames Act 2008, They are also responsibls for safeguarii-g the assels of tha So-npany and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud arnd other inregularit es.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and irtegnty of the corporate ard financial information mcl.ded on the Company's webs ta.
Legislation in ths UK goverring the preparation and dissemination of inanc gl stateriants may difer from legislauon in other junsdictions.

Ths respons b fity state ment was annroved by the Board on 12 March 2019 and is signed on its behalf by:

By order of the Board

NS ///LQ_

I
Spencer Wrefor Tim Anderson
Chief Executive Officer Group Finance Dirsctor
12 March 2018
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Empresaria Group plc

Opinion

We have audieo the finarcial statements of Empresaria Group pe (the 'Parent Company'} ard its subschaiies {tha “Group’} for the year
ended 31 December 2018 which compnse the Consclidated Income Statement, Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,
the Consel dated and Parent Company Balance Sheats, the Consalidated and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity. the
Consofidated Cash Flow Statement and notes 1o the financial staterments, including a summary of significant accounting palices.

The linancial reporting frarmework that has baen applied n the preparation of the Group financia Statements is applcable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by Ihe Eurapaan Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Parent Gompany financial stazements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards including Financia!
Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporling Standa d applicable in the UK and Republic of reland’ (United Kingdam Geneally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our apinon:

» he tnancial stacements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's afairs as at 31 December 2018
and of the Group's 1ot for the vear then ended;

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IF3Ss as adopted by the European Union;

the Parent Company financial statemnents have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accented Accounting
Practice and

« the finarcial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requisements of the Companies Act 2000,

Basis for opinion

We conducien our audit in accordance wilh International Stardarcs on Aud ting (J¥) (1343 (UK)) and apolcable lave. Our respansibibies
under those standards are futher desenibed in the Auditor's responsibiilities for the audit of the financal statenents section of our rgport.
We are independent of the Group and the Parent Caompany in aceordance with t1e ethical requirements that aie relevant to our audit of
the financial slatements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Stardard as applied to lisled ertities, and we have fulfed our other ethical
respongibilities in zccordance with trese “equirerrents. We believe that the audt evidence we have obtained 13 sufficient and appropriate
lo provide a bas's for our opinian,

Gonelusions relating to going concern
We have nothing 1o report in réspect of the followirg malters i relation to which the 1ISAs (UK) reguire us to report 1o you where:

* the Dilectora’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the firancial statements is not appropate; or

= the Directors have not chisclosed in tne financial s:arements any identified material uncertainties that may cast signiicant doubt about the
Group's o the Parent Conmany's ability to contirug 1o adont the going concen hasis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months
from the date when the finarcia! statements are awhorised for issue.
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Key audit matters

Stiategie tepot # Governance / Financials

rey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judge:nenst, were of most sign fzance in our audil of the fina~cial staterrants
of tnz current pericd and include the most sign foant assessed nisks of inalerial m ss:atement {whether o no: aue to fraud) we identified,
inzlud'ng those which had the grealest effect on: the overall audit stiategy, the allocation of resotrces in the audit, a-d directing the efforts
of the engagement tearr. These matters were addressed in the context of our gudil of the Tnardial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, ang we do nol provide a separate opinion an these matiers,

Key audit matter

How we addressed the key audit matter in the audit

Revenue recognition

As detailed in nate 2, the Group's revenue predominantly relates

ta permanent a~d temporary placements with revenue fionm
permanent placements recognised on the start date of a caxdidate
and revendae from temporary placenents recognised on the basis
of work performed by reference to appioved timecards.

We considered theie to be a s'gnificant risk over the comoleteness
of revenue duc to mssing or late timecards.

Thers s also a risk of fraud in relatior to exisence of revenue as
there s a sk that revenae will be incornectly accrued gt year-end
due o 1he pressure on management to achisve lorecast prol ts.

Recoverability of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group has acquired a nuimba- of businesses as part of its
growth strategy and as a result at 31 December 2018 has gocdwll
¢f £37.1m and other umtangib es of £17.7m onils talance shaet, Any
potential impainment weuld have a s gnif.cant mpact on eported
results of the Group,

145 36 ‘hmpairment of Assets', requires management to perform
an impairment review annuslly 10 cansider possiblle impainment
in goodwill and ather ntangible assets.

Managiement exarcise signiicant judgement in dewenmining he
vndlerlying assumptions used iy the impainmant review. These
assumptions nclude the discoun: rate, the operating margin and
the growth rate.

The Group's accounting policy in relation to mpa rment o* gocdwil
and intangible assats in incl.ded within note 2 and farther explained
in note 15. Gonsideration of Ihis rigk by the Audit Commitles is
inchuded on page 38.

Qur auvdit work ncluded, bat was not restricted 1o, the following: '

Where appropriate we assessed the dosign, implementation
and operat ng etfectivenass of the contrals over the approval of
timecards and customer ¢contracts, the convarsion of imecards
nto invoices and thelr recogilon into the accounting systems.

We perfonmed cut off lestirg on a samp'e of hansastions to
consider the completaness and existence of revenue around year
end. This mvohed selecting a sample of sales invoices either side
of the year end diate and agreeing these te approved timezaius for
ternporary placaments or new starter farms for perma ent rovenue.
In addition, we sample tested post year end credit notes to ensuwie
revenua was correctly recognise<l in the pericd.

We tested a sanple of transactions trroughoul the year, to assess
existence and accuracy by agreement 1o cotespondng approved
tmecard, sales contracts, sales irvo ces and sales remittances. In
zddition. for certan components where relavant. v.e traced sales
transactons detailed on consultan!’s commission statements to
revenue recorded in the general ledger.

Gur audit wark ncluded, but was not restricted to, the follow ng:

With the assistance o our internal valuation specialists we have
lested e integnty of managament’s impainnent models, supporting
calculations for discount rates used ard considered management's
asscsament of the recoverabibty of goodwil and other intangibles.
We have challenged and assessed the reasonab'eness of the
assumptions within tha impairment models through d scuss'ans

with management. comparisons to e Industry and, whe:e
appropuzie, agreemant i supporting documentation and

historical tends.

We have performed sensitivity analysis ovar the key assumplions

used by management and reviewed the disclosures in nate 15
including the impact of changes in key assumptions.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materialty bothin plann ng ard performing our acdt, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. For planning. vie
consider matenality 1G be the magnitude by which misstalemants, including omissions, could influenca the ezonomic decisions of reasonable
users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements. [n oreer to reduce 1o an appropriately low level the prebability that any m sstatements
exceed materiality, wa use a lower materiality level. perormance materiality, to determine the exient of testing needed. lmportantly, misstatements
below hese levels vill not necessarily be avaluated as irmaterial 2s we also take accout of the nature of identifisd m.sslatements, and the
particutar circumstantes of thair occunence, whe eva'uating their effect on the financa! statarments as a whole.

The matenzlty for the Group financial stalements as a whole wes set a% £563,000. 1his was determinad on the basis of 6% of reported profit
before taxation. This was considered the most approptiate measure as prafit before taxationis a key indicator of tne Group's finencial
performance anz one which is atso used by analysts when presenting financial performance 1o users of the financial statements.

Pei formiance mataiiality was set at 6N% of the above matevality lovel taking inta account various ‘astors including the expected tota value
of known and likely misstatements, brought forwaro misstatements, t~c nunber of materal estimates and the expected use of sample testing.

Whete financial information from comoonents was audied separately, component materiaity levels wera set for this purpose at lawer levels
U 1o a maximum of 72% of Group materiality.

We agreed with 1e A cht Comm ttee thal we vou'd report 10 1he commin ttee all ndiviclual audit differsnces in excess of £2:3,000. We also
agreed (o reporl differances palow Uis threshold Ui, in our view, warranted reporting en quakitatve grounds,

The matenalty for the Parent Gompany financial statements, as a halding company, was based on 235 of total assets but restricted 10
£405,000. Performance materiality was set at §0% ol materialty taking into accourt varioas factors ngluzing the expected total value
of known ano tkely misstatements, broaght forward msstaternents and the nurmber of malerial estimates,

An overview of the scope of our audit

Qur audit of the Group and Parant entity financial statements was scoped by obtaning an understanding of the Grous and its enronment,
including the Group's aystem of internal control, the performanse and financial position of each componert as a propertion of the total for the
Group and 2ssessing the risks of matenial misstaterent at the Group level, Based on our assessment, we focused our Group audit scope on
the Group's cperations in the UK. Germany, New Zeatard. Chle, Japan, India a1d indonesia, where ful scope audr, procedares were
performed. For the overseas compenents, the audit procedures were perfarmed by comgonent auditors, which i all locations were BDO
network firms other than in Cnile.

Components with n the above locations, that were subject to full seepe audt procecu: €3, ascounied for 925 of the Group's revenug, 873 of
the Group's profit befure taxation and 9655 of the Group's net assets. The matsriahty used in each of hese locations where we performed an
audit ranged from 73¢ 10 72% of Group materialty,

As parl of our audil sirategy, the Senior Statutory Auditor and anothe: memter of the group engagement teamn visited the Gerinan component
aud t team to 1ev ew tha complete audit files for the German ope-ations facusing on the audit work in refation to the key rigks. For the other
OvErSEas CoOmMpeIEnts, senior members of the group audit team tock part « local audil meetings al the plannng and completion stage of the
cOMponen:t audits to complate our understending of the operations and risks of sach companent as well as perforning reviews of component
audtors” working papers. The group engagement team perfermed full scope audit procedures on all UK aperations.

The remaining components o the Group, which also nzlude non-significant hokding companias, ware prncipally subiect to analyucal review
procedures perfomed by the Group audit team.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the otrer informat on, The ather information comprises the informat on included in the annual report, other
than the financial stalements and our auditor's repoit thereon, Our opinon on the financial slatements does not cover the oner information
and, except to the exient otherwise explc tly staled in our teport we da rot express any form of assuwance conclusion thereon

In connection with au- audit of the fmancial stalements. our resoans bility is 1o read the olher nformaticn and, in doing so. consider whether
the othar information is materlally incensistent wilh tha inancial sta*ements or our <nowledge obained in the auclt or otherwise appears to
he materially misstated. It we idenbify such material inconsistencies o apparent material m sstaternents, we arerequ req Lo determine whethar
thera is a matenal Misstatement in the finoncial statements or a matenal wisstatement of the ather information. It based o0 the work we have
perfornmac, we corcluda that there is a matenal missta'ement of th s other information. we are tequired to 1epait that facl. ¥We have nathing to
repott in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audiy

* 1reinormatian given in the sirategic report and the Drectars' report for the financial yoar {or which the fimancial stateents are prepared
ia cons stent with the financial statemenrts: and

» the strategic repor: and the Directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In tne light o' the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its envirorment obtained in the ccurse o° the
audit, we have notidentfed material migstatements in the strategic report or the Directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the followng matters in relat.on to which the Compan’es Act 2005 requires us ‘o reporl to you if,
n our ap nion-

* adequate ascounting records have not been kept, or relurns adequate for our aud t have not been received Irom brarches not visited by us; ar
= the Parent Campany tinancia statements are not in agreemer! with the accounting recards and returns; or

* certain disclosures of Directers’ remuneration specified by law are nol mace; or

s we have not received all the in‘ormation and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained maore fully in the cirectors' responsibilities statement, sel out on page 45, the Direclors are responsible ‘or t1e preparation of
the financial statements and for being satis? ed thai they give a true and fair view, and for such internal contral as the Directors determing 15
necassary 1o enable the preparation of firancial statements that are free from material rmisstaterment, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, 1ne Directors are respensible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company's aoility to contirue
as a going concern, discicsing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of acccunting unless the
Directors ether inlend to lguidate the Graup or the Farent Company or 10 cease operations, or have no realistic alterrative but to do sa.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objeclives are to oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial starements ag a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasenab e assurance is & high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAS (UK) will always detect a material i sstaternent when it exists.

Misstaterrents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material f, individualiy or in Ihe aggregate, they could reasorably be expected
to influence the economic decis'ons of users 1aken on the basis of these financial statements.

Aurther description of our responsitilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on tne Financiai Reporting Counalt's webs te at:
www.fr¢. org.uk/audito-sresporsibiiities. This description forms part of our audier's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely 10 the Paren! Company's memisers, as 2 body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company's members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and for ro other puroose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respansibility to anyone other
than the Parent Gompany and the Parent Company's membsrs as a bady, ‘or our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Anna Draper (Senior Statutory Auditor}

For and on behalf of BOO LLP, Statutery Auditor
Galwick

United Kingdom

12 March 2019

BOO LLP s a imited Habitty partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Consolidated income statement

2018 enti
Npte £m £r

Revenue
Cost of sales

Net fee income

Administrative costs {includ ng £0.7m (20171 £0.8m) in respec! ¢’ trate recervadle impai-ment losses)

4 366.8 3571
_(2945)  (mary)

Adjusted operating profit

Excentional itams
Fair value charge on acquisiion of non-controling shares
Loss on bus ness disposa

Armortisation of intang ol2 assets identified in basinass combinatons

Gperating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Net finance ¢osts

Profit hefore tax

4 72.3 69.4

800} (578
<z 12.3 1.6
5 {0.3) -
5 - €3
13 - (C.3}
L= S ./ B\ 5
&7 103 87
2 0.2 [oR
¢! a1 on

BT G B )

9.4 8.1

Toxalion B R - 10 (3.8) (38}

Profit for the year 5.8 4.5

Attributable to:

Cuwners of Emprasaria Group plo 4.6 4.1

Non-controling inte-ests ~ - L 1.2 4

5.8 4.5

Pence Pence

Earnings per share:

Basic 12 9.2 8.0

Diluted 12 91 9

Adjusted earnings per share

Basic 12 12.2 12.6

Diivted 12 12.1 12.5
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

8 2517
£m £
Profitfortheyear . ) ) 5.8 4.5
Other comprehensive income
tems that may be reclassiled subsequently to the income statement

Exchange differences on ranslation of foreign Goerations 0.8 1.2;
Itermns that will not be reclassit ed to tha inconie statement:

Exchanga differences on tianslatien of non-controling inferests in fore gn operations (0.1) A
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for theyear o . 07 RS
Total comprehensive income for the year S 6.5 3.2
Attributable to:

Owners of Empresana Group plc 5.4 2.9
Non-contiolling irterests ) L ) 11 03
6.5 3.2
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Consolidated balance sheet

2018 27
hot2 Em £m
ASSETS o
Non-current assets
Pioperty, plant and equoment 14 21 1.4
Goodwil 15 374 35.9
Other irangible assels 16 117 18.2
Doferred tax asscts S - 22 15 10
o i - 584 565
Current assels
Trade and other recevables 18 57.3 531
Gash and cash equ valents - . 254 25,8
R o m21 7m0
Totalassets o o - oMM 185
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payabiles ia 41.9 42,0
Current tax tatalities 3.2 26
Borrovings . ) ) 20 32.0 35.6
T — T i s
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 20 5.2 1.2
De‘erred tax habilities 22 4,2 4.1
- o B 0.4 54
Total liabilities - 7 - 865 BGS
Net assets T ‘ } 54.6 43.9
EQUITY
Shara capital 23 2.4 2.4
Share premium account 22.4 2.4
Meryer reserve 0.9 0.8
Reiranslat on rezerve 5.8 5.0
Fauity reserve (7.7} (7.5)
Other reserves {0.7) {0.7)
Aetained earnings L o 232 1.6
Equity attributable to owners of Empresaria Group ple S 46.3 42
Non-controlling interests - B 83 6.8
Total equity 54.6 480

“hesa iranciz statements of Empresaria Gioup plc were appiored by the Board of Drectors and adtharised for issus 01 12 March 2019.

Signed on benalf of the Bha

—_— N

Spencer Wrefold
Ch ef Executive Ofiser

i of Drectars o

Tim Andersen
Group Finance Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Cquity &b atakia e e ers ¢ Erprasania Gravppls
Srarz Mg -
Srare prec; u Mzrgze Ratvz-stason 29 .ty Q1 er = z cirtoling Tors!
can-al acecunt rEssree [T rssre LR E TN ) &ar” 135 Total ntarasts ESUh
£m £ £ £ £ £ £~ em £m £~
Balance at 31 December 2016 2.4 22.4 09 &1 73) (0.4) 16.2 403 64 (467
Profit for the year - - - - - - 4.1 4.1 0.4 4.5
Exchange differercas on
rans'ation of foreign operations - - - (1.1) I . - (.2) (0.1 (1.3}
fotal comrehensive inccmeg for
the year - - - (1.7) - (0.1} 41 28 0.3 3.2
Diviclend pzid to owne-s of
Enpresaria Group plo - - - - - - 06 13.6) - [0.6)
Dwidend paid to non-contiollag
lerests - - - - - - - - (0.1} {0.4)
Acquisition of poa-controll ng
shares - - - (0.2} - - 10.2) 0.2 -
Purchases of pwm shares in
Emplcyee Bened Trust - - - - - - {01} {0.1) - 0.1
Shaie based payments - - - - - {9.23 - {G.2) - (ga
Balance at 31 December 2017 2.4 224 0.9 5.0 {7.5) (0.7 19.6 421 6.8 48.9
Piofit for thayear - - - - - 4.6 4.6 1.2 5.8
Exchange differances on
trans'ation of foreign operations - - - 0.8 - - - G.8 (0.3} 7
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - 0.3 - - 48 &4 11 G.5
Dwidend paid to owners of
Empresaria Group plc - - - - - - (0.0) {0.6) {0.6)
Dividend paid to non-controfing
inMerests - - - - - - - - {0.4) (0.4}
Acquis tion of non-centoling
shaies - - - {0.2) - - [(n4) 0.2
Purchases of own shares in
Fmnloyes Bengfit Trust - - - - - - {0.4; (0.4} {0.4)
Business combination
{see note 13) - - - - - - - - 0.5 0.6
Share-based payments - - - - - - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 2.4 22.4 0.9 5.8 {7.7) (9.7) 23.2 46,3 8.3 54.5
Empresaria Group plc / Annual Report & Accoents 2018 53



Financials

Consolidated cash flow statement

tate Em £m
Profit tar the year 5.8 2.5
Adjustments for:
Depieciation and software amo-tisation 14. 18 1.0 1.0
Amoruisation of intangibils assets identiied inbusiness combina‘ions 16 1.7 1.7
Exceptional tems (non-cash} 0.3 -
Loss on bus ness disposal - 0.9
Sharg-based paymerts - {0.2)
Taxation charge 38 3.6
Net finance costs 0.8 0.6
T 7 o 13.-3 121
Insrzase in trade and other receivables {2.2) 2.8)
(Decrease)increase In biade and other peyables linclucing pilot bods owllows of £2.2m (2017 inflow of £2.3m) . {27) 3.3
Cash generated from operations 8.4 12,6
Interest paid (1.0} 0.7}
Incame taxcs paid i ] _ . (2.9} 15.5)
Net cash from operating activities - 45 5.4
Cash flows from investing activities
Considararion paid for business acausihions (net of cash acguired; (1.7} 5.6}
Gonsideration received far bus ness disposals 01 01
Furchage of progerly, plant and eguipment, and goftware (1.5) (0.9}
Finance income ) o o o 0.2 B 0.1
Net cash used in investing activities B o o ) {28y (8.3
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in ovordhalts 1.5 15.3
Procgeds from bank loa1s 4.0 C1
Repayment of bank kaars (6.4} {9.2)
Increase in invoice discounting 0.4 0.7
Purchiases of own shares in Employee Benefit Trust {0.4) 0.1)
Dvidends pad to owners of Empresaria Group pls {0.6) (0.6}
Dividends pa.d to non-contreting interests o o {0.4) o
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from financing activities o o _ o {2.2) &1
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (0.6} 6.2
Effect of foreign exchange mavement 0.1 {0.0)
Sash and cash equivalents at beginning of theyear - o 259 708
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 25.4 25.9
- 2008 2017
£m o
Bank overdrafts at beginning of the year {20.4) 5.1)
increase in the year (1.5)  {153)
Ftfect of foreign exchangs movement o B o R ooy -
Bank gverdrafts at end of the year . - S 20 (22.0) (204
Cash_, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at end of the year 3.4 5.5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Basis of preparation and general information
Empresatia Group pla is a company incorparated in the Lted IKirgdom under the Comparies Act 2008, The adcress of the registered ofice
s Old Church House, Sandy Lane, Crawlay Cown, Crawley, West Sussex, RH10 43, lis company registiation namaer is 3743184,

The consohidatad financial statements are for the twelve months erded 31 December 2018, The financial siatements have been prepared
in accordance wih IFRS as adoptea by the European Uawn (EU) and therefore the Group financial stateren's comply with AIM rules.

Tne financial siatemerts Fave been prepared under tag histoncal cost corvention as modifed by the revaluation of certar financal assete
znd bahilities at fair value. The reasurement bases a~d princ'pal accounting palicies of the Group are set aut belmwy,

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling (£) because that is the presentational currency of the Gioup, Foreign
cperations ace included in accordance with the policies set out i note 2.

GChanges in accounting policies

Adoption of new and revised standards

In the current year, the following new and rovisod Standards and IMterprelations have been adopted. No amendmants 10 figu-es reportad

in these financial statements have been made as a resul; of adopting new and 1evised sizndards and interpretations, Disclosures have nesn
updated a5 1equired.

IFRS O Financial Instiuments

IFRS 15 Pevenue from Contracts with Custorers (and the rolated Clarifications)
IFAIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Cons deragtion

IFRS 2 lanendiments) Classification ancl measuremet of share-based payment ransactions
Anngal Inprovesents 2014-2016 cycie

IFRS 8 Financial instiuments {effective 1 January 2018)

IFRS © has im:ocluced & new classification approach far fnancial asscts and | abiles. The categorios of inancial assets aré now reduced

Irorn for to ti-iee and tnancial kahilites are measured a amcit'sed cost of far value through profit and loss, The standsrd also prescr bes an
‘expected credit l0ss model for detenmining ihe basis of providing for bzd debts. There was o material frwact onhe financial statenrents
due to the adopiion of IFRS 9.

IFRS 15 Revenus from Contracts with Customers (effective 1 January 2018)

(FRS 15 establishes a sngle comprebensive rodel for entiies to use in accornting for revenue ansing from contracts wilh custormers,
Elfeclive for accountng penads bedinng on or after 1 January 2018, IFRS "5 has supersede the previous revenus recognit o guiduence
inclocing 1AS 18 Revenuz, 145 11 Congiruction Contracts ard the re'ated interprerations.

An assessment of the impact of IFRS 15 has been compleied following review of the contracts that exist asross the Group's réven.e streams,
The review has conchuded that revenue recagnition under IFRS 1518 consistent with previous practice for the Groug's revenue recognition and
there was no material impact on the financial slatements due to the adopton of IFRS 15,

The group does not expeact any other standad issued by IASB, to have a material impact on the groug,
Standards and Interpretations in issue but not yet eflective

At the dale of authorisation of these financial statements, the follovang Standards and Interpretations which have na! been applied in these
financial statements were inissue but not yet el'ecive and in some cases had not ye! been adapted by the £

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Annualimprovements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements ang 148 12 Incomre Taxes
Amendments 1o IFRS 3 Busness Comrbinations —~ Defnition of e Business

Amendments te IFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative compensation

Amendments 10145 19 Pla~ Amend nent, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments 10 IAS 28 Long-tern interes s in Associates and Joint Ventuies

IFRIC 23 Unce i tainty over Income Tax Trealinents

The Gioup doos not expect those to nave a signihczart impact on the Group's frranzial statements with the excention of ITR3S 16 which
is dscusssd on [he next cage.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Basis of preparation and general information continuad

IFRS 16 Leases (effective 1 January 2019)

IFI3S 16 is expected to have a signiicant impact on the amounls recognised in the Group's consolidated financial stalements, Cn adoption
o IFAS 16 the Group will recognise within the balarce shest a right of use asset and lease lability for all agpl cable leases. W thin the income
stateiment, operating lease rentals payable will be repzlaced by depreciation and interest expense, This will result in anincreass in operating
profit and anincreage in inance costs.

Ihe Group will adopt IFRS 16 Leases from 1 January 2019 and apply the prospective approach aad 5o the comparative imforration wil not
be restated,

Tha Group will recognise a nght of use asset and a comesponding lease liabil ty n its balance sheet as on 1 January 2018, There will be no
impact on net assets or equity at that date.

Going concern

The Group's activities are funded by a comn nation of long--erm equity capital and bank faziities, primarity a revolving credht facility,
invo ce discounting and overdrafts. The Board has ieviewed the Group's profit ard cash flow projections, and appled sensitivities to
ine underlying assumptions.

These projections demonstrate that the Group expecis to meet ts obligat ons as they fall due vith the use of existing facilities and to
continue 10 'neet its covenant requirements. As at 31 December 2018 the Groap had undrawn facihties {exclud ng invoice discounting)
of £16.7m. The revabang credt facility has a term untl 2021 and the Group’s primary averdraft facilt es are due f2r rengweal in Jan_iary
and February 2020. Based on informal d'scuasions the Board has had with its lenders, we bave ne reason o believe Ihat these facilies
will not contnue 1 be availab e to the Group for the foreseeable future.

Asg a resul the Dnectors congider it appropriate to continue ta prepare the finanoal statements on a going concern basis.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of consalidation

The Groug financial statemen's consolidate 1hose of the Company and il cf its subaidiaries including tne Empresaria bmployee Benafit Trust
(EBT} from the date on which the Group obtans control ard cease to be consoldated fom the date onwhich the Group ceases its contrcl,

Gontrol is achieved when the Group:

= has the power cver the investes;

* 15 exposad. or has nghts, to variable returns from its involvemnent with the investee: and
+ has the abilty (0 vse its power to affects its retums.

Imtra-group transactions and profits are elminated fully on consolidaton. Amounts repored in the inancial statements of subsidha as have
heen adjusted where necessasy 1o ensure cons:stancy with the accounting pelcies adopted by te Group,

Nen-contralling interes:s 11 Lhe net assets of consalidated subsidianes aredentified separately from the Group’s equily therein, Non-
canuelling imerest congigts of the amaount of those interests at the date of the original business combination and the non-conlrolling
interest’s share of changes inequity since the date of tae combination ta%ing inte account any restrictions on non-coatrollirg interests,
Total comprehensive income is attributed 10 non-cortroling terests even if this results 'n the non-controlling interast having a defet balance.

| he results of subsidiaries agquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidatad income statement from the effective date
of acquisition or up 1o the effective date of disposal, as app-opriate.

Cranges 11 the Group's inerests in subsid anes that do not resul: in a loss of contral are accounted for as equity transactions, The carying
amouint of the Group's inerests ano the non-controling interests ars adjusted 1o reflec! the changes n their relative intarests in the subsidaries,
Any differenca batween the amount by which the non-contreling nterests are adusted and lhe ‘air valug of \he conwideration paid or received
1s recognised drrectly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies conlinued

Business combinations

The zequisition of subsidianegs 1s accounied for using the acquisition matnod. The cost of the acquisition s reasured at the aggrega'e of
the fzir value, at 11e dale of exchange. of assets given, kabilities incurred or assumedl. and equity Instrurnsres issued by the Group In exchange
for contre! of the acyi ee. Acquis tion relale:d costs are recogrised ir profis or loss es incuned, Whzre zpolcalile, the considaration lur the
acqusition ncludles any asset or labity resulting from a cont ygent censideralion arrangziment, measured at 1's acquisiiion datz far value.
Subsequent changes in such far values are adusted age nst ihe cost of acquisition vAere ey yually as measurement period adustin ents.
The measurement period is the parind fiom the date of acqu sition 10 the date the Group obtzing complete information abou facts and
circunstarces that existed as at the acquisition date and & 2 maximum of cne year. All other subsequent ¢changes in the fair valug of
contingent censideratior classiicd as an asset or hability are recogniseo in the mcemre statemert. Consideration linkeo 16 post-combiration
employee services are identifed separately from the husingss combination, Paymenl for these services is acco.nted for as post-acaaistion
rermuneraTion sepalately from the acquisition accountng.

The ecquiteg’s identiiable assats, habilities and contingent hap | ties that mest the conditions for recognition are recognised at their fair value
at the asquisition date, except for deferred tax assets and liablities or asse’s related to employee benefit arrangements which are recognised
and measured in ascordance with 1AS 12 Income taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively

Any non-cantrolling intergst at acquisition is assessed as the propo-tionate share in 1he recognised amounts of the acauree’s identifizbls
net asscts.

Nan-controll ng interest
t1 applying the Group's managemen: equity philosophy. subsidary rmanagement may be oftered 1he opportunry to acquire shares inthe
sunsichary tnat they are responsible fo-, at macket va'ue. Therg are no services sucplied hy any employee inrelzbon B this purchase of the

shares in the subs diary. After an agreed period, manageman: mzy offer 10 sell the stares back to {1e Comipany. The Cemipany does nat
have any oblgation o acquire these shares.

If amounts are paid for non-controling intarests in a subsid ary that exceed the far value of the equ ty acquired this excess amaunt 15 charged
to the Income stalerant.

Goodwill
Goodvr | asisirg o~ a business combination 1s recognised as an asset at the date that control 1s acqured ard 1s stated after separating out
iclentfiable intangibls assets.

Goodwill represents tne excass of acquistion cost gurer ths ‘ar value of the Growa's share of the ideniifiable net assets of the acqured
sucsiary at the date o acqui s hon.,

Goodvilis not amortised but 1s tasted at least annually for impanmert, Gocdwill @ zllocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units,

If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 18 fess than the cantying amaount of the unrt, the impaimen: loss is first allocated agzinst
goodwill and then 1o the other assets of the uat 0 a pro-tata bass, An mpairment foss teccgnised far goodwall 1s ot reversed na
sunsequent pe- od.

On disposal of a subs diary. the attribytaole goodwil is included in the calcutation of proft or loss on d sposal

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition 1o 1=RS (1 January 2006) has beearetained at the previous UK GAAP
carrying amo.unt.

Intangible assets
Anintangble asset, whch is an identifizble non-moncta-y asset without physical substance, is 1ecognised to the extent that tis priababe
that the expected future economnic benefits attnbutable to the assct will flow to the Group and that its cost can be measured relably,

Intangola asscts azqured sepaszle’y — mtangble assets that are acquired separately are carmad al cogl less accunilated amo-tsation and

accumulated rpa 1ment losses. AMGrusaton is recoyised un & straight-ine bass over then estimated usetul Ifa. 1he estimated usef ! ife
and amorbsaton method are reviewed at the end o gacl repoting period, with any changes being accounte: for on a prospecive Lass,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Inlangble assets acqiared i a busiNess oMo naton - Intang hle assats acquired n a business combination and (ccognised separately from
goodvill are indially recognised at their fal- value a: the azquisition date (regarded as ther cost). They are subsequertly reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accurrulated impainmenl on the samea basis as intangible assels acquired separately.

Armoriisation of intangible assets
Arnortisation iz charged to the income staterment and calculaled using he straight-ing method over its estimated useful Ve as follows:

Customer relations upr to fifteen years
Tradema-ks up to fifteen years
Saftware up to five years

Impairment of tangible and imangible assets excluding geodwill

the carrying anounts of the Grows's tangible and intang e assels are reviwed aganst ther regrverable amount for any indication of
impairment at each balance sheet date or whenever there 1s an indication that the asset may be inrpared. Animpairment loss is recognised
in the income sta'ement whenever the carrying amount of an asset o its cash-gerera‘ing unit exceeds its cecoverable amount,

Whare animpainment loss subseguently reverses, the carryig amount of the asset is indreased to the revised estima'e of its recoverabls
amount, such that it does not exceed the carry ng amourt that would have existed had no inpairment loss been recogrised, The reversal
of the imeamment 10ss is recognisad in profit ar loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, p'ant and cqguipment 1s stated at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation and any recognised irmpairmenrt nss,

Dep-eciation is caloulated usirg the straighi-line metbod to write off the cosl o vatuation of tha asvets Jess their fesidisal values oves thei
useful lves as lollows:

l.easshold prope ty over e tenm of the bease up to 8 maximum of 10 years
Fixtures, fthings anct equipreant up to five years
Molor vehicles up to five yoars

The estimated usefut ives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, wih any changes
accountsd for on a prospective basis. Gans and lossaa on disposals are determinad by companng proceeds with carrying amounts,
These arg incluued N e income statement,

Borrowing costs
Interes! costs are recognised as an expensa in the panod invhich they are incurred. Facilty artangement fzes incurred in tespect ot
borrowings are amortised aver the tenr of the agreement

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comrprise cash-in-hand, deposits held st call waih basies and olhier shorbterm highty bauid nvestments with
orginal maturives of three ronths or less. Bank overdrafis are meludad vathin Ihe bealance sheet in current habiliies - short-tern borrowmgs.

Invoice financing

The Group's operating activities are part funded by an hwoice linancing fasiity. The debil provider has full recoursg Lo the Group for avy
irecoverable debil; these debts are presanted within current vonowings and the asset dus from the customer in current 23setsin ne Groap's
batance sheet,

Movements in the invoice discounting balance are treated as ‘Cash flow frorm financing activit es” i the Group's Cash flow statement.

Interest charges on inoice discounting are includad 0 firance costs and service charges are iIncludead i atdiriistrative costs i the Graup's
ncome stateiment,

Financial assets
Financ'al assets are divided into the following categories:

¢ financial assets at fai- value through profit and loss (FVPL}

* amortised cost.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies continugd

Fair value through prof t and loss (FVPL)

Forward currency cortracts and conungerl consideration are held in the baiance shaet at fair va'ue with changes in the fa r valua being
recordsd through the income statement and ars classified as inangial Inst-uments at far value through piofit and loss.

Amortised cost

Assels accounted for at ameshised coat a-e non-denvative financial assets vath fixeo or determinahy's payents thal are not quoted in an
active market. They are itially recorded at far value and subsequentiy; imeasured at e mortised cost For rade recenalles amortised cost
includes an allowance for expecteu cred: losses. Ths 15 assessed by grouping assets Into caejores wih simila risk profiles and applying
a prov.sion miatrix to each of thesa which 1s aszesssd by reference 10 past dofault experience and vano s other sources of actual and
forecast economic infor mation.

Financial liabilities
The Group's financial labites include borrowings and trade and other payables (including fmance lease liabiltes), They are iecagnised intally
g' far value, net of transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cosr usirg the effective mterest methad.

Financial iabiities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual agreements of the inshument. All interest-related
charges ard. if applicablg, changes in the Insirument's fair value that are repo-ted in the profit or 1085 are included in the income statemernt | ne
iterns Finance cos's or Finanze income.

Borrowings gve class fied as curtent habilies un'ess *he Group has an unconditional tight ta defer settlamet of the lability fo- at least
12 months after the balance sheet date.

Trade and other payables are initially stated at far value, Subsecuent measurement 1s at amortised Sost.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Groun has a present ebligation as a result of 2 past exent, 115 probatse that the Groun will be required to
seltle tral oblgaton and a relatie estmate can ne made of the amount of the cbigation, P-gvisions are measured at the Directors' best esumate
of the expendiit_ire recjured to seltle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effec: is material.

Revenue
Revenue compnises the fai- value of the considerat on received or receivable for the sale of services provided in the ord.nary course of the
Group's actrities. Revenue is shown net of value acided tax. bade discounts, rebaces and other sa’es-related taxes.

Permanent placen-ant revenue Is recogn sed at the pont when the candidate commences emrpleyiment. Terrporary, cantract and aursourcng
revenue (including o.tsourced sarvices) is recognised on the basis of actual work performed i the releyant period baserd on timesheets
sunmitted. Ravenue from offshote reciuitment setvices isi1ecognised as the services ae delivered.

In situaticns where the Group is the prncipal i ibe vansaction, the ransactions aie recordad gross in the statement of comprehenave
income. When the Group acts as an agent revenues are reported on a net basis, No tevenue 1s recagnised if thare are significant uncertainties
regarchng recovery of the conaderation,

Net feg income
Net fee Income represents reverue less the remune- ation cost of temporary waorkers. For parmanent placements net fees ale equal to revenus.
For tainng and offshore recruitment services net fee incone represents revenue less costs of stafl directly providi g those services.

Employes benelits
Retirement benefit costs
Paymoents made to defined contributian ret iement benefit schemes are charged to e inzome statement as they fall dua.

Snara based paymen's

The Group 1ssues equity-sattled shara-based pay TENS 10 Senicr Managament, which are measJdred at far vzlue (excluding e effect of non-
market-based vesting conditions} at the date of grant and expensed on a straight-iine basis over the vesting cenod, basec on the Group's
estimzlz of snares that will evertually vest and adjusied for the eflect of non-market-tiased vesting cond tions,

he tarr value of the apt ons granted is meazured using e Monte Carlo simutation mode and Black-beholes mizdel. tatang Into aceount the
terms and conditions upon which the options wers granted.
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2 Summary of significanl accounting policies continued

The Group provides nances o at Cmp oyee Beneit Trust (COT, o purchase cotpany shares to pactly mect the obl.gation to provide shares
when employess exercise ther cpiions or awards. Cosls of runeing 1ne EBT are crarged to the »come statement. Shares held by the FRT are
deducted from oher reserves. A transfer is imade between other raservas and retained earnings over the vesting periods of the related shae
options or awards.

Leases

Leases thal result in the Group receiving susnstantially all of the risks and rewards of cwretship of an assel ase treated as nance loases.

An asset held undar a financa lease 13 1ecorded in 1he balance sheet and depreciated over the sharter of its estimated usetul life and the
jease lerm. Futurg instal nents net of finance charges are ingluded wiihin botowings, Minmum lkease paymenis are apportioved belvieen the
finance charge elerment, which is allocated to each pe‘iod to produce a constant perodic rate of interest on the ramaning Jzbilty and crarged
0 the income stateent and the oninzipal element which reduces the ocutstanding liabilty,

Rental costs arising from aperating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease, Where anincenive 1s received 10
enler inta an operating lease, such incentive (s treated as a hability and recagnised as a reduction to the rental expense on a slraight-ling basis
over the perixd of the lease.

Farward contract for foreign currency
Forward currency contracts are stated at farr value. with ary gain o1 10353 aising an remeasurement recognised in proft orioss

Taxes

Current tax

Current tax assatls and liabies for the Gurtent 2nd prior years are measui st &l the amaount expocted to be recover el fiom of paid to
the taxat o authorities. The tax rates and the ax laws used 1 comaute the amoun are thase tha! are enacten or substantvely enacledd
by the balance steet date.

Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is providad, using the liaz Lty method, on tempcerary differences at the balance sneet date between the tax bases
of asscts and labities and ther carryirg ameunts for financial reporing purposes.

Deferted ncome tax liabilt s ave recagnised for all taxahle temporary differences, except.
* wihere the deforred incomao tax labilty arises fiom the initial recogniton of goodwill or of an asset or lizohty in a transaction thatis
nat a business combination and, at the time of the Iransaction, affects nefthar the account rg profit nor taxahle profit or loss, and

* inrespect of taxable termporary differences associated with investments in subs diaries, where the timing of the reversal of tive temporary
differences can be controlied and it is probable that the temporary ditferences will not reverse in the foreseeanls future.

Defarred income tax asssts are recognised on an unaiscounted basis for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unnised lax
credits and unused tax losses, to 1he extent tiat it is prabable that taxable profit will be avalable agamnst which the daduct ole temporary
differences and the carry-forward of unused tax creails and unused tax lossas can be utivsed, except.

wieie Ihe deferred income tax asse! relating to the deductivle temmporary difference anses from the mitial recognition of an assel or hability
N a transachon that 13 not a busiNess compingtion and, at the ime of the transachan affects neither the accounting profit no- taxab'e peofit
or loss, anc

in respect o° dediuctible temporary differences associated with investiments in subsidiaries, deferred tax asse's are recogn-sed only to the
extent that it is probatle thal the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be avalable against which
the temporary oifferences can be utiised.

Tne caryng amount of deferred incame tax assels is 1eviened at each balance sheet dals and reduced to the extent that itis no longer
probable that sufficient taxable prohit vill be available to allow all or part of the deferred incorme tax assel 1o be utiised. Unrecogn zed defeared
income tax assels ara reassessed al each balance sleel date and are tecogrised o the extent that it has became prebabe 1hat “utue
taxable profit will aliow the deferred 1ax asset 0 be recavered.

Changes in deferied tax assets or labilites are recognised as a component of 1ax exsanse m the income statement, except where they relate
ter items that a‘e cnarged or cred ted drectly 10 equity inwhich case te related deferred tax is also charged or credited directy to equity.
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2 summary ot significant aceounting policies continued

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentational currency

Hems included in the rdvidual financal statemenvs of cach Group company a-e measyrea using 1he indwvidual currency of the primary
econcmic environment in which that subsidiary operates {its “funciional currency ). The consoldates financial sta‘ements are presented
11 Pouands Sterling winchnis the Company's funcl enal and presentationz! currency.

Transactions and balances

Fareign currercy transactions are translzied into the functional curreney usitg Lhe exchange rates prevaling gt (he dates of the transactions,
Fareign exchange gains and logses resuling rom the settte nent of such hansactons aad o 1he banslation at period-end excliayge rates
of monetary assers and hanilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the incoma statement, Exchange differences on
maoretary itens receivable £:0 or payable 0 a foreign aperation for which settlement is neither planned nar ikely 10 occur (Iherelore forming
part of the net irvestment In the foreign operation) are recognised inltizlly in other comprehensive income. These exchange differerces are
reclassified from equity (o profit ar loss on disposal or pa‘tial d.sposal of the net invastinent.

Group companies

The results and financial posiicn of Groun companies none of whizh has the currency of a hyper inflationary economy) that have a functional

currency dilferent from the Company's presentation currency are tanslatad into the presentation currency as lollows:

« assels and iabillies for ¢ach balance sheet presented ae translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

* income and expenses for each income statement ais translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reascnrable
approxenation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevaling on the transaction dates. 17 which case ncome and expenses e tianslatad
at the dates of the lansachions); 21

all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate Component ¢ eguity within (g retransialion reserve.

Net investments in foreign oparatiors
Any gain or loss on retranslation of intercompany amounts consicered to be part of a net investimant, 1S recogIses in equity in the foregn
currancy translation reserve,

Equity
Equity comprises the {ollowing:
= “Share cap lal” represents the nominal value of equity sharas.

* “Share premium eccouit” represents the excoss over nom nal vaue o° the tar value o' consideration receted for eounty shares, net
of expenses of the share1$sue.

* “Moiger reserve” relatles to priemiums ansing on sha'es issued subject to the provisions of secton 612 "Merger relet™ of the
Companies Act 2000.

* Retranslation reserve” represerns the exchange differences arising from tha transtation of the financial sta'ements of foreign subs dares.
¢ “Equity reserve” represents rmavenent in equity due te acqu sition of non-controling interests under :FRS 3 Busingss combination.

» “Qther reserves” represents the share based payment reserve of 20.6m (2017 £0.6m) and oxchange d.f‘erences or inicompany long-
term receivables amod ting ta (£1.3m) (2017 {£1.3m)) which are freated as a net investment in foreign oparatons.

» "Reta ned eamings” represents accumulated profi's less chstnbutions and income / expense recognised i1 equity from incorpora: on,

« “Non-contreling imterest” represents efuity in a subsidiary not attributable. directly or indirectly. to the Group,
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3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In applying the Group's accounting polcies, the directors are required 10 imake Jugdgements. estimates &nd assumplions alout the cany ng
values of assets anc liabilites. These estinvates ard judgements are continaally evaluated and are based on hislorical experience and otiner
relevant factors, Actual resulis may differ from these estimates.

Critica! judgements in applyving the Group’s policias
The following are the crit cal judgements that the direciors have macdia in applying the Group's acounting policies and that have the most
significart efect on thie armounts recoynised in financial staterments:

Business combinations

Accounting for a business cambination involves a numker of far vallie estimations and depending on the size of tha investiment 1nese can

ba a matenal area of jurigement, The main judgements are in the recognition and valuation of intangible assets acauired and include the
assassimen! of the timing and amount of futtire incremertal cash flows generated by the assets and sslection of an appropriate discoont rate.
Details of intangible assels recognised in bJs ness coinbinatons in the year are given in role 13. Given the size of the acquisition in the year
ing jJudgeiments made ae not considerad ciitical for these f.nancial siatemen's and so no fuithel disclosure of assumptiors used Fas

been piovided.

ey source of estimation uncertainty
The key sssumptions concerning the future and other key scurces of estimat on uncertanty at the raporting peiod that may have a signiicant
rsk of causing a matenal adjustiment to the Carrying amount of assets and habintigs with the next linanciad year, are discussod below

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests goodw b for impzinnent at least annaally. The recavenable arvount is detenm ned based on value-in-use caledlations, This
method requires the ostmation of future cash flavrs and the assessment of a sutable discount 12le in o-dlor to caleulate their present value,
Deails of the impa iment review calculation and senstiviies are set out innote 1o,

4 Segment and revenue analysis

Information reported 10 the Goup's Executwe Comimties, consiciered 1o be the chief operating dacision make' of the Group for the purpose
ol resource allceation and assessmert of segmenl performance, is based o1 geograph.c region. The Group's business is segmented inta four
regions, UK, Continental Europe Asia Facdic and the Anericas.

The Grouw has one prncipal activity, the provis on of stalfing and recrutiment services. Bach husiness uit 1s ranaged separately with local
mangageme it responsible far implementing local strategy.

The a2nalysis of the Group's business by geographical ongin is set out below:

Cortma-te £ a Central nrragooup

e Europs Pag:fic Americes cozts elminahgnsg Tolal
Yzdr end=d 31 Dacembar 2018 £m £en £~ £m £ £m Em
Revenue 857 061 1368 48.6 - 0.4 3668
Net fee ncome 237 15.6 4.5 89 {0.4) 72.3
Adjusted operating profit” 29 a.7 B4 2.3 (3.7 - 12.3
Operating profit 24 4.5 5.4 1.7 (3.7} - 10.3

A STANCY Brod s 8T3Ted C2A07E 3MON Sa1an of miang e asts dentn2d n ous “E8s St gl ors, exdit nstrems, §aim on o o1 Jufinal 0° Lusmessy 2nd - 43l

chargs or an of ner-contralling shaas.

Rovenue of Continertal Europo includes £79.9m from Germany and revenuc of Asa Pacific includes £100.8m from New Zealand.

One masr of ent N the Asia Macfic segment cantributed 11,57, of the Groud's revenue (2517 21,75 and 4932 of the Grouwr's not foo vcan-g
{2017, 3.3%¢).
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4 Segment and revenue analysis continued
Tne follovsing segnrent analys s by seclor has veen included as acoional ¢.sclosure to the reaurament of IFES 8

Cortrental dara
Tarogs Paciig A~ s7lag Tatal
Year ended 31 Decerosr 2018 i £ £m £m
Property, plant and eguipmeant 0.2 1.2 0.4 241
Goodwil 146 6.0 18 371
Orher intang bles assets G D8 54 5.4 17.7

Continental Europs includles £14,0m of these assets in Cenmany, Asia Pacific includes £9.4m in New Zealard ana Americas Includes £7.4m
n USA.

Cantreral Asa
V]9 Europs Racifc Az tag Tetal
Yesr ar.32d 31 Oecember 2015 £ €r, £m m £m
Caotal expenditure incarred (including soflware) 0.2 0.2 1.0 01 1.5
Significant non-cash expenses (depreciation, amaortisation
and trade receivable impairment) 0.8 0.4 1.8 0.7 3.7
The analys’s of the Group's revenue and net fee ncoimie by cliznt destinztion is set out below:
Continsatai As s Fesl ot Imirageoun i
UK Europa Pacific Amancii Woln elmraong Total
Maae 2d2d 31 Dacembsr 2018 £m £ £ £r e £m £m
Revenue 1036 1245 4.0 52.6 7.4 {04, 366.8
Net fee incoms 235 20.9 16.3 1.2 0.7 {0.4) 72.3
Tre analys 5 of the Groun's hus ness by geagraphica! origins set oul below
7 Cornbirzrat Awg Centrz
LK Euroge Fazhe AML- cas Togts Total
Yearendzd 31 Deercer 2017 £m Lo £ Cen T em
Revenue 86,7 98.8 1327 38.9 - 3571
Net foe rizome 234 6.5 222 7.3 - 69.4
Adjusted operating proft” 26 8.1 2.8 1.0 (2.5) 1.8
Operating profit 21 5.9 2.5 0.5 (2.6} 8.7
= Anpatzd opecating pritis slated Cefcrs amenisaten of tang bis 2ssans ident i2d 1 Busitess SMDr At ons, excsIoast sants, Jan o loss or d 500830 0F s nossts ana far valuz
chargs o0 21auean of nar-tanteallng shsqoes

Revenue of Contnemal Evrope ncludes £82.5m from Germany and revenue of As a Pacific includes C£97.5m from Nevw Zealand.

The followng segrien: analysis by sactor has been inchided as additional dhsclasu-g to tre requirement of IFRS 8

Cartnzntal Asim
U= Lurces Facihc Amentas Tatal
Yearendsd 31 Dagemter 2537 - £ m £ £€m £m
Property, plant and equipment 0.3 02 a7 0.2 1.4
Goodwil 1.9 115 6.3 3.2 35.9
Oiherintanglles assels 8.5 1,0 58 4.8 18.2

Contingrtal Europe includes assets of £14.4min Germany Asia Pacilic ncludas £8.7mvin New Zealand and Americas ircludes £7.4m in USA,

Cantrareal Asiz
Lir Eurups Paciy Amenitag Total
Yearendzd 3 Docerhar st/ L or em s Em
Capital expendiure ncureed {including software) 0.z 0z 0.4 01 0.9
Significant non-cash expanses {depreciation. amotsation
and trade rece vaole impaiimoentt [Nal 0,4 1.5 0.6 3.5
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41 Segment and revenue analysis continusc!

The analys-s of the Group's revenac and net fee income iy clent destination is se! out beloys:

GCoatrentzl Aslz
UK E.rcos Pacdic Arnanicas Total
Yaar anded 31 DECRMper 2017 £ £m £ £m tm
Feverns 107.8 123.8 8.7 40.8 3574
Net fee income 20.8 229 17.0 87 69.4
The fol.owarg gsegmental analysis by sector and service type has been provided i1 Ine with the requirements of IFRS 15
. - 2018 7 2017
RPO/ RE
Temporary afishore Tarporary efrsh
and recruitment AnT  receotment
Permanent cortrasl services Total Farrma-er: Lontrazt s2rvies Tital
Re.znua fm £m fm fm £m €M em i~
UK 1241 73.6 - 85.7 1.6 751 - 837
Caontinenta! Europe 0.3 £5.8 - 85.1 .5 93.3 - 938
Asia Pacific 10.4 119.3 74 136.8 10.3 1179 4.5 132.7
Amencas 4.2 44.4 - 48.6 36 35.3 33.9
lntrag-oup ehmnations - - -_ (b4 {04 - - - -
270 33341 8.7 366.8 26.0 326.8 4.5 3571
4 | 2318 2617 B
RPO! e
Temperary ottshore Terpordry cffabae
and recruitment ANy 0o Tment
Permaneant cantract ServIGes Totat Ferrizeers zo-tact s3ra288 Total
izt fea mzome £m £m m £m £rn b £ £
UK 12.0 1.7 - 23.7 1.6 1.8 - 234
Continental Eurone 0.3 15.3 - 15.8 05 16.0 - 16.5
Asia Pacific 10.2 10.0 4.3 24.5 0.8 0.8 26 222
Amvcricas % | 4,8 - B89 C 3.9 - 73
Miragroup eliminations L - = {04 (0.4) - - - -
26.6 41.8 38 723 253 1.5 2.6 (9.4
The folloving segmental 2nalys's by sector and scivice type has been prov ded in addition to the rcourements of IFRS 15
. Net fee Nat ‘=2
Revenue RevInuz income regme
2018 217 2018 2317
Em £m £m £m
Technizal & indusirial i21.5 129.7 19.8 21.3
IT, chgital & design 58.9 56.4 19.3 17.9
Proless oral servicss 16.8 14.3 74 6.2
Avigtion 1007 Q7.4 8.9 5.7
Retai 44,2 35.2 5.8 4.9
Exacutive search 4.9 4.7 4.6 4.5
Healthcare 14.0 13.5 4.3 a5
Other services - o . o 58 5.9 .45 a7
366.5 3571 72.3 639.4
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5 Exceptional items
Exceptional items are trose vmich, m management s judgement need 1o pe disclosed separately by virtua of their size or incidence in order
for the reader 1D obtain 2 proper understanding of the fnancial informator.

2018 2111_;
tm Fin
hmpa rment of gootw - 03 -
0.3 -

Anmpainmant charge of £0.3m refa'ed 10 4 busiress m the Asie Paciic reg on hzs been recognised in 2018, Further details can be found
mnaie "5,

6 Fair value charge on acquisition of non-controlling shares

In line with the Group's accountng policies (ses note 2), whate arwounts paid for non-contreling interest shares exceed the fair value of the
ezuity acgJired, the excess 1s charged to the income statement, This typically ocours where there arc restrichons over the rights of the shares
as is often the case for second gene-ation ecpuly. The Group's management equity philosopny is described 10 more datall .nthe fnance rev ew
onpage 23,

2013 207
e £m Tn
Fair valaz charge on acqu sition of non-connollir.gisjw:ares _7_ ' e _;; 03
T o i - Q.3
Further details an the non-contralling shares acquired intha year are provdied in the firance review on paga 23
7 Operating profit
Operating prolil 1s sta'ed after charging.
2018 2017
£m £m
Deprecation of procerty, plart and equiprnent o 0.9 a8
Amortisation of intangible assels idenited in business corbinalicns 1.7 1.7
Amartisation ol sollware 041 0.1
Imoainmant of goadwail 0.3 -
Operaling laase charges 5.4 5.0
Nel ‘oreign exchange gain {0.1) -
Share-basad paymenls - {0 2]
Acquigition refated costs 0.1 -
Trade receivabls impainments a7 0.8
Auditor's rermunaratian 04 0.3
The analysis of a.ditor's remunera on is as follows:
- ’ 2018 Hal
€000 £UT0
Fee payable 1o the Campany’s auditor for tha audt of the Group annual ascounts 380 342

Aud tor's remune-ation ncludas fees payable of £254,000 (2017 £238.000) ‘or the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries putsuant to legislation,
Nun-audit fees of £14,000 (2017 Ui} were incurred for tax adoce durng the year vwo'h a BDO memtxer frm in the peniod hefore they were
epocinted the Company’s aud tor.
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8 Directors and employees

2018 2017
£em £m
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 37.7 35.0
Social security cosls 3.6 33
Pension costs 0.7 Q.7
Sharebasedpayments . = a2y
42.0 39.7
Detalls of Qireciors’ rermuneration are given o pages 39 1 42,
T 2018 2017
MNo. (Y3
Average menthly number of persons employed - sales and administraton S 1825 1,367
Number of persons emplayed as at 31 December - sales and administration 1,805 - 361
9 Finance income and costs
T 2018 PORES
£m s}
Finance income
Bank interest receiveble 02 o1
I _" o 02 o
Finance costs
imvoice fnanaing {0.2) 0.2
Bank loans and overdralts 0.7} 0.5
‘nterest on ax payments o - {o2) -
e _ e un . on
Net finance costs ' ) 0.9)  (08)
10 Taxation
{a) The lax expense for the year is as follows:
- 2013 o7
£m £m
Current tax - ) -
Current year InCome lax expense 4.3 38
Adustments in respect of pricr years B (0.4} -
Total current tax expense ] 4.2 38
Deferred tax
Deferred tax credit L -~ {08} {d.2}
Total income tax expense in the income statement 3.6 3.8
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10 Taxation continued

(b} Factors alfecting the income tax expense for the year

The table below explans the differences belween the expeclod income tax expense and the Group's astua nooie tax exgoense for the yeas.
The expected income tax exzense is assaessed by applying the loca! 1ax rates to the prafils in eac businass and aggregating these emounts.
1 his leads to an average lax rate for 2018 of 3035 (2017: 3234).

217
2013 £m
Em R;-pr:-semei_
Profitbefore taxation e 84 8
fax at (e relevant tocal rates 2.8 26
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.3 0.3
Fxceptioral expanse items nol deductible fo: tax purposes 0.1 0.7
Cuirent year losses not recognised for lax purposes 0.3 0.3
Deferred lax on unremitted overseas earnings 04 G
Dividend distribunion tax Q.1 -
Adjusinents n respect of prior years (0.1} -
Write down of losses previously recognised as deferred tax assets o = o
Tax expanse T T 3.6 3.6

* Tn: 2207 fiqures nave bren ra prasecied 0 2Inclzs fizm tnz ralalant ool L Fars 1A of NEAN N2 UK 1001212 23 ¢S onsh press 12y Tre GeJup cpoiafes nmas ¢ unsdhahiing and
T2 rey 52 o232t on P Gotee mova cEle AN ffgrmatss 2 dremairg o Inz vkt res e~ znts of 182 12 Income Tases

The movement in defened taxis explained in note 22,

No tax was cecognsed in ather comprehensive inceme (2017 £nil).

11 Reconciliation of adjusted profit before tax to profit before tax

2018 207

Em £
Profit pefore tax 7 9.4 8.1
Exceptional tems 0.3 -
Fair value charge on acquisition of ngn-controling shares - 0.3
Lass o business disposal - 0.9
Amorlisation of intangible assets dentificd in business cormbinat o1 . A7 1.7
Adjusted profit belore tax 1.4 11.0

Empresaria Group ple , &nncal Report & Accouts 2018 67



Financials

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

12 Earnings per share

Basic eainngs per share is assessed by dyiding the earrings attibutable to the owners of Empresar 2 Group ple by the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year. Diluted earnings per share s calculated as for basic €arnings per share buit adjusting te wegnted
average number of shases for the diluting impact of shares that could potentially be issues. For 2018 and 2017 these are all 1elalad to sharc
options and further detals car he faund in note 29 a~d the Dirgolors” remunerat o repott on pages 33 to 42, Besonaliations batwesn basic

ad difuted measwres ara given below.

The Group also resarts adiisted eamings per shiare wh ch it cansiders o e a key measure of e Group's parformance, A reconciliaton of

earnings to adjusted earnings & provided below.

2013

2
e - e ) - - o £m £m
Earnings -
Farrengs attributatle to equity holders of the parent 4.6 4.1
Adjustmients:
Exceptional tems 0.3 -
Fa'i value chargs on acouisihion of non-controling shares - 03
Loss on business digposal - 0e
Arnarhisation of intangibie assels identified n business comMbinations 1.7 3.7
Tax cn the above 0.3} {04}
Nor-controlling inte:ests inrespect of all the above . e . o1y 02
Adjusted earnings ’ T o o B o 6.2 G4
Nurmber of shares - Mituons Mill ors
We'ghted aveiage numbe: of shares - basic T 50.6 50.2
Diution effect of shareoptions — _ Lo 04 05
Weghied average number of shares - diluted S 51.0 514
Earnings per share . ‘ Pence Fecg
Basic R T T 9.2 8.0
Dilution efiact of share options o e 0.1} @1
Dilted - - 9,4 79
Eiusled earnings per share ) T " Pence Pancs
Basic 12.2 12.6
Blution efiecl of share options - _ S — oy 08
Diluted ' o T s ) 124 128

The weighed average number of shares (basic) has baen calculated as tne weighted average number of shares inissue during the year plus
the number of share ophons already vested less the weighted average nurmber of shares held by 'he tmpresar a Employee Bereft Trust. The

T-ustees have waived therr rights 10 dividends on the shares held by tne BEimpresara Employee Beneht Trust
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13 Business combination and disposals

{a) Businass combination

On 11 July 2018 t-¢ Graup invested in B0% of the shares 11 Grupo Sclimane 5. A. €., anes ablished provider of outscuiced and lemporary
stalfing services in Peru. This aceu sition strengthenrs the Group's presence in the ngh-potental Latin Amer car staffing markat. Tha remaining
405 of shares have been reta ned by management inling with the Graup's management ety philososhy.

Tha tolal far value of consideration 1s expected to be £2.2m, wcladhrg cash pad dunng 2018 of £2.0m and £0.2m of addtioral cash
consideration exoectad to pe paid in 2019, subjent to the audtt of Griny Sohmane's rasilts for tie year anded 31 Decarrber 2018.

The fair value of assets aacd kabilties, at 1005, as 3¢ the date of the buainess ¢omnnat on arg 8o ot in e table below:

Fair value
£m
Intangible assets IECOQ;TISE!d on AcquIsition

Custormer relations 0.6
Irade name and brands o 02
T ' ' Y X
Property, plant and equipment 0.
Trade and othe’ recovables 2.4
Cash at bank 0.4
Trace and other pzyables {1.8)
Bank Loar {0.2)
Deterred tax Fability lecognised on intangils assots (0.2}
Deferted tax assels 0.
Net assets ' T T T
Non-controling mtarest {at 4076 {0.6}
Goodwil 12
Total T ‘ j - 2.2

“he ran-conroling interest al acauisibion 1s assessed as the propo-tisnate share i the recognised amounts of 1ie acaur ge's identthialie
nat assets.

Acquisiton refated costg of £O1m have bean msurted and are recogrised directy in the income statament withir adinyn slrative cosls.
Goodlvill cormprises unrecogrised inlangiole assels n respect of its employees and 1eir close urderstanding of their chent’s raqu rements
which are of great imparance in ihe tecuitment business. The subsidiaries of Grupe Salimano S, A €. are run as one operating unit and the

goodvzll on acquisiton has thergfore been allocated to the business 53 a whole and not 12 a lower lezel. Nong cf the goatdwillis deduchivle fr
tax puposes.

All payments made {01 tha shares are considerad 1o be part of the acquisiion consdaiation, There are no contingert payrnents which meet
the rtecurements 1o be assessed as a separate transaction, nclading in respect of post-acquisitcn employment scivices.

In 2018 the investment has contributed C7.6m to the Gioup's revenue. and £0.1m to the Group's proft. If the nvestment had been conrdleted
on 1 January 2018 the Group's revenue for the year would have been £375,1m ard the Group’s profit for the year wou < have been £6.0r.
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13 Business combination and disposals continued
(o) Business disposal

In September 2017 the Group dispased of its 51% investiment in PT Leainng Resoursas, a training businass m indonesia. Thie Group's shiare
of the nat assels of this subsidiary at the date ¢! digposal were as fol ows'

e
Property, plant and equipment ’ O_1_
Trade and ather recenvables 0.9
Tracte and ather payables {0.4)
Cash and cash equivalen's 0.1
Tax prepayments and deferred tax assets L L AN
Net assets (funded by historic intercompany loan} e o o 0.8
Non-controllirg interest and fore'gn exchange balances i 0.2
ST ; e [ 5
Cons.deration ecewed o - o
I-_-cv;;(;n t-)ﬁsiness disposai- U T 7 T 0.8

In 2017 PT Learming Resouwr 2es contriputed £0.7m o e Group's revenue, Apar fromnithe Izss on bushess disposal. rs operations contrbuted
aloss of £0.2rm 1o e Group's prodt a'ter vax. If covinbuled ppeiating cash cutfiows of £0.20 1o the Group's net operating casn fows,

14 Property, plant and eqguipment

ftiings End Rzrer

eFdipTIE" ! ahcles Total
2018 £ im £m
Cost T ) -
Al T January 21E 4.6 5.8 0.2 6.6
Business combinatiens {(soc note 13Y — 01 - 0.1
Additons 0.4 jake] - 1.3
Drsposals - {0.7) - {0.7)
Foreig- exchange movement B _ - a1 ot - b2
At31 December2018 - - 11 8.2 0.2 7.5
Accumulated deprociation
At 1 January 2018 0.2 44 0.1 5.2
Depreciation 0.2 a.7 0.9
Dsposals .7 - 10.7}
Forgign exchange moverngnt o R - - - -
At 31 December 2018 0.4 49 A 5.4
Netbook value o e o S
A3t December 207 S 04 69 01 14
At 31 December 2018 3.7 1.3 [0 241
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Easencls T'ltrrllg; i'.sj [ Aot

Tprovemants e JuipTent afizlas Taval
27 £m £m rn £m
Cost -
Al 1 January 2017 0.0 a1 0.2 [ERY
Additions - 0.8 - 08
D sposals - 10.9) - (0.9
Foreign exchange movement . ) - (0.2] - 0.2
At 31 December 2017 - I 08 58 02 86
Accumulated depreciation
A1 January 2017 0.2 51 0. 53
Nepreciation - 0o - 0.9
Disposals {3.8} - (0.8
Forgign exchange moverngnt B ~ I o s I -
A 31 December 2017 - 0.2 44 01 52
Net book valua N o 7 B
Ai3) Decenber 2016 - - 04 1 o1 8
At 31 December 2017 j B T ¥ 08 0.1 1.4
15 Goodwiil

2018 2017
£Em £m

At 1 January T N 359 360
Business cambnations {see 1o'e 13) 1.2 ~
impa nnent charge {0.3) -
Fareign exchange movervant _ o B 0.3 0y
At 31 December o - o R - 371 35.9

Goodwill is reviewed and tested for impairment on an annugl basis or more frequently 1 there s an irdication that goodwill mght e impaired.
Goodwll! has been tested for impairmant by companng the carrying amount of the group of cash generating unils (CGUs) the gooawill has
been gllocated 10, with the recoverable arrount of those CGUs. The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are considéred to be ther valug in use,

The key assumplons N assessing value in ase a'e as follows:

Operating profit and pre-tax cash flows

Tre operating profit and pre -tax cash flow is based on the 2018 budgets appioved by he Group's Boarg, These cudge's a-e extrapolated
using short-term industry growth rate forecasts and lang-tem growth rales and margins thal are consistent with the business plans approved
bty the Group's Board. These casn flows are discounted to present value I assess the value n Jse.

Discount rates

The pre-tax, coustry specific ra'es used to discount the Icrecast cash fiows range rom 8% 1o 16% 12017: 83 to 159 reflecting current
local maket assessments of the time value of money ard the risks specific ‘o the relevant business. These ciscount rates reflect the
estimated midashy weigh'ed average cost of casital meach maket and are based on he Groups weightled arerage cost of capital

addjusted ‘or local factors,

Pre-tax diIscoust rates used by operating segmient are as follmws:

UK 9.4%;
Continenta Furcpa: 8.3% to 6,65
Aszig Pactic, 875 to 16"
Amcricas 113010 135
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15 Goodwill continued

Growth rates

The growth rates used to extrapolate beyond the most 1ezent budgels and ‘orecasts and to detenmine terminal values ars basgd upon
long term average GDP growth forecasts for tha refevant courtry. Growth rates are capped at 6% lor the purposes of th s caloulation
and range fro 1 0,5% to 5.0%, GDP growth is a key drver of ou business, and is there‘ore an apprognale assumplion in developny
long-tern forecasts,

Growth rates used for various cash generating units in operating segments are as foTows

UK: 1.6%

Continentzl Eurape: 1.3% 10 1.4%

Asia Pacific. (.5%% 10 6.0% {capoed]
Americas 16% 10 5.0%

As @ result of the rmparrmant reviews carned out g 31 Oecenber 2018, an imoaliment charge of £0.3m has £een recognised for @ business
in the Asia Pacific region,

As part of (he impaiiment review, reasonably possible changes i the growth rate and discoant rate assumptions have been considered to
assess the impact on the recoverable amaunt of each business. Were the long-lerm grow'h rats to 1educe 1o nil no impairment charge would
be recaidsd, while i the discour’ rate weie to increase by 234 an imparrment charge of £0.9n: wou'd be recordad in respect of onz bus ness
in tha Americas region.

Goodwill acquired in a busingss conbination s allscated, at acodsition, o the groeps of CGUs hat are expetted o benefit from thal
business combinagtion.

The canying amourt of goodwil is allocated across the Groug's operating segnents as foiows:

2008 217

£m Py
‘Goodwill by region
UK 1.9 112
Caontinental burope 14.6 14.5
Asla Pacihic 8.0 b3
Amencas 4.6 32
T “ T ) 374 359

incitiched within the above at 31 December 2013 are sigrificant goocwill balances as set aut in the table below along wilth the relevant dhscount
rate ang growth rate assumptions

Dszc.r Gra e

Gog vl rate rae

fm % %

Headviay 134 8.3 14
CorSol Partners 4.2 9.4 30
Rishwor th Aviation 3.8 11.0 3.6
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Inta~g ole aczets derufed
I LusIness combination:

Customes Tragds rawe

selateast oo S marks Sub tatal Lafinze Total
2018 e~ £r1 £m £rn £m
Gost
Al 1 January 2018 157 97z 229 0y 22,6
Busingss combinalions 0.6 0.2 0.8 - 0.8
Additions - - - 0.2 0.2
Foreign excliange imavement 3 2 01 0.3 - 0.3
A131 December 2018 o s 95 240 08 248
Accumulated amertisation
At 1 Janpary 2018 3.3 1.5 4.8 0.6 5.4
Charge for year 11 08 1.7 0.1 1.8
At 31 December 2018 421 85 07 12
Net book value as at 31 Dacember 2017 _ 10.4 w 184 2.1 18.2
Net baok value as at 31 December 2018 101 74 17.5 0.2 17.7

Irtang clz asgels dernfed
Inbus.nzss combinatons
Cuctome: Tragaran:

refanonst ps B maks Sul sgtal Sgliears Tota
017 £ £ £ Tm £
C;s‘ti - ) T
A1 January 2017 4.2 a6 23.8 0.6 24.4
Addrions - - - oA 01
~ore gn exchange movement o8 {04 .8} - _ o8y
At 31 December 2017 13.7 @7 229 D7 236
Accumulated amortisation
Al 1 January 2017 2.2 3] 31 0.5 3.6
Charge foryear - o A 0.6 1.7 a1 e
At 31 December 2017 _ o 33 15 48 06 54
Net bhook value as at 31 Decemizer 2015 . 12.0 87 207 ad 20.8
Net book value as at 31 December 2017 10.4 77 18.1 04 18.2
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17 Subsidiaries

A st of the investments in subisidignes. including the name, county of incorporat 04 and praao-tion of owaership riterest with camparatives

is given in note 6 10 the Company's financial statemerrs.

The following ¢consolidated UK subsiciary companes a¢ exempt from an annual audit undes section 4794 of tne Companies Azt 2006 for

which the Company has previded a guarantee untler section 479C of the Companies Act 2006, This guarantess all outstanding kabilites

1o which the subsidiary is subject to as at 31 Decernber 2018 untl they are settied in full, The guarantae 15 enfarceable againg' the Company

by any parson to whnm the subsidiary is bable in respect of those L abities

Name of Subsidiary Company Number Typa of SLIbsft!I;'JVy
Empresana Americas Finco Limitad ‘_?Baﬁi Holding Non-Trading )
Emprasaria Americas Linmted 05926961 Holding Nan-Irading
Emprasara Asla Limited 07384724 Halding Non-Tracing
Empresara GIT Holdings Limited 05669453 Holdirg Non-Tracling
Empresana Gl Lvted 05663176 Holding Non-Trading
Emprasara Indonasia Holdings Limited 10362003 Haolding Non-Tracing
Ermpresara Malaysia Holdings Limited 03701593 Holding Non-Tiading
Fnpresaria NZ Fieeo | imited 10804049 Halding Non-lradmg
Civpresar a NZ Limited 10164295 Holding Nen Trading
Empresa a Peru Holdings Limited 02849326 Holding Kon-Tiading
Empresara Services Limited 08946755 Hotding WNon-Tiading
Empresaria T&1 Lirnited 10432476 Holding Nen-Trading
Empresaria Technology (Holdings) Limited 10322758 Halding Non-Tiacling
Empresaria Vietnam Holdings Limited 10485853 Halding Non-Traching
Interim Managerment International Limited 04057140 Holding Non-Tracking
Mansion touse Reciutmeant Limited 03276279 Aclive

Oval (888} Limied 04818545 Active

Reflex HR Limited 061560663 Aclive

18 Trade and other recsivables

217

2018

£m £m
Current - T
Gross trads recevanles 49.2 49,00
Less provision lor impaiment of lrade receivables B e S L.2) N (6.5
Trade recewatles B B - 484 43.2
Prepayrnents 1.9 1.8
Accrueri income 3.3 34
Corporation tax recevabie 1.2 1.8
Other teceivables - _ o L 28 35
- - ‘ 573 531

Trade receivables nclude £34.8m (2014 £31.7m] on which secarity has been given as parl of bank fasilites,
Al 2enounts are gue within one yeat The canying value of lrade and other rece vables w consmdered 10 be they San value,

Further aratysis on trade teceivables 3 set out nnole 24,
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19 Trade and other payables

2018 2e17

o, em &7
Cutrent -
Tradde paysbles 22 21
Otfer lax ang socal secunty 8.4 8.4
Plot bonds 53 7.5
Client depusits 0.9 07
Termpaary reziutirant worker wages 35 3.9
Other payaties 1.9 2.0
AZCruals 19.4 17.4
Deferred consderation L e . . bz T
T i s 418 420

Al amounts are payable within ong year. The canyng velue of lrade and other payables is considered to be ther far value.

The pitot bonds represent unrestricted fnds neld by Rishwaorthy Aviztion al the request of clients that are repayable to the pilct aver the
course of a contract typically betwaen tnree and five years. If the pilot terminates thein contract early. the outstand ng bond 1s payable to the
clent. For this reason the nonds are shown as a current liabilty, As at 31 December 2018, if tna bonds v.ere to ba rezad in Ing vath existing
contracts, £2.9m (P017; £4.5m) would be repayatils i ;more than ore year. In 2012, one of R shworlh's laigest clients tas confirmad that it
will no Jonger requie ©o1ds to be hald. As a 1esult an addional £1.0m of the bonds outstarding as at 31 Decamber 2018 are exgected 1o
D repaid in 2019,

20 Borrowings

2018 2217

o Em £m
Current

Bank ove:thafts 22.0 204
Amgunis related 15 imoice inancing 9.7 Q.7
Bank loans B o ) ) 03 6.5
L R L 320 356
Non-current

Bank loans o o 5.2 13
o o T T o 7; 52 13
Borrowings T a7.2 37.0

The fallowing key bank fackhes arc i place al 31 Decernber 2018:

A ravolving oredit facilty of £10,0m, expiing in June 2021, As at 31 December 2018 the amount oulstandig 1s 8.0 (2017: £1.0m). Interes:
s payanls at 1.5% plus LIBOR or EURIBOH.

A UK eim loan of £2.0m was "gpaid durng the year (2017 £2.0m). Inlerest was payable at 1.5% above the UK base rate,

A German term Ioan of €5 0m expited \n February 2016 (2017 €5.0m! and was replaced by an overdraft facility. #ilerest was payable al 374
above EURIBOR.

Overclraft faciities are in place in the UK w th a it of £7.57. The balarce o this facity as at 31 December 2018 was T3.9m 2017 £4.1m).
Tne nterest rate was fixsd a° 1% above applcatle curency base rates. A S2.0m overdraft facility to provide viork ng capal funding to
Pharmaceutica! Strateg es hao a balanse as at 31 December 2018 of 30.8m (2017: $1.0m) Interest or th 8 USD facility is payable at 2%
aver LIBOR. A E13m (2017: €2.007) overchiaft fazility 1s also in place i Ger nany. This gverdralt facility nereased by £5m on tie exprahon

of 11e term 10an. The halance at 31 December 2018 was €7.8m (2017, E4.8im). Intecast 15 payatle al ZURIBOR phs 2 35
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20 Borrowings continued

The UK fazilities are securad by a first fixed charge over al bogk and other deb!s given by the Company and cortain of s UK subsizianes,

rieadway in Gerrany a:d Fishworth Aviation in New Zezland,

There is an invoice finzncing fagiity in the UK of £13.0m [2017: £13.0m). As at 31 December 2018 the amaout pulstand ng was L84m
(2017, £8.2im), Interest 18 payable al 1479 over UK base rate. Therg ara also wivoice financi g facitiies in Chle of £2.5m (2017: £1.5m),
As al 31 Decenber 2018 the gmzunt outstanding was £1.3m {2007 £1.5m). imerestis payatle at apurox nately 63:.

Dther overseas overdraft and loans had interest razes of between 1.0% and 7.4%.

21 Net debt
{a) Net debt
i i - 2018 2017
£m irn
Sorowings ) (3r.2) (579
Cash and cash equnvalents o _ _ _ - 254 259
Netdebt 7 B 1.8 (1.0

Casn and cash equivalerts at 31 Decomber 2018 includes cash of £380,000 (2017: £253.000) held by a subsidialy in China which is subjec!

to currency exchange restriclions.

o) Adjusted net dent

26018 e

om om
-Cash and cash equivalenss - - 7 — T 25,4 25,9
Less cash held in respect of pilat bonds o - o D ) B VA
Adjusted cash 20.1 18.4
Borrowings o o . o _Br2y @Y
Adjusted nat debt B T ({74) (195

The Group presents adjusted net dab as its principfe det! measure, Astasted net dabt is equa to net debt exclucing casr beld in respect
of pilat honds with n the Rishworth Aviation business, Where reauirad oy the chant. pilot bonds are taker at the start of the pilot's contract
and are repayable to the pilof or the chent dunng fhe sourse of the conr-act or if r ends early. There isra fegal eestriction aver this cash, bat
gesan the requirement o repay it over a three yaar pendd. and that to hold these s a chent requirement, cash equal to the amount of lhe

bonds is excluded in calculating ad usted net debt,

{c} Movemerit in adjusted net debt

M3 2017

Em Em

Asat | January T o {958 (57)
Net (decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalerts per consolidated cash flow s atement (0.5} 6.2
Borrowings in husiness acqured (¢.2) -
Increase \~ gverdratts ard loans 0.9 {5.21
Increase in Invaice financing {0.1} 0.7
Fore gn exchange mavemant 0.2 10.8)
Adjusted for decrease/{increase) in cash held in respec! of pilot bonds . 22 2.3)
As at 31 December {171} [19.5)
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21 Net debt continued
(d) Reconclliabion of barrowing arising from finance activity
T T - 2018 2Gt7
£m e
Borrowngs as at 1 Jznaary {ar.9) (308
Increasc in overdratts (1.5) {15.3)
Proceeds from bank loans (4.0} {0.1)
Repaymet of bank loans 5.4 a7
Incrgase 11 INvaizg discounting (0.1) 0.7
Boreowings in business acquired {0.2} -
Foraign exchange movemert e _ 0.1 (0.2
Borrowings as al 31 December {37.2) [37.9)
22 Deferred tax
) __7 Qher _
Howay Rz remant Tao  lempordry Total HAEL
pay o sina lzse2y o fferendan 2018 27
£m et £rm £ £m £m
At 1 January 0.2 o1 o1 06 1.0 10
Credit i - - 0.5 0.4 -
Business combinatons {see note 13) 0.1 - - - A -
At 31 December Q0.4 0.1 0. 0.9 1.5 1.0
Intanable Total Toral
2ss3is 2018 2017
Meferrra Taxlizbalit s ¢ £m e
A1 January - 3.8) (4.1) {4.4)
Credit/charge) to income staternent .3 0.2 0.2
Business combimations (see note 13) {0.2) - - {0.2} -
Foreagn excf1§nge movemeant B _ ﬂ‘l - - (0.1} G
AL3) December - (5.8 (0.3 (0.1} (2.2) 1)

At the balance shee date, the Group has unused tax losses of £4.1m (2017 £2 im} available for offset aganst fulure taxable prohits.
A defer-ed tax asset has been recogrised in respect of £0.3m (2017: £0.5m) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
inrespect of the rema Ning £3.8m (2017: £1.6m1) as it is not consiclered probable tiat there will e future taxable profils availasle.

Ne deferred tax ligtility is recagnised on cerlain teniporary differences totallng £6.3m (2017: £5.5m) relating 10 *he unremitted earmings of
overseas subs'diaries as the Group is able to control the tming of the reversal of these temporary differences and it 1s prabable that they will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, Tho tax impact of these temporary differences would be £0.7m (2017 £0.6m} assuming all unremitled

earnings were remitted in full in the year.

23 Share capital and Shares held by Employee Benefit Trust
Share capital

2018 2077
Number o - f‘-'EJE" T
of shares Em of shasgs R £
Issued, allotted and fully paid
Ordinary $a-es of Sp cach 49,018,132 2.4 40010132 24

The Carrpany has ane class of ordinary share witich carries no ng~ts to tixed Ncome. Al o-dinary shares are enttled to rece ve dvidends
as declared from time lo ime and are entitled to one vote per share at mest ngs of the Compary. All shares rank egually with -egaid tc the
Compary's resiciLal assels.
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23 Share capital and Shares heid by Employee Benefit Trust continued
Shares held by the Empresaria Employee Be_neﬁt Trust

2018 2547
Numper Lenoer
olshares ot shiaras

‘Aliotted and fully paid
Orcinary shares of 5p cach 576,204 96,500

During the year ended 31 Decermber 2018 the Company puichaser 479,704 (2017 96,500} of s owen shaes far & lotal considaration
of £0.4m (2047 £0.1im). The shares have subseq.ently besn transferred 1o fne Emiresaria Employee Benglt Trust 1o meet the obligaton
to prov.de shares when employees exercise their oplions of awards.

The Trugtees have waived their rights 1o dividends on the shares held by the Empresaria Enploy ea Benefit Trust.
24 Financia! risk management
The Group is exposed to a variety of Enancial rigks arising fom (e Group's operations being princypally credit rsk, market nsk {fore ga

exchange risk and mlerest rate nsk) and liquidity risk.

“ne Group's freasury farction s managed centrally znd the nolicies for managing each of these tisks and tier | npact on tihe resul's of e
year are summarised below.

Tne principal inancial assats of the Group are cash and cash equivalests and trade and other receivables, The prncipal finaacial liabi ties are
borrowangs and trade and ofher payables that arise drectly from operations

The carrying value ¢f all financial metruments aquates 1o {zir value.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the 1isk of financial loss if a client or counterparty Ffails 1o meel an obligation under a contract., Credit risk arises primarily from

ttade receivables bt alsa from the Group's other Inancial assets Including cash deposits.

Classées of financial assets — carrying amounls

2098 2047

£m jate
Cash and cash egJivalants T I 25.4 2590
Tiade and other recevables * 54.2 49.8

* Trzd? &nd oonwer e sables sadudz pras ayments tax and soniEl sscnty Ao onnng 1o £3 1m 2617 B3.3m;

The Group's credi* isk an its cash balances is managed by limting exposuie 1© banks with a credit rating higher than BBE and thigugh
adher ng 10 authonsed Imits for all counterparties.

The Group manages 11s exposuie to tade 1ecaivables U'rough its credit pobcy. New Clients are assessed through a seview process including
obtaring credt raungs and reviewing available financial ard other infermation. Ongoing nsk exposire is mitigated through the credit control
process, sathng c-edt lmits and reguiar review of clisnts and trade receivable balances.

The amounts prasented in the balance shaet 27 nat of allowances for impainment. An alowaace forimpainment is made based o1 the

expected crecit loss as deser Sed in nate 2. The Group has no sigrifcant concentration of risk, with expozare spread over ala ge numzer
of third partes and customeans. A provision of £1.1m (2017 £0.8mi has been recorded.,
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24 Financia! risk management continuad
The Group agplies the IFRS g simg! fied approach to measur ng expected credit losaes us rg a lichme cxpected cred tiess provision for trade
receivables. To measure expected credit losses or a collactive basis, trads recewvatios are grouped based on simiar creait risk and aging.

The expectad loss -ates are based on the Group's historical creat lasses e«per enced over the five year penad prior 10 the pediod and.
The historical loss rates are lien compared with current and forward-looking informat cir 0 macroecaomic factors affecting the Group's

customers 1 the countnes where the Group operates

A 31 Cecerber 2018 Lhe Hetmea expected loss provsision for iracie receivables 's as follows.

Zard.g

Q- srdys Overdus Orzedue oy e s

E;upto £, upte Dyioie than
Lz 3D dave 69 days 430a,s 2Zaas Taal

Aveiage expected loss 1ate (3¢} 0.5% 2.0% 3.0%: 4.0% 5.0%
Gross carrying amount {£m) 3rz 1A 21 1.0 1.2 49,2
|_Loss provision {£m) 0.79 (.15 03.06 0.04 0.06 1.1

Inciuded wilbin the loss provision on curent debts due are specif ¢ expectad 'oss otovisions of £0.5m inrespect of caitain debto” balances
wiTh specifiic credh risk profles.

The movement in the provision for impairment of teade 1eceivables during the year was as folo-vs:

2018 M7

£m £

Balanze as 1 January 0.8 1.0
Impairment loss ecognisesd 0.7 ag
mpairment loss utilised o (0.4) (1.0
Salance at 31 December ' 11 0.8

Market risk

{a} Foreign exchange risk

The niajority of the Grouy's transactions are carrisd out in the logal curency of the respective county the busingss 15 operating in. However,
the Group does undertake transactions denanrinated in foreign currences and consequently exposures 1o exsharge rate fustuaton anise.
The magenty of this exposure 1 mitigated by ircurrdng costs In the same gerrency.

“o mitigate tha Group's exposure o foreign currency tisk, non-loca’ currency cash flows are monitored and if applicable, forward exchange
contiacts are enterad inte In accosdance with the Group's risk managermet policies. Where the amrounts to bie paid and receredin a spechc

curraray are expectad to lagaly offset ong anodther, no further hedging activ iy is urdertaken.

As at 31 Dacembar 2018 there ware a small number ol “irward currency cor'racts in place. The amount covered by these at 31 December 2018
was CO.7m (PO17. 0.9m), The fair valie of these as at 31 Cecembar 2018 was £nil{2017: £nil)

During tre year Group has recognisad a net foreign exchange gain of £0.1m (2017; Tnil; in the Consofidated income statement.
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24 Financial risk management continuecl
The zarrying amounts of the Group's sign ficant moretary assets and labift es hold in currsncies other than & business's funchona' cusrency
al 31 Decembier are s2t out in the table below: along wity sensitvely analysis showing the approximate impact of 2 10% weakening of the

foreign cunency against the slevan! furchional cuirency as at 31 Decerber, The analysis assuimes that 2ll other variables remain constant.

Suragncurrs Sansit ty aralys sivpattof rea=-e ozl
mengiary 1ems Curr3n oy TOFEIgR x3hangs exn0s e
Prafit
Assats  Liablities and Joss Equity
M8 Em £m Sans vty £m Em
US Dotars 7 (6.3} S Oolizis (1G5} (0.1} [UAT]
Euro 18 (75} Euro (K03 . i R X N .
B Farsign cw»smc’y Sersite tp analys swnpact of nonsf, rongng) T
moreary ems turrsngy foreign 2«changs exposure
Praf:
hesgale Panhtes and lass cquty
207 £ra Fm Sens bty Em £m
US Dollars 56 (5.2) US Dollars {10%) 0.4 0.4)
Eure 1.2 103y Euro (1033) {0.1) (1)

A 105 shiangthening of the above currensres aganst relevant functional currency at 31 December would have had the equal but opposita
effect 10 the amounts shovm above, on Wne baais that all otner variables remain constant,

I Manageiment’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis presented doss co! complelely represent the inherent fore gn exchangs risk as Ue year end
exposure does not roflect the exposure durng the yean,

The Group also has curency exnasure on the translation of overseas subsidianies” results infa Pounds Sterling. The Grong does not actvely
hedge this exposure although tere s a1 element of natural hedge by haing operations [ drterent countiies. The amaunt of currency
refranslation gain recognisad in equity was £0.8m {2017: loss £1.2my.

(b} Interest rate risk

Interest tate ns'< comprises boln cash flow and fal va'ue risks. Fak value sk is the risk that the fair vaiue of inancial inslruments il fluctuate
as aresult of changes ininterestates. Tha Group s not exposad 1o fair value risks as it has no financia. instruments tnal are revalued to fait
value at the balance sheet date, Gash flow)isk anses on the futwie cash flows o7 a financial instrument. The Gioup is exposedi 10 cash flow
nsk on its variable rate borrowings. The Group manages its interest rate nsk through a combinat.on of cash pooling, shareholder funding
and borrow gy and 1nanagement imonitors mavenients in irteres’ rates to defermine the most advantageous debt profile for the Group. The
Grous's policy is for the taority of its debt to be at variable rales as this is expected to better mateh interest costs withi the economic cycle
as stafling 18 typizally a cyclical business.

AL 31 December 2018, the Group 1s exposed 10 changes in market silerest rates through its borrowings, wh ch are subject (e vanable interest
rates, For further information see note 20,

2013 2317
Effective nterest rate on borrowings in the year 2.6% 2.6%

Arincrease of 120 basis points nrte-est rales woulkd hase dacreased equity and the income statemant by the amaunts shown below,
The analysis assumes that all other variables. in particular foreign carcency (ates, remain constant,

Interest rate

2013

£m i
Nat resul* for the year {0.3} {0.3)
Equity {0.3) (2.3
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24 Financial risk management cont nued

Eiguidlity -isk

vigueity sk s managed to ensure thal tae Group s abile W et its payimant ob! gations as they fall due. Tne Group's funding stiaegy is
‘0 ensure & mix of financing mathods oifering fexib Ity and cost effectivenass to match the requrements of the Group, The Group monitors
itz hguichly ¥isk on an ongomg basis with reguiar cas' Now lorezasts. I order o ensire contavity of lunding $he Gruut $2eK3 o anzngs
fundirg ahead of bhusiress requitements and imaintam suificient undrave comnited Lonowing facilities

As at 31 Degemier 2018, tne Group's habilites have contractJal matanties wixch are sunwnarised below:

Currznt bizrecu rent
wefr 8 stk B1g 2 montrs Ty
2018 Taui7 2013 27 2018 2917
Em £ £m £m £m £
Borrowings 31.9 353 0.1 1.3 5.2 1.2
Trade and cther payables . 33.8 338 - — T -
Total ] 65.7 685 0.1 13 5.2 1.2

© Frade a9d Othgr pay zdzs i ab v ale 247k 22 aihar (24 ard $500al 520,y antountin g 82 EE N 1 2G T ERLm.

The above Gortractual mat.rities -eflec: the gross casn flows, which may differ 12 the carying vakies of the labilties at the balance sheet date.
All pank loangs are on flosling interest rates.
Al the year gna the Group had £16.7m1{2017: £19.3m) of undiawn bank facilt'es {exaluding nvoice Enancing).

Capital structure

The Gioup manayes s capilal 10 ensu-e that entities i the Group will be able 10 contnue gs goag consens wh ksl maximizing e retun 10
slakeholders through the optimisation of the balance batwaen deb: and equuly, The capial shrusture of the Group cans'sts of et debt, which
incudes borrgwings and cash and cash equvalents {(see note 21) and equity attnbutable to equity holdes of e parcnt, comprising issucd
czptal reseénves and retained earnings as disclosed in note 23 and in tne Consolidzted stalement of changes in equiy.

The boar!d reviews the capital structure of the Grouz on an ongging basis. considenng the cost of capital and the risks associated vath cach
class of captal, The Board closely manitors the level of orrowargs, 11s dabt ta debtars ratro and cempliance wil'vany Covenams an ity

norrowings. Fui lher details on covanalls are gr/en in the Financial reviavs on page 23.

Debt to d?btors ratio

2018 2011

£m £m
_Aalsirg netdedt seenote 2y ) i1 195
Tiade receivatiles o - 481 a3z
Debtto debtorsratio 36%  45%
25 Financial commitments
Operating leases
rator vetlcles Land and build'rgs
) 2018 017 2018 2y7
£m rn £m £m
Total mimiriym eperating lease payments due.
Within ong yeal 0.5 JAX$) 29 24
One 1o five years 0.5 0.6 2.7 34
After lve years o - ) - 0.4 Q.7
i ] 1.0 1.2 6.0 6.5
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26 Dividends

) ' 2018 27
e L £000 2220
Amount recognised as distribution 1o equity holders in the year:
Final doitend kor 1he year ended 31 December 2017 of 1.32p (2016: 1.15p) per share o _ 644 584
Froposed final dividend for the year ended 31 Decamber 2018 of 2 Op (2017: 1.32p} per share 969 644

The proposed dividend 1s subyject (o approval by st-arebokles at the Annual General Meeing and has nol been inzluded as a halylity in these
finanoial statemients.

27 Profit of parent company
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2008, the income stalernent of the Paignt Company is not presented as part of these
inancial statements. The Parent Caompany’s proftt for the finarcial year was £3.3m (2017: loss of £2.2m).

28 Related party transactions

Balances ard tansactions betwesen the Company and iis subsidiaties, wich are related parties, have been elim nated on consol dation
and are not disclosed 0 this note, These transactions include franchise fees, interest charges and resenue, wh ch amouintad to £3.6m
12017: £3.3m), £0.9m (2017; £0.8m) and £0.4m (2017 €nil). respectively.

The Company transacted with 24/7 Translations Limited for the provision of translation senvices. Spencer Wreford, Ghvef Executive Off cer,
jointly owns this company w il bis wite. In lola' the services chaigad were for £1,881 (2007: Onil). The Company also transacted with Cobwel
Cyber Limited for e provision of cybes security services, Penny Freer. Non-Executive Director, o ds a minority interest shareholding and is
a director in this company. In lotal the services charged were for £4,800 (2017 €nif},

Ramunaration of key management p&-sonnel

The Group delegates operational decsion making and day 10 day running of the operating companies to the subsidiary Management,
however, koy strateyic decisions must be apgrared by the Company. Theretore overall autionty and responsibilty for planning, diractng
and contioling the entities of the Group sts with the Cornpany’s Board of Diréctors, who are considered the key rmanageiment parsornel,

The remuneration of key management personnel is set oul Delow in aggegate for sach of the categories specified in IAS P4, Fuither
inforration ahLut the remuneration of ndoadual Ovectors is provided in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 39 to 42,

2018 [t
fm £m
Short-term employee benafits S 0.7 0B
Post-employment benefts (contiibutians {o dehingd contritiyian pens on schomaos) 04 0.1
Share-baged payments ~ (0.2}

Directors’ transactions
Diviclends totalling £184,923 (2017: £161,168) were pad in the yeas in respect of ornary shares held by the Gormpany's Directors.

Management equity
As part of the Group's managemant eauily philosophy, the faflowing ansaciions were enterad into with refated parties (subsidtary

management} during the year,

Purchased by the Group:

Aggragzta
Y. grdidgrzlion

£:30 Safte
16 R Thomas and K Kumar

Cempary

Interactive Manpower Solutiong Private inited
LMA Reciuirment Singapore Pte. Limited 23 M Sreston
PT Maonros Consuliing Group 0% 15 B Hendrayono
Teamsales Lnrited 1.7% ¢ C Deaney
Beiesford VWilson and Paitngrs FZ2-LLC G0 il B Veetch

There were ra shares sold 10 managament of subsicharies auring the year
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29 Share-based payments

Tre Gro.n cperated a Long Tenm Ircentive Plan {LTIP} for Digstors ard s 2 execuives. The seheme 1 equ by setiled vath the grantng of il
cost ootiong and subject to performance condtions. Furthe: details of the LT'P are provided i the Drectars' iemureration report. The expense
I8 recognised 1 the incoma statemant based on the fan value of the aquity nst-ument awarded as de*erminad at the grant date. The expeniss
s recognised on a straight-ing basis ever 1°g vesting penod based on estimates of the numbe- of shares that are expecled 10 vest.

11 2018 a charge of Lnil (2017: credit of £0.2m) was recognised i the inZeme statement. Viovements in the nuniber of opt ons cutstanding are
a5 follows:;

2018 2017

Murnbar hLmcer

of share of sharz

options optigns

mgasands  thousands

Outstanding as a1 1 Janua-y 3,355 3.273
Expired during the year (we ghted average exerise price was Cnil (2017 Crulj) {871} {281)
Granted during the year - o o i 762 363
Outstanding as a1 31 December ] o ] o 3546 3355
Vested 25 a- 31 Decermper B T ' T Tge2 4897

The fan value of options granted dunng the yean s esiimated using & Black-Scholes modal for the element wath an earnings per share
cerformance conations and a Monie Catlo model for the element wih a total sha eholder return performance condit an. Detals of the
performance condtions ¢zn be fourd in the Diectors' remuneation repont on pages 39 10 42,

The inputs into these moedels for the shates aramiod in the year waie as follows.

Ao n Aozedin Avvard n

2318 2015 2017

Shareprice at date of grant o 83.0p 74.0p 138.50
Weighted average exerese price il il il
Expectad volatility 34.73% 34.4% 38.3%
Expectod ig 26 yezis 2.3 years 3years
Risk-free rae 0.76% 07434 0.11%
Expected dividend yields 1515 1.78% 0.83%
Vestnig dates March 2021 March 2021  March 2020
Falr value assessed per share 57.9p 51.2p 105.5p

Ihe expagtad volanhty s determined “om the daily log notmal distributions of the Company shaie price ovar a periad equal to the expacted
holding prxrine caleulsterd nack fram the date of grant, The risk fiee 1ate was tha zero coupon cond yiekd deswed from UK governirent bonds
at the date of grant. with a lfe equal 1o the expected holding period.
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Parent Company balance sheet

2018 2047

Motz £m £m

Non-gurrent assets
Tangble agsets 5 - -
Investrents in subsicharies - . B 812 490

) - ' 512 490
Current assets
Debitors 7 X 4.3
_@Z_rgq‘v_to_rs; 2mouhils fallr.‘w_y."thm oneyear o 8 (_1&4) {218
Net current assets T (13.4) (75
To'zl asse's less current habilnes 37.8 315
Creditors: amounts fatlng due after more than one year - S 8 50} (1O
Net assets B - B 32.8 30.5
GCapital and reserves
Called-up share capitaf 10 2.4 2.4
Share pramium account 224 22.4
Mearger reserve 0.9 049
Other reserves a7 0.7
Cquity reserve {0.2) {272)
Profit and loss account o o _ e _68 4.3
Shareholders’ funds B e o T B 32.8 305

The profit tar tha financial year ended 31 Dacernber 2078 was £3.3m {20171 Loss of £2.2m).

These financia statements of Erpresaria Group plc (Company tegstation nomber 33743194) were agproved by the Buard of Direclors and
authoticed for issue on 12 March 2219,

Srgred on behalf of the Boarg of Direcion s

UV DT

Spencer Wreford Tim Anderson
Chief Executive Officer Group Finance Director
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Parent Company statement of changes in equity

Carza-up Sharz Prote Tota

shars prEoum hrargar Erunt, ardIcss Sng-e-oldars

czptal ascount FESEM, D gtioJnt fur e

£m £m am £ £

At 1 January 2017 2.4 22.4 0.9 (C.2) 7.2 33.6
Loss for the financizl yea' and tofal commehensive loss - - - (2.2} 2.2}
Dridend pard on eauity shares - - (0.6} (0.6}
Movemert in share options 0.2} - - 0.2}
Purchases of own shales by Employes Benef ! Tiust - - - - - 0.1} a1
At 31 December 2017 ) o 24 224 0.9 0.7 (0.2) 4.3 30.5
Fiaofit for the finanoa! year andd tolal comprehesive loss - - - 3.3 3.3
Drviclend paid on eguity shares - - - - (0.6} {0.6)
Movermeant in share cptlions - - - - -
Puichases of own shares by Einployee Benefit Trust ) - - - - - (0.4} _(0.4)
At 31 December 2018 j 2.4 224 0.8 0.7 (0.2) 6.6 328

Eqpity conyuises the lolloving:
» “Shae capdal” represents the nominal valie of equity shares.

s “Sha-e premium account” represents the excess over narrinal value of the fa'r valus of consideration recei sed for equity shares, aet of
expenses of the shara issie.

e “Mergen ieserve” 1elales 1o memums arising on shares issusd subjec: to the provisicns of section 612 "Mengar iels’™ of the Companies
ACt 2C05.

e Equity reserve” raesents amaunts recognised in relation to h stanc exphed options over 2 subsidary company.
* ‘Other raserves’ pomiarily represerts IToyements inelation 1o share based payments.

e "Rotained earnngs” represants accumulated (rof ts less dstnbutions and nconefexpensea tecodgnised in eguity from incorporation.
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Notes to the Parent Company financial statements

1 Basis of preparation, general informatian and summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of prepa-ation and general information

The financial statements are for the twelve months ended 31 December 2018, The fnancial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost corvention, modified to include certain tems at far va'ue, and n accordance with Financal Reoorting Standard 102 (FRS 102)
isstied by the Financial Report ng Gouncll.

These financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterdng (£).
The accounting pohcies have been applad consistently throughout the period for tie purposes of preparation of thess financial staternents.
The Comgany has taken ark.amage of a disclosure exernpton and has electad not to present a cashfinw statement,

{b) Summary of significant accounting policies
Going concern
These accourts are prepared on the going concern basis. Detals of the assessmant of going concern are given in note 1 to the Groul accounts.

Foreign currencies

Forelan curency transactons are Lanslated into the functicnal currency us ny the exchange rales prevalng at e dates of the branaactions
Foreign exchange gaing and Insses resuling fiom the setilament of such tansastions and from the tianslztior at period-ed exchange 1ates
of monetary assets and abilities denominated n foreign cun encies ae recognised in the proht a4d 13ss account.

Tangible fixed assots
Tang tle lixed assets a'e statnd 21 cost. net of accumulated depreciztion and any provigon for buparment. Depiaciation is caleulated using
tha stiaight-line methor to whte off the cost of the asse! s over ther usetul lues as follov:s

Fintures, fittings 2nd eqpipmant: nghaesn one axd five years,

Invesimeants in subsidiaries
frestments are stated at cost leas provision for any impairmens invalue.

Leases
ses that result m e Company receiving substantially @l of tie risks and rowards of g ws e of an assel a2 treated as Inanue leases.
sgel held uader a faznce lease is recodad in the balance sheet as a tang ble ixedd ussels and depreciatedd wver the shurter of its estimated
useful | fe and the [case term. Future nstalments net of interest charges are nchuded within tabillies. Mnmum lease paymens are apuortioned
hetween ihe interast charge element, which is allocated to each period to produce a constart paiiodic rate of nterest on the rerrairing hability

and charged 1o the profit and Joss account ang the princpal element which reduces the outstanding L aoi ty.

Rental cosls arising from operating leases are ghargen on a shaigh-ne basls ovel e por od of the lease. Where a1 incentive is rece2d to
enter imo an operating lease, such incenfve is eated as a labity ancd recagnized as a reducton to the rental expense on a straght line basis
over the period of the lease.

Financial instruments

Shorl tarm cleblors and creditors are measured al iansaction prica, kess any impairment. |.oans receivable and other Tinzngial | ahilives,
incluchng amounts due from ansd to subsidiary undertakings, are measured Mitafly at far valug. net of iiansaction costs. and are measued
subseqguently al amortsed cost using the effectve interest method less ary impairment.

Fens.on cosis
Payinients mmade to defined contripution retirement benefit schemes are charged to the profit and loss account as they fall duea.

2 Praofit for the year

As penmtted by secbon 408 of e Companies Act 2006 the Compzny has elected not to present i's awn incame stateent for the year,
Tre Company reported a profit after tax for ine tnancial year ended 31 Deceirber 2018 o £3.3m (2017, Loss of £2 2m).
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3 Directors and employees

2013 2047
fm £

Staff costs o
Wages and sa'ares 1.6 1.2
Social secunty cos's 0.2 01
Other peisicn cosls 04 4R
Snare based pay ments - . o I - 0.2
S ) 1.9 ) 1.2
2013 2017
Nurnber Sumer
Average monthvy numbicr of gersons employed (including directors) S 17 o

Bonus costs in the year wers £0.4m (2017 £0.1m).

Details of Directors’ remuneration are given on pages 39 1o 42,

4 Dividends
Juring 2018 Enmprasaria Group ple paid a dividend of £0.6m toits equity shareholders (2017 £0.6m). This amounted to 1.32p per ordinary
share (2017: 1.15p),

Plezsa see note 26 of the Group accoun's far information on troposed dredends for the year encad 31 Decemier 20M8.

5 Tangible assets
The foliovs ng table shows the significant adait ons and disposals of property, plat and equipmert.

“ixlores,

frorgs and

L pmarnt

£

st N B 7 - o

As at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 0.5
Accumulated depreciation

At 1 Januay 2018 0.5

Charge far the year o . S =

At 31 December 2018 0.5

Net baok valug N R .
AL 31 Decembiar 7017 . .

At 31 December 2018 ’ o _
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Notes to the Parent Company financial statements continued

6 Investments in subsidiaries

3
s.Ds1aary
Lodariaangs
b

‘Cost T T '
At 1 January 2018 57.6
Additions 2.3
Dieposals o e (2.2
At 31 December 2018 j B a7y

Impairment

A1 January 2018 8.6
Reversal {0.6}
Disposals . ——— . . a8
At 31 December 2018 o T o 65
Net book value - —
AT 3t Decemberzovt T o Ao
As 31 December 2018 ) - 51.2

Dunng the yaar the company made a furiner nvestmant in Empresaria Arnedcas Limted of £2.0m inelzian 1o the investment in Grupo
Solimane S.A.C as disclosed i~ rote 13 of the Groun accounts, A furtha” £0.8m was mvested in Empresarna Asia Limted as part of an imternat
rearganisation. Disposals ir the year also reflectad ivterral ieorganisations within the Group Tie rmpairment reversal of €0.6m s in refation 10
the investment in Modikunmppan: Uy ware the [l sinoort of the presiondly rocognised impmnment has heeneversed follovang an

assessiment of the recoverable amcunt at the year end.

Thwestmen's compnse of the “ollow Ng subsidiary companies.

Compary

Registerad office: Old Church House, Sandy Lane, Crawley Down, West Sussex, RH10 4HS UK

Ball and Hoolahan Limited

Hercslord Wilson and Rartnars Limitec

BWP Holdeo Limited

CoSol Partners {Holdings) Limited

ConSol Partners Timited

Crealve People Limited (Dissolved 13 February 2013)

Emipresaria Amencag Finco Lim ted

Empresaria Americas Limted”

Ernpresaria Asta Lanted”

Enjresanaindo-asia Holdings Limited {formerly Emoresana Crna (Holdings) Ltd)
Empresaira GIT Holdings Lim'ted™

Empresaria GIT Limited

Empresaria T&l Holdings Limited” {ormeny Empresana Gulf Limited™)
Empresaria Seivices Limited” (fonneldy Empresaria | leatthcare Linted™}
E~vpresaria Valaysia Holoirgs Limited

Empresarna Mexico Holdings Limited

Empresana North Amauca Limited

Enpresaria NZ Foico Limeed

Empresa: a NZ Linied”

Empresana Peru Holdhngs Limnitedt (formety Alpion Peciutent Limited)
BEmpresana Phiippings Holdngs Limted

88 Empresaria Group plc / Annual Report & Accounts 2018

2013
Eifective
% holding ¥

Ordwary °0 90
QOredinary 99 g8
AT Crdivary 99 38
A Qrdinary 65 65
Crdinary 65 65
Ordiriay - 90
Ondnary 100 100
O dinary 100 100
Ortinary 100 100
Ordinary 100 100
A ard “BT Ordinary 100 100
Ordinary 100 106
Ordinary 100 100
Ordinary 100 10G

A Crchriary 70 7
A" Qrehnary 51 51
"N Ouchinary k) a8g
hdnary 100 Qg
Ordnary 100 100
Orclinary 100 100
AT O nary 90 a0
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z01a

Class ! Effeclive
Carpany snere bold 35 halding
Emoresaria T&l Limied (formerly Empresaria Technice’ & Industrial Holdings Limiced) o Orctary 100
Empresaria Techrnology Holdings) L rited” Odnary 100
Empresang Thadand Hold ngs _imted A Ordingry 70
Empresana Vietnam Heldings { mitea Qedinary 100
EWVRI1000 Limnited” Ordlirnary 100
FastTrack Management Seryv.ces Limited™ A" Qrelinary 75
Global Crews UK Limitad Crdinary 83
Grayeoat investmerts Limted” Cridinary 100
CGreytoat Placaments Liriled- A Oidinary 80
Interim Managamert Internatonzl L-nited” Crdhinary 100
LMA Reorutment Limigd” A" Crdinary 63
Become Recruiiment Limited (formerty Mac People Limited, Ordinary 90
Mansion House Pecrutmen! Limted: Ordinary 63
McCall |imited™ AT Crdi rary 82
NMS Czesoh tolding Limites” A" Orclinary 51
Cva' {888} Limited" A and "B Ordinary 100
Publishing People Limited (Dissolved 15 Sebruary 2018; Ordinany -
Reflex 43 Limted Ordrzry 100
Teamszsates [ ted? “A Cledinzry ar
The Recrutment Business Heldings Limited® "N Crdinary 80
The Recru tment Business |im ted Crdinary 90
The Recrutment Store {2000) Limited (Jisse'verd 13 Februany, 2018) Ordinary -
ILN 1004 Linited “A and “B” Orclinary 100
TLN 1006 Limvitea ‘A" and "B" Ordinary 100
Web People Recrutiment Linuted (Dissobved 13 February 2018} Ordlinary -
Registered office: Stanley & Williamson, Level 1 34 Burton Street, Kirribilli NSW 2061, Australia
Tre Recrutment Busness Pty Limited Crdinary 90
Registered office: DurisolstraBe 1/WDZ Il, 4600 Wels, Austria
headw~ayaustna Gesmoh Qrdlinary 100
Registered office: Ave. [sidora Goyenechea 3250, 13th Floor, Santiago,
District of Las Condes, Chile
Ermpresana Groop Chie Limitada® Orcdinary 100
Registered office: Alcade Jorge Monckeberg 77, Santiago, Chile
A-Censulting Limitada Ordinary 56
Alternattiva Empresa De Servicios Transitonos Limitada Ordinary 56
Institule Je Capactzaen Complemernanz D2 La Empresa Lititada Ordingry 56
Marketng y Pro nosiones 5.A. Ordinary 58
Registered office: Cerra El Plomo #5420, Oficina 703, Tth Floor, Las Condes,
Santiago, 7560742
Marree Chle S.A Ordinary 55
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Notes to the Parent Company financial statements continued

6 Investments in subsidiaries continugd

Compary

Registered office: Robm 16F02, No. 828-838, Zhangyang Road, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, China

Monroe Consulting Gning Group (fonmetly named Ennpresana inteligence HY, Consultants)

Registered office: Linnankatu 13a B32, 6th Floor, 20100 Turky, Finland
fdcel <umppan Oy formerly Mediradix Oy)

Registered office: Landshuter Strabe 73, 84020, Ergolding, Germany
Errpresaria Hold ng Deutsch and Gmbk*

headwaypersanal GmbH

headwaylogistic administeation GmbH

headway ndustrie GmiH

Registered office: Herner Strasse 35, D-45657 Recklinghausen, Germany
headwaylog-suic Grmbt |

Registered office: 22/F, 3 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
LMA Reciuitiment Limited (Dissoled 27 Apnl 2018}

Registered office: Unit B, 10th Floor E168, nos 166-168 Des Yoeux Read Central,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

The Rezrutinent Business Linated

Registered office: Ground Floopr, 001 Raghupati Niketan, Opp. Ishita Appartmenls,
Navrangpura, Ahmeadabad, Gujarat, 380 009, india

fnterastive Manpower Salutions Privale Lirited”

Registered office: Gedung Soverein Plaza, 1116 Unit A-B, JI. TB Simalupang Kav, 36,

Jakaria, SELATAN 12430, Indonesia
PT. Monrae Corsuling Group

Registared office: No. 2 TR Building, 2-10-4 Yoyogi, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan
FINFS KK,
FINES Tokyo WK,

Registered office: 8-27 Toranomon 3-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan
Skillhouse Staffng Salutions KK

Registered office; Portman House, Hue Street, St Helier, JE4 5RP, Jersey
Rhingfield Lated™ (Dissolved 18 December 2018)

Registered office: 14A Jalan Tun Mehd Fuad, Taman Tun Dr 1smail, 60000, Kuala
Lumpur, Witayah Persektuan, Mailaysia

Agensi Pekerjaan Mon-oe Consulting Group Malaysa Sdn, Bhd,

Registered office: Insurgentes 1796 4to Piso, Colonia Florida, DF 01030, Mexico
Morrae Consult ng Maxico, S.A de Cv.
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6 Investments in supsidiaries continued

2018

Effective
CLrpany %s halding
Registered office: GYW Accountants Limited, Level 1, 108 Carlton Gore Road,
Newmarket, 1023 New Zealand
Gloka' Resources Asia Limted Crdeary 83 33
Aistravorth Holdeo Limitad Crclinary 83 a3
Rishworth Aviation Asia Limited Crdlinany 83 83
Ristrworth Aviation Asia Pacdic Limitec Crcdinary 83 33
Hishwarth Aviation Eurgpe Limited O ary 83 84
Rishworth Aviation Limited Crdinary 83 83
Rshwaer th Aviation Interpational Lismited Crdinary 83 83
Ruishwaorth Aviahion Senyces Lirmited (formerly Rishvrartn Personnel |im tad) Crdinary 83 83
Bishwor th Solut ons Limited Crdinany 83 a3
Registered office: Unit 605 Richville Corperate Tower, 1107 Alabang-Zapote Road,
Madrigal Business Park, Alabang, Muntintupa G, 1780, Philippines
HR Philppines Holdings, Ins. Orciary a0 90
Registered office: Unit 2108 Trade & Financial Tower, 7th Avenue Corner 32nd Street,
Global City, BGC Fort Bonifacio, Taguig, 1634, Philippines
Monroe Consulting Phiippings. (nc. Ordinary 90 a0
Registered office: 10 Anson Road #35-06A, Internationa! Plaza, 079903, Singapore
Global Crew Asia Pic Ltd Oivmary 83 83
Global Resources Auiat'on Singapore PTE Lid Orcinary a3 83
Registered office: De Cuserstraat 93, tweede en derde verdieping, 1081 CN,
Amsterdam, Netherlands
Global Crew Neiherlands BV, Oxtiinary 83 83
Registered office: Level 28 Glifford Centre, 24 Raffies Place, Singapore 048621 Singapore
LMA Recruiment Singapore Pte. |imited Crdrary 75 &)
Registered office: 10 Anson Road, #10-08 Singapore, Singapore 079903, Singapore
MeCall Singapore Pte. Limited Crdirgry a2 82
Registered office: Postava 3, 811 06, Bratislava, Slovakia
Gatel1234 s..o. Ordirary 100 100
Registered office: Norrtullsgatan 8, 4th Fioor, 11329 Stockholm, Sweden
Ristwvorth Aviaton AB Ordinzry a3 83
Registered office: 28th Floor, Lake Rajada Office Complex Bldg, 193/119
Ratchadapisek Rd, Klongtoey, Bangkek, 10119, Thailand
Monroe Hold ngs (Thatand) Comparyy Lirited Ordnary 70 70
Monroe Resruntment Consulhag Grouy Company L imited Ordinary 70 70
Registered office: Office 306, Building 19, Dubai Knowledge Village, PO Box 500693,
United Arab Emirates
Boresford Wison and Daitners T2-LLGC Ondinary ag 88
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Notes to the Parent Company financial statements continued

6 Investments in subsidiaries continued

20143
Classof  Effeclive

Cofrpary smare bl % holding
Hegistered office: 615 South Dunpont Highway, Dover, Kent County, DE 19903,
United States
ConSol Partners LLC Orcinary 65 65
Registered office: 2711 Centreville Road, Suite 400 Gity of Wilmington,
County of New Castle, DE 19808, United States
Emaresaria USA Inc. Common Stock 88 88
Registered office: 251 Little Falls Orive, City of Wilmington, County of New Gastle,
Delaware 19808-1674 DE USA
Empresaria Amencas Services Inc Common Stock 100 _
Registered office: 477 Main Street, Stoneham, MA 02180, United States
tdecical Recru timent Stralegies, LI C *A”and "B Orclinary 838 as
Pnarmaceutical Strategies. | LC "W and "E" O-dinary &g patsd
Pecrutment Strategies Group, LLG A ang 37 Qrddinary 88 £8
Fecruitmen! Strategics, LLO A and "G Ord nary a8 £3
Registered office: Floor 6, HD Tower, No 25 Bis, Nguyen Thi Minh Khai Street,
Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
Monrae Gonsulung Group Vistnam Liminad Lability Compay Ord nary 100 100
Registered office: Av, Alfredo Benavides No 1551, Office No 901, District of Miraflores,
province and dept of Lima, Peru
Gruno Solimann S.AG O-dnary 60 _
Paople ntermediacion S.AC. Ordivary 60 _
People Outsourcing S.A.C. Ordlinary 60 _
Solmano Asaciados S5.A0. O-dmary 60 -
Talentos. Servicios & higereria 5. AC. Ordinary 60 _

T TREie COMRATes a2 20, NEle by Emprasara Gioar gl TRe remar nainest < inls g 2 adesclly re 2 Tre carcaria S at 31 e lerka 2018 203 3 Decanroe 2017,

The rature of each investiment is the provisiun of staling services and each entity operates inits country of mcar poration.

7 Debtors
?18_7 em7
£m M
‘Amonts owed by subsidiary undertakinas ’ 4.0 3.
Other debtors 1.3 0.5
Frepayments and accrued incomes - o . o wQL_ 0.5
T ' 6.0 43

No amounts are due after mure tnan one yea’ (2017: Lo},
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8 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2018 2017

:
£Em £m
Bank oveidraft and loans due within ong year 13.0 16.6
Trade credtors 0.1 .1
Armounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 5.2 4.3
Other cradtors 0.1 Q1
Accruals o 1.0 a7
e | T N -_-____19.4 21.8
9 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
T T e wer
£m £m
Bank Ioans o 50 1.0
o - S 5.0 1.0

AL 31 December 2018, the UK mult-currency revolwng eredit facihty of £10.0m, expiring in 2021, had a balanca gt £5.0m (2017: £1.0m.
Interestis payat'e at 1.5% plus LIBOR or EURIBOR.

During tha year ended 31 Decemoer 2018 the UK tenn loan was repaid. The balsnce as at 31 December 2017 was £2.0m, Interest was
payable at 1.5% aove UK hase rale.

The interest rate cn the UK bark ovendrafll was fixed ouning the year at 1.03% above applicable cunency base rates.

2018 29317

o im
Bank loans A
Repayable vithin ane yaa - 2.0
Repayable etwean one and lwo yea's - -
Repayable betwee twoand fveyea's 50 10
- o - 5.0 3.0
10 Called up share capital
Number 2048 MLTDED 2017
of shares £m of sharsy £m
Issueq, allotted and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 5p each 49,019,132 2.4 49,019,137 2.4

Please see Note 23 of the Group accounts for detarls on e share capial,

11 Contingent liabllities

The Company is part of a bak overdreflt asrangemenl that opera’as across a runiber of subsidianes of the Company. Tig facdity grves
e Company greater access o -eadily avalable cash resources. Cross guaranees exist hetween the comganies within this facility, The
total amount ewer by the groap under this armaigament as at 31 Cecember 2018 was £3,8m (2017 €4, mj,

12 Related party transactions
Pieaze gee Note 28 of the Group accounts “or details onielaten party transactions,
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Glossary

Adjusted earnings per share

Earnngs per share adjusted 10 &xcluda
amartigation of intangible asssts identitad in
busness combinatons, exceptional items,
gain ot foss on dis;posal of businesses. 'all
value chaiges on acgu sition of non-
convolling shares and related tax.

Adijusted net deht
Barowings less cash and cash equiva'ents
excluding cash held nrespecl of pilol bonus,

Adjusted operating profit

Opera'ing profit adjusted to exclude
amartisation of intangible assets identifiad in
busiess conbingl ong, exceptional tems,
gain or 1083 on disposal of businesses and
fair value charges on acquisition of non-
va-olling shares

Adjusted profit before tax

Prafit before tax adjusted to excl de

amor tisation ¢° intangible assats identined
in business combirations, exceptional items
gan or loss on disposal of businesses and
fair value charges on acqusition of nor-
coataling snares.

Change in constant currency

Year on year movemet assossad after
com-erting pricr year amounts al the current
year exchange rates.

Strategic reporl / Sovarnance . Financials

Conversion ratio
Al usted operating ol as a percéntage
of nat feg ncome.

Debt to debtors ratio
Adjusted net debt as 2 percenage of
irade rece’vables.

Free cash flow

Freg cash flow measures the amount of caan
genergled that is aval'able for Investing in
the Dus ness, reducing debt or retusning to
sharcholdors. 1118 measured as the net cash
fromi aperating actvities per the cash flaw
statermen® ad usted tc exclude movements

m ot bonds,

Free cash (pre-tax)
Frae cash fow excluding cash flows an
income taxes.,

Net tee income

Ravenue tess cost of sales. Cos! of sz'as
inG'udas the remuneration cost 27 temporary
and contract workers and the cost of siaffing
drecty piiding offshore recruitment
services For permanant placements net fea
income is typically equal 1o 1evenue with only
lmited costs of sales in some casas.

Offshore Recruitment Services (CRS)
Racruitment services previded by ow
operation in Inda 1o busiesses elssere
17 tha world.

Pilot bonds

Pzt bonas a-e sometimes recaived by
airlng cients to be taken at the stari o* a
pilzt's contract. Thase are rewuned 10 pilols
or paic 1o clents thiough the cowsse of the
nlat's contract or when it ends inine with
the terms of the agreement.

RPO

Peciuitment Process Oulsouicing is whers
an emaloyer transfers all or cait of s
reciuitnent grocess to an external provider.

Sia

Staffirg Industly Anzlysts s a global advison
on staffing and worsforce so'utions and a
providar of data and publcatigns related o
the staffing industey,

Staff productivity
Net fec income diaded by stalf cos's.
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